@ lIFortsmouth
CITY COUNCIL  Pyblic Document Pack

NOTICE OF MEETING

CABINET MEMBER FOR TRAFFIC & TRANSPORTATION

THURSDAY, 29 SEPTEMBER 2016 AT 4.00 PM
THE EXECUTIVE MEETING ROOM - THIRD FLOOR, THE GUILDHALL

Telephone enquiries to Joanne Wildsmith, Democratic Services Tel: 9283 4057
Email: joanne.wildsmith@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

CABINET MEMBER FOR TRAFFIC & TRANSPORTATION
Councillor Jim Fleming (Conservative)

Group Spokespersons
Councillor Lynne Stagg, Liberal Democrat

Councillor Stuart Potter, UK Independence Party
Councillor Yahiya Chowdhury, Labour

(NB  This Agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting.)

Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on
the Portsmouth City Council website: www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Deputations by members of the public may be made on any item where a decision is
going to be taken. The request should be made in writing to the contact officer (above) by
12 noon of the working day before the meeting, and must include the purpose of the
deputation (for example, for or against the recommendations). Email requests are

accepted.
AGENDA
1 Apologies
2 Declarations of Members' Interests
3 Winter Maintenance Operational Plan 2016/17 (Pages 1 - 110)

The purpose of the report by the PFI Network Coordinator - Highways PFlI
Team, is for the Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation to approve that
the proposed Winter Maintenance Plan (WMP) will provide the required level
of service as prescribed within schedule 4 of the Contract and legislation in
order that it can be communicated to the relevant agencies and stakeholders.

RECOMMENDED that the Winter Maintenance Plan be approved.



Residents' Parking Update (Pages 111 - 116)

The purpose of the report by the Director of Transport, Environment &
Business Support, is to update the Cabinet Member on progress with the
review of parking zones in the last year and confirm the ongoing programme
as published.

RECOMMENDED that:
(1) the progress made to date on the review of parking zones is
noted;

(2) the ongoing programme is confirmed as published;
(3) requests for permit parking continue to be recorded for future
consideration.

Residents Parking Zone: Cosham Area (TRO 47/2016) (Pages 117 - 144)

The report by the Director of Transport, Environment & Business Support, is to
consider the consultation responses to the proposed BF parking zone, and
agree the way forward.

RECOMMENDED that the BF Park Lane parking zone is implemented as
proposed, with the following exceptions:

(1) Parking bays are not marked out at this time (deleted from the
TRO);

(2) Double yellow lines are not marked out at this time (deleted from
the TRO).

Charges for Third Permits in Residents Parking Zones (Pages 145 - 154)

The purpose of the report by the Director of Transport, Environment &
Business Support is to seek approval to increase the charges for the third
permits (Resident and Business permits) within residents' parking zones.

RECOMMENDED that the Cabinet Member for Traffic & Transportation
approves an increase in the charges for the third Resident and Business
permits per household/business, from £120 to £510 and £360 to £510
respectively from the 1st January 2017.

A2047 Corridor Junction Treatments - Raised Tables (Fratton Road,
Kingston Road and London Road) (Pages 155 - 168)

The report by the Director of Transport, Environment & Business Support
seeks to consider responses to the public consultation on proposals to
implement traffic calming on the following A2047 (Fratton Road, Kingston
Road and London Road) corridor junctions: Washington Road, Clydebank
Road and Powerscourt Road, Stamford Street and Queens Road.

RECOMMENDED that the Cabinet Member for Traffic & Transportation
approves the implementation of raised tables at the A2047 Corridor
Junctions with Washington Road, Clydebank Road and Powerscourt
Road, Stamford Street and Queens Road.



8 Goldsmith Avenue Cycle Lane (TRO 11/2016) (Pages 169 - 176)

The purpose of the report by the Director of Transport, Environment &
Business Support, is to review comments received in response to the TRO
11/2016. This order proposed the implementation of double yellow lines on the
north side of Goldsmith Avenue, adjacent to the railway line opposite Francis
Avenue to the pedestrian crossing west of Fratton Way. Removing the
loading bays and the current unrestricted parking is also included in order to
facilitate the introduction of a dedicated eastbound cycle lane.

RECOMMENDED That the Cabinet Member for Traffic & Transportation
approves the Goldsmith Avenue cycle lane as set out in TRO 11/2016.

9 Montague Road Traffic Calming - Results of Public Consultation (Pages
177 - 190)

The purpose of the report by the Director of Transport, Environment and
Business Support, is to consider responses to the public consultation on
proposals to implement traffic calming within Montague Road.

RECOMMENDED that the Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation
approves Option 1: to implement traffic calming by reducing the width of
the carriageway to a single lane at both ends of Montague Road.

10 Tendered Bus Routes Update on Patronage (Pages 191 - 200)

The purpose of the report by the Director of Transport, Environment &
Business, is to provide an update on the current patronage for the tendered
bus routes which have been in place since the end of March 2016.

RECOMMENDED that the Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation
notes the patronage levels for the routes currently receiving financial
support from the city council.

1 Isambard Brunel Road Temporary TRO (Pages 201 - 218)

Report by the Director of Transport, Environment & Business Support. The
purpose of the report is to seek approval to implement a temporary traffic
regulation order (TTRO) facilitate the redevelopment of the Chaucer House site in
Isambard Brunel Road.

Members of the public are now permitted to use both audio visual recording devices and social
media during this meeting, on the understanding that it neither disrupts the meeting or records
those stating explicitly that they do not wish to be recorded. Guidance on the use of devices at
meetings open to the public is available on the Council's website and posters on the wall of the
meeting's venue.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Agenda item:

Decision maker: Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation
Subject: Winter Maintenance Operational Plan 2016/17
Date of decision: 29™ September 2016

Report by: PFI Network Coordinator - Highways PFI Team
Wards affected: All

Key decision: No

Budget & policy framework decision: No

Summary

Portsmouth City Council ("the Council") has a statutory duty to ensure that safe passage along
a highway is not endangered by snow or ice, so far as reasonably practicable. This duty has
been contracted out by way of the Portsmouth Highways PFI contract (the Contract) and the
responsibility to provide the Winter Maintenance Service has been transferred under the
Contract to Ensign Highway Limited ("Ensign").

The Winter Maintenance Plan (WMP) provides the framework for Ensign to manage routine
winter maintenance, details those responsible for the management of weather emergencies,
details those responsible for and provides the framework to manage the highways services
response as part of a multi-agency response, and identifies activation triggers for action to be
taken.

The plan comes into force during the winter maintenance period from 1% October to 30" April.
Purpose of report

For the Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation to approve that the proposed WMP wiill
provide the required level of service as prescribed within schedule 4 of the Contract and
legislation in order that it can be communicated to the relevant agencies and stakeholders.

Background

This requirement is pursuant to section 41 (1A) of the Highways Act 1980 , which prescribes a
statutory duty on Highway Authorities to ensure so far as reasonably practical, that safe
passage along a highway is not endangered by snow and ice.

The exercise of this function has been delegated to Ensign and is expressly contained within
schedule 4, para 117 (1) of the Contract.

This plan is in support of the national arrangements introduced following the implementation of
the Civil Contingencies Act 2004. Schedule 1 of the act and the supporting guidance set out
clear expectations and responsibilities for Category One Responders at the local level to ensure
that they are prepared to deal effectively with the full range of emergencies from localised major
emergencies through to catastrophic events.

1
Page 1
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Part 1 of the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 establishes a consistent level of civil protection
activity across the United Kingdom. Category One Responders include the Emergency
Services, Local Authorities and other agencies.

The WMP covers city’s core responsibilities and is updated in the summer of each year to take
into account lessons learnt from the previous winter. In the case of extreme conditions, the
WMP should be read in conjunction with emergency and business continuity plans.

No snow events occurred in the 2015/16 period. A brief summary of the actions taken after the
review of the 2015-2016 winter season is listed below:-

e Due to the development works taking place at The Hard, Wickham Street will continue to be
gritted and the completed bus deck will be included in Gritting Route 12 once buses start to
use it.

In the event of snow conditions, priority 1 and 2 roads and footways will be cleared first,
followed by key priority 3 roads and footways such as hill slope roads in the north of the city.

Recommendations
4.1  That the updated WMP be approved.
Reasons for recommendations

5.1 That the approval of this report demonstrates that the WMP will ensure safe passage
along a prioritised network of roads and footways and that in periods of prolonged or
severe weather conditions that a programme of treatment will be extended across the
Project Network , so far as reasonably practicable.

5.2  That the approval of this report demonstrates that this Council has confidence that the
proposed WMP conforms to the requirements of the Contract.

5.3  That the WMP reflects the recommendation contained in the independent review
document published by the Department for Transport in July 2010 and the Code of
Practice for Well Maintained Highways.

Options considered and rejected

6.1 No other options have been considered for the provision of the WMP as it supports a
statutory duty.

Duty to involve

7.1 As the provision of the Winter Maintenance Service is a statutory duty consultation will
be undertaken with interested parties such as Emergency Services, Hospital Trust,
neighbouring Authorities and Public Transport organisations. A pre-winter meeting will
be arranged during September with all Council services to present the WMP and to
discuss how this will interface with their winter arrangements.

2
Page 2
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



10.

11.

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Implications

8.1 If the Winter Maintenance Service was not to be provided, then this would be a breach
of the duty placed on a Highway Authority under Section 41 of the Highways Act 1980
by the Railway and Transport Safety Act 2003.

8.2 Untreated roads could cause safety issues, traffic disruption and high levels of complaint
from road user, residents, commercial and industrial businesses.

Corporate priorities

This report contributes to the following Corporate Priorities:
e Protect and support our most vulnerable residents
e Improve efficiency and encourage involvement
e Improve public transport

Equality impact assessment (EIA)

A preliminary EIA has been completed for the Highways Management Service and no issues
were identified.

Legal implications

The requirement to produce a WMP is in line with prescribed obligations for the Council as a
Highway Authority to ensure, as far as is reasonably practicable, that safe passage along a
highway is not endangered by snow or ice (S41 (1A) of the Highways Act 1980). This
requirement has been expressly delegated to Ensign by way of Schedule 4 of the Contract and
therefore the legal obligation to ensure (reasonably) that such requirements are met has been
satisfied.

12.

Head of finance’s comments

There are no financial implications as result of the recommendations contained within this
report. The WMP is a requirement as part of the existing Contract with Ensign.

13. Reason for the matter being dealt with if urgent
This matter is not urgent.
Signed by:

3
Page 3
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Appendices:
Appendix A: The Winter Maintenance Operational Plan
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a material extent by
the author in preparing this report:

Title of document Location

1 Highways PFI contract document Transport and Street Management
2 Highways Act 1980 City Solicitor

3 Railways and Transport Safety Act 2003 City Solicitor

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/ rejected by
Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation on 24 September 2015.

Signed by: Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation.

4
Page 4
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



I‘COlaS @ Portsmouth Ensign
CITY COUNCIL ——~—

Portsmouth
Public Highway PFI

Winter Maintenance
Operational Plan
2016-17

(Draft for review)

Page 5



Contents

Document control and distribution
Section 1 — Scope

Introduction

Requirement to produce a plan
Objectives

Policy framework (statement of Service)
Contractual arrangements

Network

Plan maintenance

[ NG WL NG, WL W W
No O rwh

Section 2 - Operations

2.1 Introduction
2.2 General Arrangements and Decision Making
2.3 Escalation

Section 3 —Treatments

3.1 Carriageway Treatment
3.2 Footway Treatment
3.3 De-Icing Treatment
3.4 SaltBins

3.5 Snow Clearance

Section 4 — Weather Forecasting and Ice Prediction

4.1 General Arrangements
4.2 Ice Prediction System
4.3 Records

Section 5 — Winter Weather Emergency Preparation and Planning

5.1 Health and Safety

5.2 Mutual Aid

5.3 Review

5.4 Winter Service Timetable

Section 6 — Resources

6.1 Introduction

6.2 Human Resources

6.3 Training

6.4 Winter Maintenance Exercise
6.5 Manning Levels

6.6 De-Icing Materials

Section 7 — Liaison and Communication

7.1 Publicity

7.2 Reports

7.3 Medial Liaison

7.4 Internal Communication Arrangements

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16

Page 6

Page 2 of 33



Appendices

A Other Plans Containing Colas Highway Management Roles and Responsibilities

B Definitions and Abbreviations

C Guidelines for Decision Making

D Gold Zones, Bridges, Hollow Spots, Guildhall Square, Transport Hubs, Residential
Homes, Hospitals, Emergency Services and Salt Bins locations

D1 Carriageway categories 1 and 2

D2 Carriageway emergency network

D3 Carriageway salting routes details

D4 Salt Bin Locations

D5 Salt Bin Checklist

E Detailed identification of Footways leading to schools

E1 Detailed location of Schoq’l“ Crossing Patrol

E2 Detailed identification of Ft;Otways leading to transport hubs

E3 Detailed identification of Footways leading to PCC managed residential homes

F Equipment, Store and Salt Barn location

G Winter Maintenance Preparation Plan

H Reference documents

I ‘E};'Vehicies and Plant schedules

J ‘Winter Maintenance Exercise Checklist

K Standard Forms and Daily Reports

L Snow desk content

M Section 8 Agreement between PCC and HCC

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 3 of 33

Page 7



Document Owner

The owner is responsible for maintenance, upkeep and amendment of the document.

Document Owner

Steve White — Winter Maintenance Service Manager

Document Control

Document Issue and Revision Record

Issue Revision | Date Issuer Checker | Issue/Revision Approved
- Description
8.0 A 25/07/16 GwW SW Draft for comments N/A
8.0 B 01/09/16 | GW SwW 2™ Draft for
comments
Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 4 of 33

Page 8




Distribution List

Name Role Date
Colas
Ray Muscat Business Manager
Steve White Winter Maintenance Service Manager (Duty)
Andy Marsh Winter Maintenance Service Manager (Reserve)
Fred Willett Network Coordinator/Duty Officer
Martin Thompson Winter Maintenance Duty Officer
Paul Christy Winter Maintenance Duty Officer
Andy McDuff Winter Maintenance Duty Officer
Gordon McGinn Winter Maintenance Duty Officer
Donna Cooper Network Manager
Steve Hill Capital Works Manager.
Des Stone Claims Officer
Ensign
Eric Brangier Managing Director
Godifred Appiah Highway Manager
Portsmouth City Council |
Brad Yates PFl Performance Manager
Michelle Love PFi ‘“Network Coqrdinatbnj/
Winter Maintenance Co-ordinator
Alan Cufley Elj:i(; ;;SSSL\SS?) r':‘rénspon, Environment and
Martin Lavers Assistant Head of Service Operations
Pam Turton Assistant Head of Service Strategy
John Houghton Public Transport
Cindy Jones . Emergency Planning
External Organisations*

Organisation Name Tel No Date
Hampshire County Council Peter Mitchell 023 9244 6466
Hampshire Constabulary Rebecca Setford | 101 — ext. 718182
Environmental Agency Miriam Nathoo 01962 764946
Southampton City Council John Harvey 023 8083 2799
Balfour Beatty (SCC service provider) David Bailey 023 8038 8000
Highway Agency Area 3 Guy Beresford 01306 878214
Enterprise Mouchel (Area 3 service provider) | lan Bastin 07774 731051

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 5 of 33

Page 9




Section 1 — Scope
1.1  Introduction

This winter service plan describes the policy, objectives, procedures and
operational arrangements for the delivery of winter service on the Portsmouth
City Council (PCC) public highway network. Ensign as the Contractor & Colas
as the Sub-Contractor have prepared this document as the annual Winter
Service Plan for the 2016-2017 winter season.

The document serves a number of specific purposes:

Policy Document

The winter service plan sets out Ensign’s policy and objectives in the context
of local service delivery.

Contract Document

The winter service plan outlines the key contractual responsibilities of Ensign
and their service provider, Colas.

Quality Plan
This winter service plan forms part of Colas’ quality management system.

Contingency Plan

The winter service plan forms part of the Service Company's wider
contingency arrangements.

Operations Manual

The winter service plan describes the processes, procedures and operational
arrangements for those responsible for delivering winter services.

Reference Document

The winter service plan is a comprehensive reference document (see
Appendix H for Reference Documents)

1.2 Requirement to produce a plan

1.2.1 The plan is produced in accordance with the requirement of the PFI Contract
Performance Standard 3: Winter Service Operations. These requirements are
in line with the Highways Act 1980 Amendment Clause 41 (1A), these place a
duty on Highway Authorities to ensure so far as reasonably practical, that safe
passage along a highway is not endangered by snow and ice.

1.2.2 This plan is in support of the national arrangements introduced following the
implementation of the Civil Contingencies Act 2004, Regulations 2005. The
supporting guidance and regulations to the Act set out clear expectations and
responsibilities for Category One responders at the local level to ensure that
they are prepared to deal effectively with the full range of emergencies from
localised Major Emergencies through to Catastrophic Events.

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 6 of 33

Page 10



1.2.3 Part 1 of the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 establishes a consistent level of civil
protection activity across the United Kingdom. Category One Responders
include the Emergency Services, Local Authorities and other agencies.

1.3  Objectives
The objectives of this plan are:

= To provide a framework for the Colas Winter Maintenance Service
Manager to manage routine winter maintenance.

* To detail those responsible for the operation and management of routine or
specific weather emergencies.

= To provide a framework for the Contract to manage the Highway Services’
response to a severe weather emergency as part of a multi-agency
response.

* To detail those responsible for the operation and management of the
Highways' response to a severe weather emergency as part of a multi-
agency response.

* To identify plan activation triggers and the action to be taken.

1.4  Policy Framework (Statemenf of Service)

Policy: 1t is PCC’'s and Colas’ aim to ensure, so far as is reasonably
practicable, that safe passage along the highway is not endangered by snow
or ice. : ) ;

Colas will implement PCC’s policy in an efficient and safe manner and will
endeavour, in so doing, to minimise delays to road users.

1.5 Contractual arrangements
Role of PCC: The City Council is responsible for following:

1) Setting the overall policy on the provision of winter services

2) PCC to contact other internal services annually for updates on schools,
residential homes etc. for WMOP

3) Receiving notification of proposed actions or changes to proposed actions

4) Overseeing operation management and performance

5) Agreeing the escalation mechanism and cessation of other PFI activities to
deploy resources towards winter maintenance (details of mechanism can
be found in section 2.3.1 and Appendix C)

6) High-level liaison with the media

7) High-level liaison with elected representatives

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 7 of 33

Page 11



8) Setting up of the Snow response Room to coordinate clearances across
the city

9) Through the Snow Response Room PCC to communicate internally and
externally on bus routes affected, school closures & road closures

10) Presentation to external stakeholders prior to winter season on Winter
Maintenance Plan and any changes

Role of Ensign/Colas: Colas are responsible for following:

1) Development of the winter maintenance operational plan for Public
Highway

2) Implementation, execution and delivery of the winter maintenance plan.

3) Design of winter service treatment routes

4) Procurement of weather forecasting services

5) Provision of ice prediction sensor stations

6) Day to day decision-making and operational management

7) Reporting to PCC

8) Provision of winter service compounds :

9) Provision of winter service vehicles, plant, labour and materials for Public
Highway

10) Maintenance and operation of vehicles, compounds and equipment

11) Day to day liaison with the media in co-ordination with PCC

12) Monitoring and reviewing performance

1.6  Network
1.6.1 Description and extent of Network

Colas are responsible for all adopted public highways network as described in
the PFI contract. The Section 8 agreemient with Hampshire County Council
(HCC) is now signed and in place for cross boundary works. (Appendix M)

1.6.2 Local Problem Areés

The following areas have been identified as areas of risk, and will be salted
whenever a Priority one salt run has been ordered.

Road Extent Reason
Christchurch Gardens Carriageway Gradient
Oakhurst Gardens Carriageway Gradient
Hilltop Crescent Carriageway Gradient
Beverly Grove Carriageway Gradient
Old Rectory Road Carriageway Gradient
Mulberry Lane Carriageway Gradient
Park Lane Carriageway Gradient
Norway Road Bridge/Carriageway Gradient on bridge
Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 8 of 33

Page 12



Road Extent Reason

Copnor Road Bridge/Carriageway Gradient on bridge
St. Mary’s Road Bridge/Carriageway Gradient on bridge
Burrfields Road Bridge/Carriageway Gradient on bridge

Isambard Brunel
Road

Footway under Railway
Bridge

Footway leading to
Civic Offices

Southampton Road

Rail Bridge

Gradient on bridge

Eastern Road

Rail Bridge/Carriageway

Gradient on bridge

Eastern Road

Water Bridge/Carriageway

Gradient on bridge

Fratton Road

Rail Bridge/Carriageway

Gradient on bridge

Somers Road

Rail Bridge/Carriageway

Gradient on bridge

Holbrook Road

Rail Bridge/Carriageway

Gradient on bridge

Northern Road

Rail Bridge/Carriageway

Gradient on bridge

Walton Road

Rail Bridge/Carriageway

Gradient on bridge

Portsdown Hill Road

The George Flyover
Carriageway

Gradient

Northarbour Spur

Carriageway

Emergency service
location

Froddington Road

Carriageway at rear of fire
station

Emergency service
location

1.7 Plan Maintenance

The Contracts Manager (Winter Maintenance Service Manager (WMSM)) in
charge of the winter operations is responsible for maintaining this Operational
Plan. The plan is updated on a yearly basis taking into consideration the
events of the previous season.

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 9 of 33

Page 13



21

2.2

2.21

Section 2 - Operations

Introduction (Operations)

The Service Company is responsible for making decisions concerning salting
and snow clearance on the network during the winter maintenance period
(from 1st October to 30th April). Detailed operational procedures have been
developed for the delivery of winter services in the PCC area, including
arrangements for liaison and co-operation with adjacent providers and
reporting to the client.

The WMSM (Contract Manager for Operations) will control and is responsible
for the operation of the winter maintenance service. During any periods of
absence / annual leave etc. another Contract Manager will take his function
and be responsible for the operation of this Plan.

In order to achieve a co-ordinated service across all boundaries liaison on
salting routes has been undertaken with neighbouring maintenance
authorities. The routes are defined in Appendix D3.

All designated site staff involved in Winter Service duties will receive
instructions and training'to ensure effective operation. Training would include;
an appreciation of winter weather forecasting, effective decision-making, and
operational procedures as appropriate to their duties.

General Arrangements and Decision Making

Decision Making and Instructions

The' WMSM maintains a roster of senior staff that performs the duties of the

. Winter Maintenance Duty Officer (WMDO) throughout the winter season. The

duty WMDO will be available 24/7 throughout their period of duty. During a
snow or flood event two Duty Officers will be on call, one on the snow/flood
desk and one on all other out of hour’s issues.

The WMDO maintains computer contact with the Finley Irvine Ice Station Alert
System, either from the office or through a laptop. Weather forecasts for a
specific local site will be provided by the Met Office, supported by real time
local information obtained from sensor sites, as below:

Morning summary and preliminary forecast by 0800h
24-hour area forecast by 1330h
Sensor site forecast (text & ice prediction graphs) by 1330h
2 — 5 day forecast by 1330h
Evening update forecast by 1800h

The graphical computer information of existing road surface conditions at the
sensor sites together with predictive and forecast information will enable the
WMDO to form a decision on appropriate action throughout their period of
duty. This action may be for stand-by, precautionary salting, repeat salting or

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 10 of 33

Page 14



snow clearance. Confidence levels for forecasts will influence the timing of the
decision.

The WMDO will notify the operational staff by 16:00 hrs of any action required.
If a decision has not been reached, it shall be delayed until 19.00hrs or other
such time as circumstances dictate, when updated forecast information from
the Met Office is available. The decision will specify the routes to be treated,
timing of treatment or stand-by, spreading rates, ploughing requirements, etc.

The WMDO will avoid treatment being undertaken in periods of peak traffic
flow, if practicable, and during rainfall except where freezing rain is expected.
The WMDO will also take into account current advice for low humidity
conditions and the guidance given to increase the rate of spread/timing for
Porous asphalt.

In the event of revised forecasts or unexpected conditions the WMDO may
vary or change any previous decision at any time in the interests of the well-
being of the Network. Updates/ changes of decision and any actions shall be
notified by the WMDO to WMSM who will in turn notify if required PCC,
emergency services, adjacent authorities and any party with legitimate need of
such information. ;

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 11 of 33

Page 15



2.2.2 Decision process

WMDO reviews forecast and any information from

YR scast network:monitoring patrols

Is there a risk to the
network?

No Action - If Road Surface Temperature forecast

i No ' to be above 1°C

Assess conditional state level 1, 2 or 3 as Section
——» Yes ——» 2.3.1 of Winter Service Plan and if necessary
prepare to set up snow desk

Is snow forecast in
the next 5 days

No Action — WMDO completes Notification of
Proposed treatments form and circulates to those
bodies in section 2.2.1. WMDO will check later
forecast for updates and monitor site conditions

Is there adequate salt

retention — Yes

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 12 of 33

Page 16



RST expected to be
less than 1°C but NO
Precipitation and No
Frost

No Action — WMDO completes Notification of
» Yes —— Proposed treatments from. WMDO will check later
forecast for updates and monitor site conditions

No Action — WMDO completes Notification of
= No ——» Proposed treatments form. WMDO will check later
‘forecast for updates and monitor site conditons

Are RST expected to
fall below freezing
and a frost forecast

Yes Salt at 10g/m? before formation of frost —
WMDO completes Notification of Proposed treatments

Will roads be dry form. WMDO wiill issue instruction to duty dirvers

— Yes <4—— and RST between

0and -2°C?
Or
Will there be a Salt at 10g/m? before formation of hoar frost —
hoar frost and WMDO completes Notification of Proposed
4— Yes 94— RoT between 0 treatments, WMDO will issue instruction to duty
and -2°C? drivers
Or

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16

Page 13 of 33

Page 17



Yes «——

Will roads be dry

or damp and RST

between -2°C and
-5°C?

Or

WIill roads be dry
and RST between

-5°C and — 10 °C?

Or

b, 4

Duty driver report
to depot

Y

Treatment as
instructed

Daily Report

¢ End Process )

. Salt at 15g/m? before formation of hoar frost —

WMDO completes Notification of Proposed
treatmentsform. WMDO will issue instruction to
duty drivers

Salt at 20g/m? before formation of hoar frost —
WMDO completes Notification of Proposed
treatmentsform. WMDO will issue instruction to
duty drivers

Drivers report to depot one hour prior to time of

commencement of the designated action in order to

prepare their vehicles, load salt, and collect their
route cards.

Upon completion of their run each driver will inform

the WMDO that the run is complete and update him

on the road conditions.

WMDO will provide a daily operational report to the
Network Services manager, detailing the
treatments carried out over the last 24 hours.

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16

Page 18

Page 14 of 33



223

224

2.3

2.3.1

Decision matrix guide
(see Appendix C)

Special considerations

Hard packed snow

The treatment of hard packed snow/ice using salt alone can result in an
uneven and slippery surface and therefore, in such circumstances, the
addition of abrasives (5mm or 6mm sharp sand) will be considered.

Traffic calmed areas

With the exception of road marking techniques to influence traffic speeds all
the features are likely to involve some level of conflict with winter maintenance
operation. Traffic calming features will be indicated on the gritting routes and
one or more of the following actions may be specified:

* Lift snowploughs and plough snow around the traffic calming features;

* Apply heavy salting locally this is to be carried [by traffic] onto the
feature; and/or

* Adjust the spread rates or spinners to minimize overspreading

Escalation

During falls of snow or exceptional weather conditions responsibility for
managing events will normally pass from:the WMDO to a dedicated team and
a Snow Desk will be established as detailed below. See Appendix L for Snow
Desk content

PCC will be consulted in advance of establishing a Snow Desk to liaise the
communications of the snow desk to their wider internal departments.

Emergency Service Plan  arrangements will only be enacted if, after
discussions with PCC, the Snow Desk response is considered insufficient to
cope with the exceptional weather conditions or if an incident is compounded
by a series of further incidents.

In the event that the DfT launch the Salt Cell, Colas will adapt the length of the
network treated according to the guidance issued by the Salt Cell and
according to salt supply. In this situation the WMSM will consult PCC before
implementing any treatment decisions and will inform them twice a day, in the
morning and in the afternoon of any developments.

Establishment of Snow Desk and escalation process

During periods where snowfall or severe weather is forecast, three conditional
states will be recognised, Level 1, Level 2 & Level 3 as below.

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 15 of 33

Page 19



Level 1

During marginal weather conditions, following the 5-day weather forecast, the
WMDO will monitor the local weather and road surface conditions. He will
liaise with the WMSM and report any local variations to the forecast state.

Level 2
During periods where severe weather is forecast, where snowfall is predicted,
a “snow desk” will be setup and co-ordinated up by the WMDO and WMSM. A
team from the Service Company will be established to operate the Snow Desk
and they will continue to monitor local conditions and report back to the
WMSM.

Colas and PCC will discuss the degree of severity and the level of resources
that need to be diverted to snow clearance duty. 3 stages are forecasted. It is
understood that the trigger of each of these stages will generate a relief event
for underachievement of performance standard on the associated activities:

Stage 1
Activities suspended:
Highways Maintenance
Landscaping Activities
Gully Cleansing
Road Lining |, *
Street Cleansing, (block sweep)

Stage 2 : P ) L

Activities suspended over and above Stage 1:
Capital Works (schemes) '
Street Cleansing (gold zones, heritage areas & dog bins)
Traffic Management

Stage 3

Activities suspended over and above Stage 1 & 2:
All other services with the total workforce dedicated to winter
maintenance operations

Level 3

During extended periods of severe weather, the “snow desk” will liaise with
PCC, Service Company senior management, and Emergency Services to
manage the situation. The Snow Desk will act, as a single point of contact and
all instructions will be passed through the Snow Desk.

Once the decision has been made to set up the Snow Desk, a dedicated room
at the Service Company’s office will be used. This room will contain all the
necessary equipment to effectively communicate with the gritting/snow
clearance fleet, PCC, Police, adjacent Local Authorities and other parties.
Once the ‘decision to initiate the Snow Desk has been taken, all
communications equipment will be tested and if necessary equipment will be
drawn from store.

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 16 of 33

Page 20



2,3.2

The PCC Snow Response Room will coordinate all clearance works across
the city, liaising with Colas and other Internal Services for a joined up
approach. This will also include the coordination of PCC volunteers to assist
with footway clearances, some of whom are unable to carry out their day to
day duties due to the weather conditions. In addition to this, the Snow
Response Room will collate and distribute information internally and externally
on items such as bus routes affected, schools closures and road closures.

Once the decision to initiate the snow desk has been taken the WMDO will
produce a shift pattern based on the available personnel and forward this to
the WMSM/PCC.

The WMSM will arrange for a change in shifts where it is predicted that the
snow event will span more than 12 hours, allowing for a half hour handover
period. Where necessary, personnel required to take part in shift
arrangements will be housed in local hotels for the duration of the emergency.

The shifts will be organised to include 2 decision makers, 1 “Technical
Assistant”, responsible for keeping the Winter Service Log, and 1 “Information
Officer”. One of the decision makers will take a lead role and in the event of
implementation of the Contingency Plan, the role of “Silver”.

During shift changes each member of the team will handover to their direct
replacement. The team leader from the previous shift will remain for a period
not less than half an hour after the official handover.

In addition to the staff at the snow desk location the WMSM will, if considered
necessary, arrange to place staff at the PCC Offices for the purposes of
information collection and liaison:

Activation of PCC Emergency Plan

PCC Emergency Plan will be activated at PCC request when it becomes
apparent that a major or critical incident has occurred or is likely to take place.
The actions outlined in the plan shall immediately put in place.

Appendix D2 highlights the Emergency Priority route.

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 17 of 33

Page 21



Section 3 — Treatments

3.1 Carriageway Treatment

3.1.1 All carriageways forming part of the public highway network have been
allocated to one of the three groupings according to the following criteria;
Priority One
= main traffic routes ("A" class roads and M275 motorway)
®* main access routes to important industrial and large educational

establishments (500+ pupils)
= main access routes to major accident and emergency hospitals, and to
important emergency service locations

= roads used as major bus routes (50 per day urban, 25 per day rural)
= roads passing through major shopping centres
= other routes busy during peak traffic periods
To be treated, as routine pre-salting, in advance of any forecast frost, ice, or
snow.
After 3 days of treatments, if no rain/snow h‘és fallen no further treatment
should be undertaken unless conditions deem:it necessary (WMSM decision).
Priority Two
= roads near to other schools
» roads used as other bus routes
* roads to other hospitals
= roads to minor fire and ambulance establishments
* roads passing through other shopping centres
= roads with gradients that make driving hazardous
= hollow spots. .
= footways over prominent Bridges
To be treated only when there is prolonged and persistent frost, ice or snow
which is expected to continue, or following snow, but only once Priority 1
routes have been cleared.
Priority Three
= other adopted public highways not covered by the above
Priority 3 roads will not be treated. However, in the case of heavy snowfall,
once priority 1 and 2 roads have been cleared, we will endeavour to manually
or mechanically clear lower-priority roads. In exceptional weather, salt may
well be rationed by the government, as it was in January 2010 and they may
also reduce the numbers of roads to be salted.
“treated” = either manually or mechanically depending on resources
See Appendix D1 for the Carriageway categories 1 and 2

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 18 of 33

Page 22



3.1.2

313

3.2

3.2.1

Spot Salting

Spot Salting is a non-routine activity carried out after the completion of Priority
1 salting. Spot Salting is undertaken on a priority basis at locations where
there have been reported problems (from the Emergency services or others),
or there is knowledge of specific problems of ice formation on the network.
Spot Salting will not be undertaken when it is unlikely to be completed before
the ice begins to melt, as road temperatures rise. Spot Salting can be
undertaken either by mechanical spreader or by hand.

The process for ordering spot salting is included in Appendix C.
Extent of Carriageway to be Salted

e The full width of the running carriageway shall be treated at the specified
rate of spread indicated on the agreed action treatment.

e Each carriageway of a dual-carriageway shall be treated individually.
¢ All slip roads at grade-separated junctions shall be treated individually.

e The full length of the carriageway at roundabouts and gyratory systems
shall be treated. .

e |[solated obstructions in the centre of a single carriageway road which
exceed 5m in length shall be treated on both sides.

e Treatments will only extend to the City boundary except where agreed in
the Section 8 cross boundary agreement with HCC

Footway Treatment

All footways and cycle ways shall be allocated to one of the three groupings
according to the following criteria;

Priority One

All footways & cycle ways designated as Gold zones, Bridges & Hollow spots,
and the Guildhall Square (Appendix D), Transport Hubs (Appendix E2), PCC
managed residential homes (Appendix E3), as identified, to be treated only
when there is prolonged and persistent frost, ice or snow is expected to
continue, or following snow.

The list of footways/cycle ways will be reviewed/updated on an annual basis.

Priority Two

All footways & cycle ways designated as shopping areas, Schools access
(Appendix E) & Hill Slopes designated as to be treated following significant
snowfall but only once Priority 1 footways and cycle ways have been cleared.

Priority Three

Other footways & cycle ways to be cleared either manually or mechanically
following significant snowfall but only once Priority 1 and Priority 2 footways
and cycle ways have been cleared. This will include a list of all school crossing
patrol sites within the city (Appendix E1).

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 19 of 33

Page 23



3.2.2

3.2.3

3.3

3.3.1

3.3.2

3.3.3

Extent of Footway/Cycleway to be salted

The full width of the footway or running width of cycleway meeting the above
criteria shall be treated.

Resources for Footway treatment

It is not possible to predict the level of resources required, at any one time, to
ensure that the footways described above are clear of snow and ice. It is also
very difficult to predict the level of resources effectively available at the time.
However the escalation process described in paragraph 2.3.1 and recent
historical events indicate a total number of operatives in excess of 200.

De-Icing Treatment
General considerations

De-icing will be achieved by the application of 6mm. dry rock salt at the rates
defined in the Treatment Matrix Guide in Section 2.2.2 and Appendix C.

When necessary sharp sand will be.added and pre mixed with the 6mm rock
salt before being loaded in the gritters. -

Thin Surfacing

Many of the modern surfacing materials (TWC) have a 'negative texture' with a
considerable number of voids in the finished surface. During the application of
salt, a brine solution is often trapped in the veids and is drawn onto the
surface by the action: of tyres. On medium and lightly trafficked roads,
however, the brine solution might be:retained in the negative texture.

Experience indicates that TWC does not benefit from an increase in spread
rate but that the effect of residual salt on the carriageway is reduced,
particularly in areas of low traffic. Residual salt should not therefore be relied
upon to provide protection.

The spread rate for TWC should remain as for HRA but less reliance should
be placed upon residual protection provided by the previous treatment and the
aim should also be to apply treatment as close, as is practicable, to the
forecast time of freezing.

Low Humidity

The current practice for winter maintenance is based on the application of dry
Sodium Chloride (NaCl) in the form of naturally occurring rock salt. In low
humidity conditions the level of moisture is critical in the salt being effective.
This is because dry rock salt has no direct melting action; melting occurs only
after the salt forms a solution by absorbing moisture from the atmosphere or
the road surface.

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 20 of 33

Page 24



3.4

3.5

3.51

Below a relative humidity level of about 80%, the absorption of moisture by
rock salt decreases rapidly and, at low levels of humidity, salt particles remain
inert and ineffective. Dampening the salt with a wetting agent prior to
spreading can accelerate the process of dissolving salt particles.

Low humidity and low temperature conditions are most likely to occur in
December and January, although these conditions can occur throughout the
normal winter maintenance season. The WMDO must be aware that the
conditions occur and that they appear to be doing so more frequently.

Monitoring the condition of the network should be carried out to confirm that
the treatment has been effective. |If it has not been fully successful,
contingency treatments should be considered to restore the network to a
satisfactory condition. It should be noted that weather sensor systems require
the presence of moisture to determine the concentration of residual salt on the
road sensor.

Salt Bins

Some parts of the network not included in precautionary treatments could be
especially vulnerable to icing. This is especially the case in the wards of
Paulsgrove, Cosham, Drayton and Farlington where most of the roads present
an important longitudinal gradient. Salt bins are being maintained at key
locations to allow road users to spread ground rock salt in the local area on an
as needs basis. It is to be noted that these bins should not be used by
residents to salt private premises.

The total number of bins on the public highway 2016-2017 season is 80. Their
location is shown in the Appendix D4. Requests for additional salt bins on the
highway will be reviewed by PCC on a case by case basis.

Salt bins are cleaned and filled as a routine at the start of the season and
before 1st November each year and will be refilled following extreme weather
conditions. A dedicated cleansing operative will carry out a fortnightly
inspection and the check sheet will be sent to PCC on a fortnightly basis.
See Appendix D5 for the Salt Bin Checklist. Please note that salt will be
allocated in priority to CW treatment then FW treatment as per described in
section 3.1 and 3.2.

Snow Clearance

Ploughing & Clearance Techniques and Operational Considerations

In moderate and heavy snowfall conditions it will be agreed with PCC to cease
all normal highways work and re-direct all available resources to snow
clearance.

Snow clearing routes are based upon a 40gm/m? application rate for the
clearance of snow. This will normally be applied by way of two separate
20gm/m? runs. Precautionary treatment in advance of any snowfall will be at
20gm/m2,

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 21 of 33

Page 25



Snowfall less than 50mm deep will normally be cleared by the application salt
at a rate of 40gm/m?. This may take several successive applications.

Snowfall greater than 50mm will normally require ploughing, supplemented by
the application salt at a rate of 40gm/m2. The use of ploughs will be restricted
to roads wide enough to allow their passage without risk due to the high levels
of “on-street” parking and narrowness of side roads, combined with the need
for traffic to be as free flowing as possible. All winter maintenance plant will,
however, be equipped to carry ploughs.

While moderate or heavy snow is still falling only priority one roads will be
ploughed and treated in order to concentrate resources and ensure the most
important roads are kept open and maintained in a safe condition.

When snow has stopped falling or the priority one roads are considered safe,
priority two roads will be ploughed and treated followed by priority three roads
as resources and conditions permit.

The frequency of ploughing and the continuation of snow clearance operations
will depend upon conditions and resources will be deployed according to the
escalation process described in section 2.3.1.

The removal of snow from dual carriageways requires a different technique
from two-way carriageways. In heavy snowfall the priority on a dual
carriageway will be to maintain a single open lane. In most cases this will be
the most heavily used inside lane and the first operation will be to plough from
lane 1 to the verge. The clearance: of other lanes will occur as conditions
improve. The outside lane will normally be ploughed to the central reservation
although-it is essential to regulate the speed to avoid throwing snow onto the
opposite carriageway. If the central’ reservation is not wide enough to
accommodate the snow or the dual carriageway has three lanes then echelon
ploughing (2 or more vehicles, moving in the same direction, one behind the
other, in different lanes) will be used to move the snow to the nearside.

Where snow compaction has occurred and ice has formed it may be
necessary to use salt/grit mixtures to break up the compacted snow and
provide additional adhesion.

In extreme conditions after heavy snowfall it may be necessary to lift snow
from streets. Snow will only be removed this way in exceptional
circumstances, for example where existing piled snow is preventing further
snow clearance from the road.

Snow dumps will be created as necessary at the following sites:-

Road Location
Milton Common Eastern Road
Western Road King George V Playing Fields
Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 22 of 33

Page 26



3.5.2

3.5.3

Road Location
Long Curtain Road Long Curtain Car Park
Northern Parade Alexandra Park
Portsdown Hill Road Portsdown Hill
London Road Hilsea Lido
Market Way Former Tricorn Centre
Bransbury Road Bransbury Park
Southsea Esplanade Southsea Common
Milton Road Milton Park
Eastern Road Car Park A27
Eastern Road Farlington Playing Fields

Aftercare and follow up Treatments

During the thaw the first priority will be to ensure, as far as possible, that road
channels and footways are clear of snow in the vicinity of gullies etc. to allow
melted snow to drain away. Only after gullies are clear should an attempt be
made to clear any stockpiled snow.

As soon as practicable a:special inspection of the network will be undertaken
to identify any damage caused by the weather or the snow clearance
operations.

Abandoned and Parked Vehicles

Where an abandoned or parked vehicle is hampering snow clearing
operatjons the removal -from the road, or removal to another part of the road,
may be required. Wherever possible the owner will be contacted and
requested to remove the vehicle directly but in certain circumstances this may
not be possible.

Only police/traffic officers have the authority to move a vehicle in these
circumstances and therefore contact will be made through the Snow Desk and
an instruction sought from a police/traffic officer for the vehicle to be moved.
The specific details of each vehicle, its location and the reason why it needs to
be moved will be provided to the police/traffic officer and a log of all
communications kept. The vehicle/s will only be moved once an instruction
from a police/traffic officer has been received.

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 23 of 33

Page 27



4.1

4.2

Section 4 — Weather Forecasting and Ice Prediction

General Arrangements

During the winter period Colas will use the “Open Road” forecasting service
provided by the Meteorological Office (London Weather Centre). The forecast
provided each day gives the following information;

Area 24-Hour Forecast

Site Specific Forecast

Morning Summary

Evening Update forecast

Snow Prediction during any High Risk period

2— 5 day forecast ‘

24 hr contact number for Met Office Weather Forecasters

e o © © o o o

The main features of the forecasts are:
» Readiness colour Green ‘no snow or ice expected.
Amber risk of snow and/or ice
‘Red: show, ice or drifting snow is expected

= Hazards - This section gives information on the hazards giving rise to the
Red or Amber readiness colours as:well as other potential hazards which
could be present with a “Green” forecast (e.g. high winds, heavy rain, fog)

= Temperatures - Minimum road surface and air temperature are provided,
these are generally given together with a confidence statement of High
-Medium or Low, by the forecaster.

= 24 Hour Summary - This gives a general summary of the weather forecast
from 12.00 midday to12.00 midday the following day.

e 5 day forecast - This is an outlook for the 4 days following the day of
issue of the forecast information. It gives an indication of the likely
minimum road surface temperatures, together with a yes/ no statement
for ice, snow, hoar frost and fog.

o In addition to the above, at approximately 1900 hours each day the
London Weather Centre issues an evening forecast. This can be
viewed by the WMDO and WMSM at home on a portable (laptop)
computer. The WMDO can contact the duty forecaster at the London
Weather Centre to discuss any complications that may arise in the
forecast. This consultancy service is provided 24 hours a day.

Ice Prediction System
Colas have subscribed to the Finley Irvine Ice Station Alert System. The

variables measured are: air temperature, road surface temperature, relative
humidity, precipitation, wind speed and direction, surface condition (wet/dry)

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 24 of 33

Page 28



and road temperature at 300 mm depth as well as salt residue. These are
accessed by the London Weather Centre and fed into their forecasting model,
enabling them to prepare a forecast specifically for the area.

The 2 lce Prediction sensor stations are located as shown below. The
selected Forecast site will be one of these two locations and will be
determined in liaison with the chosen forecast provider. The sites are:

1. Eastern Road, at the entrance to Great Salterns Quay by lamp column
205

2. Portsdown Hill Road, adjacent to the parking area just west of Hilltop
Crescent by GPO pole DP 847

Finley Irvine software is installed on 2 Desktop PC’s and 2 Laptop PCs. One
Laptop will remain with the WMDO. The Desktop PCs are located in the
Service Company offices and for accessing by WMDO or other delegated
officers during the working day. Further access to the forecasting information
is available from any PC connected to the Internet via Finley Irvine Ice Station
Alert System.

4.3 Records

The WMDO will keep detailed daily records of information using forms from
the “Winter Maintenance Operational plan’;

weather forecast

actual weather conditions
reports received

decisions made

instructions given
confirmations

actions taken

liaison and communications log

These records will comprise paper as well as electronic records. They will be
maintained, together with the adjacent authorities’ decisions, in the Winter
Weather Records File. Records will be archived and retained.

Periodically analysis of the records will be carried out to identify non-
conformances or trends and to ensure compliance with the Winter
Maintenance Code.

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 25 of 33

Page 29



Section 5 — Winter Weather Emergency Preparation and Planning

5.1 Health and Safety
Risk Assessments and Safe Working Methods assessments and safe working
methods for office staff and operational staff engaged on winter maintenance
are prepared by the WMSM and the WMDO and updated in the second
fortnight of September.
5.2 Mutual Aid
The management of the interface between the PCC network and the Trunk
Road and other networks is essential to the consistent provision of a winter
service. For example, there are local roads at the PCC boundary which are
essential to traffic flow within the City.
Mutual aid can be many different things, from the sharing of resources such as
salt, the sharing of facilities or assistance to deal with specific problems that
may occur near maintenance boundaries.
Whilst these arrangements are often ad. hoc, inconsistent and rely upon the
goodwill of the parties’ involved, Colas is committed to the principle of mutual
aid.
5.3 Review
Colas undertake a mid-season and end of season review of the Winter
Maintenance Operations. This is initially undertaken by the WMSM and PCC
and will cover communication issues, management and delivery of the Winter
Service.
Issues may be identified at the initial meeting that may require later input from
a third party e.g. the Police. The review will include:
e response and treatment times
e decision making
e command and control
e escalation and snow desk (if applicable)
e liaison and communications
o weather forecasting and ice prediction
e actual weather conditions
e operational issues '
e records
e health and safety
e human resources
e vehicles and plant
e de-icing materials
e depots and facilities
e Identified problem areas on the network
e Innovation and new techniques
Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 26 of 33

Page 30



Please find below the main action taken after the review of the 2015-2016
winter season:

1) The Streets Ahead website remains under review/construction. Gritting routes and
information continue to be published on the PCC website.

2) Temporary gritting route 12 (which was implemented last season to incorporate
the one-way system which is in place for the duration of The Hard Development
works) remains in place to accommodate the ongoing works.

3) The fleet of winter maintenance vehicles is due to be replaced, new vehicles are
expected in October/November 2016.

4) Grit bin no. 42 (Walton Road) has been relocated from its original position
adjacent to lamp column 30 to a more suitable location adjacent to lamp column
31.

5.4 Winter Service Timetable

The generic preparation table is presented in Appendix G, the table below
sets out key dates in the delivery of the 2016-2017 winter service.

Date Who Action
July 2016 Colas Preparation of WMOP update
31 July 2016 Colas Submit WMOP to PCC for review
TBC PCC T&T Cabinet Briefing Meeting
n/a Colas Amend WMOP as required by PCC
16 September 2016 Colas Submission of WMOP to PCC
TBC PCC T&T Cabinet Decision Meeting
23 September 2016 Colas Issue WMOP
1 October 2016 n/a Winter season commences
26 January 2017 Colas Mid-season review
30 April 2017 n/a Winter season concludes
24 May 2017 Colas/PCC Post season review meeting
June 2017 Colas Post season report to PCC
Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 27 of 33

Page 31



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

Section 6 - Resources

Introduction (Resources)

This section of the Winter Maintenance Operational Plan (WMOP) details the
resources available for delivery of winter services including reserve and
contingency arrangements. (refer ro Appendix B for list of the abbreviation)

Human Resources

The following table defines the key personal responsible for delivery of the
services defined within this document;

Function Title Contact
Responsibility for Plan WMSM 07717 665912

WMDO. and WMSM if
required

Decision maker 07717 665912

First Point of Contact WMDO: 07717 665912
Out of hours contact WMDO 07717 665912

Training

The Service Company is committed to ongoing staff training and education.

It is essential that the decision maker is competent and experienced in all
likely weather conditions. Therefore all staff involved in winter service duties
will receive instructions and training, as appropriate to their duties, to ensure
effective .operation. Training will include; an appreciation of winter weather
forecasting, effective decision-making, and particularly the management of
snow events and implementation of this WMOP.

It is also essential that there are adequate numbers of HGV drivers within the
workforce, trained to drive the necessary machinery, for a prolonged snow
event. Operational staff will have the appropriate driving license be trained to
appropriate levels, such as City and Guilds Scheme winter service operatives’
qualification. Records of all training are kept on file at the Service Company’s
office. ‘

Winter Maintenance Exercise

A trial exercise shall be carrjed out in advance of each winter period to check
all the plant, operatives and ancillary equipment are available and in working
order.

This exercise will normally take place in late September. All pre-salting
vehicles (including salt spreaders), snowploughs, as shown in Appendix J
and relevant labour will be involved and tested.

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 28 of 33

Page 32



6.4.3

6.4.4

6.5

6.6

6.6.1

The trial run shall consist of:

» Salting vehicles being loaded with spreading inserts

* A minimum amount of salt and loaded to test the correct operation of the
unit

* Ploughs fitted and their operation tested

= Priority 1 routes run in full, checking route maps and schedules are
available and correct

= Priority 2 routes, subject to agreement with the Winter Service Activity
Manager

The results of this exercise shall be recorded on Checklist A in Appendix J
and copied to PCC.

Briefing and induction

Manning Levels

There are 8 qualified drivers for winter service operations on.the PCC network.
This will provide a minimum resource level of 2 times the number of

operational vehicles needed.

An additional 2 fully trained HGV drivers are available on request to provide
winter emergency response.

In normal conditions 3 drivers will be on duty at any one time.

In a snow situation there will be sufficient HGV' drivers to operate gritters for
24-hour cover for a prolonged period of severe weather.

De-Icing Material
Type and Specification (See Appendix I)

To minimise damage to third party property and vehicles and to reduce
problems in periods of low humidity it is proposed to utilise 6mm nominal size
rock salt as below. Abrasive grit may be used in periods of extreme weather.

¢ 6mm salt, to BS3247:1991

e Abrasives: 5 or 6mm sharp sand

Following “The Quarmby Review”, issued by the Secretary of State for
Transport, to consider the resilience of English transport systems, new
guidance was issued in Oct 2010 to provide a comprehensive range of spread
rates for different weather conditions and spreading capabilities for the UK
road network. Whilst Colas has taken these into consideration, we will not be
in a position to fully implement them until the existing fleet of vehicles is
renewed.

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 29 of 33

Page 33



This information has been reviewed in 2016 with no changes, however it is
Colas’ intention to replace the winter maintenance fleet during the 2016/2017
winter season.

6.6.2 Storage Locations

For the 2016/2017 winter season Colas salt is stored in the Walton Road
depot. See Appendix F for Equipment, Store and Salt Barn location.

The UKRLG updated its recommendations regarding pre-season salt
resilience stock level in its report “The resilience of England’s Transport
Systems in Winter” issued in October 2010. The resilience levels suggested
are changing from 6 days/24 runs to 12 days/ 48 runs. This translates into a
pre-season stock level for Portsmouth of 864t of salt. The storage capacity at
Portsmouth depot is 970t (850t in a dedicated salt barn in Walton Road depot
and 120t in a non-covered storage bay), 10% more than the recommended
resilience level, which is fully stocked before the start of the winter season.
For the record the total tonnage of salt used in 2015/2016 winter was in the
region of 7571. whp

Colas still keeps a framework contract. agreement with both main UK salt
provider Salt Union and Cleveland Potash. Colas internal growth has
increased the level of salt bought by the company, Colas Portsmouth can
therefore draw on a privately owned 150,000t of salt.

In 2010, it was: agreed that a New Emergency Network is to be considered in
case of salt supply shortage. In extreme or prolonged weather conditions, the
Government may establish the “Salt Cell”, this will control the distribution of
salt supplies nationally, and may require the reduction of the treated network.
It is important to note that in these circumstances, the control of supply of salt
is:beyond our control.

Colas have also been in discussions with the Met Office who can now provide
a more accurate weather report which highlights the road surface temperature
at several locations throughout the City, this will allow us to take a decision
with the agreement of PCC, whether to grit certain roads should there be an
extreme salt shortage.

It is part of the WMSM's task to be responsible for the timely ordering of
replacement salt.

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 30 of 33

Page 34



Section 7 — Liaison and communication

7.1 Publicity

It is important that the all interested parties including the general public are
aware of and understand Colas/PCC approach to winter maintenance of the
public highway.

Queries and complaints from the public will be dealt with directly by Colas via
the helpdesk as appropriate and will be recorded through the PEM system.

The plan will be circulated to the list of stakeholders listed in preamble of this
plan.

Statements relating to policy, and the general level of service provided will
only be made through PCC.

Subject to the approval of PCC, Colas will provide information on agreed
relevant details contained in this WMOP for Public Highways to the general
public using agreed means of communication. This includes a proposal for the
content of PCC Winter Maintenance of public highway website section.

In order to achieve a consistent approach to winter service operations along
routes that either enters or leave the PCC boundaries, liaison with HCC and
the Highways Agency will take place. All communications will take place by
email and telephone as necessary.

Colas will notify the bodies in section 2.2.1 of all proposed treatments once
known, but not normally later than 16:00 each day. it will also notify them of
other actions including changes to planned treatments, reactive treatments
and snow clearance. Communications in severe weather conditions will
include regular updates as determined by the prevailing circumstances

All naotifications will be by email and phone unless agreement is reached with
recipients for transmission by other electronic means.

Colas will consult with PCC, as soon as practicable, on any strategic decisions
required or any events that may have a significant effect on the performance
of the network, such as strategic road closures.

The form at Appendix K will be used for all notifications.

7.2 Reports

7.21

7.2.2

Daily reports

Before 9.30am each day the WMDO will provide a daily operational report to
the WMSM, detailing the treatments carried out over the last 24 hours and any
relevant issues that have arisen during that period. The report shall be
submitted in the form defined at Appendix K. The reports will be archived on
Colas data base and made available to PCC on request.

Regular Updates

During severe weather conditions Colas will provide PCC with regular updates
describing the current condition of the network and detailing the ongoing and

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 31 of 33

Page 35



proposed winter service operations. The report shall be submitted, by email,
by the WMSM in the form defined in Appendix K.

7.3 Media Liaison

In order to provide information on the winter maintenance decisions and other
routine matters the Service Company will inform PCC communication officer
daily in case of severe weather condition and on an ad hoc basis otherwise as
required by PCC.

Any direct communication between Colas and the media will first be vetted by
PCC.

7.4 Internal Communication Arrangements

During the Winter Service period all normal internal operational
communication and instructions will be via landline telephones, mobile
telephones and/or emails. Instructions, actions and reports will be recorded.

All winter service depots and gritting vehicles will be equipped with mobile
telephone communication to ensure contact can be made by the supervisors
and WMDO's at all times. ’

Issue 8.0 Revision: B Date 01/09/16 Page 32 of 33

Page 36



Appendix A

Other Plans Containing Colas Highway Management Roles and
Responsibilities

= Portsmouth City Council - Emergency Response Plan

» Colas — Emergency Incident Plan

Page 37



Appendix B

Definitions and abbreviations

PCC Portsmouth City Council

HCC Hampshire County Council

WMSP Winter Maintenance Service Plan
WMSM Winter Maintenance Service Manager
WMDO Winter Maintenance Duty Officer
RST Road Surface Temperature

TWC Tarmac Wearing Course

Page 38



(¢ Jo | sbed O xipuaddy)

Ajluwoyiun aunsus o] eusayud Buimub pue|bug sAemybiH Moo} 01 G/ZIN 910N

9jeldoidde se sybnojd mous 14 9

Ww/B0z @ mous pajaipald a10jaq N0 pallied aq o} Bules-sid G

JW/BGL © paysiuy sey uiel Jaye pawwelbold aq o] Bupjes-aid v

,w/BG| © suonipuod Buizeal) Jo JUBWBIUBLILLIOD 81048q pala|dwiod aq o] Bunes-aid «£

W/BG | @ suonpuod Buizesay Jo JuswWadUSLIWOD 8lojeq paja|dwod oq 0] Bunjes-ald 2 9 €

(422130 AN @ouBUBUIEI JBIUIAA BUI Yim paslbe se papeojun 1o papeo|) sjodap ui Agpue)s 0 siojelado sionub sejon «C
(422130 AIng daueUSUIRK JBIUIA BUl yum pasibe se papeojun 1o papeo|) sjodap ui Agpuejs 0} siojesado sienlb sejon 2
Alessaoau uojoe oON L

UOI}OY PapuaWWoddy

paunbas urel Juanbasgns
Ji jeaday ou ypm sinoy
¢ Ulyim pajjes
9% -a1d sajnoy
0IM} 2 9%¢§ «€ x € 14 € L | *C b } | Aup sdepns peoy
Aip Aew 1nq
unJ jesdal 1M 80BLINS PROY
a|qissod unJ jeadsal unJ jeadal 92elNs peol
10} Agpuels s|qissod ajqissod uo sayoied 1I9M
pue | JojAgpuels 1o} Agpuels
9% 80IM G puegRg + € pue, ¢ 4 € € € *C 4 } | 19M 30BLNS pEOY
suojipuo)
peoy
Aluo -1
sanoy uayy
Kjuo 9
40 YJION 10y
pajoIpaud y, peroIpaid
paolpald Seoe|d 1s0J) Jeoy | paoipaid
jsou) Jeoy SUoIpUOD suolpuod | uj psiipaud pajapald 1o ‘boy 15044
wwog 10 ‘6oy Buizaayy Buizasyy 10} 1501} Buizasly Jeoy
wuwigg xo.dd Buizealy Bunp 810joq | JeoyJo ‘Boy | Jeoy Jo ‘Boy saoeld Bujuiow 1o ‘Boy
180 S||B} o1 dn Buiuiows pajoipald paipaid Buizealy Buizeayy SW0S Ul Aes Buizealy
sjelapopy siie} oI Aueq uiey uey ‘urey ‘uieaoN | Burzesiy ‘uey ‘ulel oN
moug suoljipuo) Buizasi4 ajluyaqg suolnipuo) Bujzaal4 sujuapiog mu\_,ﬂﬂdu_
suoljpuod
Pay uda3.19 }sedalod

Bunjeyy uoisioaq 1o} saulaping

9 Xipuaddy

Page 39



(€ J0 Z 8bed 9 xipuaddy)

ONIAVYILdS TVNNVYIN HO
TVOINVYHO3IN AdID3dS OL d33N
'H44V1S TYNOILYH3d0 Ol
S1S3ND3Y ONILTVS LOdS OANM

ININLVIHL 1NO AHEVD
Ol 44V1S TVNOILVH3IdO OL
SNOILONYLSNI SISSVd OANWM

A

b

SINIWIHIND3IA
AdIEYTO OL H3OVNVIA
SSANISNG JHO/ANY WSINM

a3dino3y
4l SININTHINDIH AJIAV1O
Ol NSAM SLOVINOD AWM

NOILLVNLIS
AONIOHIANT H3HLVYIM

(SdO TYWHON) S¥H 40 1NO

4

A

SHHOM LNO AHHVYO OL
SNOILONYLSNI SISSVd OQNM

F 3

WSIWM
HLIM SA33N SINIFNLVIHL
3349V ANV SISSNOSIa OANM

(SdO TYIWHON) S¥H 321440

’ 3

INJWLVIYL ONILTVS 1OdS 404 d33N
S3l4dILN3Al OdNM

Page 40



(g 1o ¢ sbed O xipuaddy)

"a|qissod [[e e J| papioAe aq pjnoys polad Yiys jo sbueyo syl ‘I8ABMOH "SainNp
Jayjo Joy palinbai aq jou |1m 9010p(IOM BU) Se Joaye |euonjesado Jselealb 0] pawi} 8q ued sunt ay) Buiyiom Yiys snonunuod jo spouad Buung

"(0€81L 01 0091 PUE 0E60
01 0£.0) paploAe aq Ajessusb pinoys spolad aljes) sesd sy} Buunp suns 8simIsy)o a1e10Ip suolipuod Buljieasld Jayieam ssajun ‘Ajjeucnippy

"He]S 18)e| B JOo) pawil 89 pInoys uni ayj 1099 Buidl-ap Jo sso| Aue JO ysu e S| 81y} 818YAA SIY 000Z PUB 006L Udamiaq
Buipels ‘Buiusas aje| 0} piw 1o} pawr aq pinoys bunjes-aid ‘Jwiad suonipuod diyel} pue Jayjeam Buljieaasd sreym pue s|qissod assypp

‘Aep ay) uj J8)e] yuom s Aep [N} e 9Yeuspun o} 8910}
Yiom 8y} Jo AJjige 8y} uo Jo8ys snouss e aAey |IIm ‘WYBiupiw Jaye ‘sinoy Apes ay) Buunp suonessdo Bunjes-sid Jey) puiw ul suiog a9 jSNW
) ‘JonemoH "pouad Buizesl) ay) JO JUSWSOUBWIWIOD 8Y) O} 8S0|9 pajaidwod a7 109ya Burdl-ep WNWIXEW Jo} pawi} aq 0} spasu Bunjes-aid

uonjoy jo Burwiy

Page 41



Appendix D
Gold Zones, Bridges, Hollow Spots, Transport Hubs, Residential Homes,
Hospitals, Emergency Services and Salt Bins locations

‘ﬂgﬂ -5 LA S == At s Ay
SRRy = H i ~ —N - -
e e ce\j e el Ul 5 =
= et L v, e, o (= ] g
L ] i - - "3;_ ..Ii. it = 1
e - I 5, e =
= i ;e $ ,:--"!"
z ] : ens ) i =
e i T = % M.
e = " 1 & ¥, —:k““ = s |
" - = ‘Qa‘ ; i ﬁ“*@ i & =
[ 20, ot i 3 r-q /- Al
B e e . i = -
O e \\-\ 1 - i
| SN — 3 =) f --‘/ A e —
asa " TR
S N bR Al
e ‘\l l-\\ 7, ™~
PR s =
ool - il

r———a e
— o) L3S
Portamouth PF1 - Maintsnance Works - WS
— = =
Asset Management Mep WBoz8/VUS/Cote/001 | ViR

Page 42

——— —



Appendix D1

Carriageway categories 1 and 2

S FPST FRORTY RATEY
| fe—

— w8 e sy i,

= 4 S el s & oA

% = )
p—

FEE f BT o EE
B D4 BT B Oe

PARERE PR STy ELEY
(LT

#AColas E_"’"%
e L
NTS

Rl

= BT

-t Froow -

[ PORTSMOUTH PFL

- T = T
= 15t & 2nd PRIORITY GRITTING ROUTES - Vit

Page 43



Appendix D2

Carriageway Emergency Network

i gl a i = ~ X
aoan
)
wNE PSS~ ""I o

S

S RS
Ny
% g = T
R

LE i
e

b e -
; = yil =2
=322 N = /=
| — ) T,
'G‘;*-; l“ g4
PL L
w

i

v IV

T

ETIgIER ;' o
H aEColas | arlColas =
i e ==
3 == =
) st e it ™ FORTSMOUTH PFI & W
= RO Twryity TSy Eats Ty Y1y NTS
= — s— o
- " EMERGENCY PRIORITY ROUTES (30%) viB

Page 44



Appendix D3

Carriageway salting routes details

Summary of Priority 1 Salt Routes

Route
No.

Route Area Key Roads/Locations

Design
Responsibility

Eastern Road (from Walton Rd), Havant Road E (to
boundary), Havant Road W, Eastern Road S, Velder
Avenue, Rodney Road, Fratton Way (to Goldsmith Av
RAB), Velder Avenue, Eastern Road N.

Central

sSw

Havant Road W (from Eastern Rd), Spur Road,
Northern Road, London Road (Turn at Park Av),
Portsdown Hill Rd W, James Callaghan Drive (up to
Fort Southwick), Southwick Hill Road, Portsdown Hill
North Road E (turn at Crookhorn Lane) Farlington Avenue,
Galt Road (to Evelegh Road), Evelegh Road (Galt Rd to
Farlington Ave), Solent Road (to Portsdown Ave),
Portsdown Avenue (Solent Rd to Havant Rd), Havant
Road E (to Eastern Rd).

Sw

Grove Road, Old Manor Way, Lonsdale Avenue,
Knowsley Road, Cosham High Street (to Vectis Way),
Vectis Way (o Wootton St), Wootton Street, Wayte
Street (Wooton St to High St), Cosham High Street,
Northern Road, Roebuck Close (and bus lanes),
Portsmouth Road, Chatsworth Avenue, Highbury Grove
(from Chatsworth Ave to Hawthorn Cres), Hawthorn
Crescent (to Wembley Grove), Wembley Grove
(Hawthorn Cres to Chatsworth Ave), Portsbridge RAB,
Western Road, Northarbour Road, Southampton Road
W, Port Way, East Street Portchester, Southampton
Road E, Western Road S.

North

SW

Southampton Road E (from Western Rd), Allaway
Avenue, Jubilee Avenue, Portsdown Road N, Newbolt
Road, Connaught Lane, Rowland Road, Deerhurst
Crescent, Raymond Road, Jubilee Avenue, Allaway
Avenue, Hillsley Road, Winterbourne Road,

North Almondsbury Road, Leominster Road, Ludlow Road,
Hempstead Road, Elkstone Road, Washbrook Road,
Harleston Road, Mablethorpe Road, Boston Road,
Peterborough Road, Lowestoft Road, Sevenoaks Road,
Cavell Drive, Southampton Road E, Southampton Road
W (to Western Rd).

Sw

Anchorage Road W, Norway Road W, Copnor Road N,
Old London Road, London Road N, Copnor Road S,
Norway Road E, Copnor Road S, Burrfields Road E,
Eastern Road N, Airport Service Road W, Anchorage
Road E, Eastern Road S, Burrfields Road W, Dundas
Lane N (up to Veolia Entrance), Quartremaine Road N,
Alchorne Place, Airport Service Road W, Dundas Lane
South (to Quartremaine Rd).

Central

sSw

Burrfields Road W (from Dundas Lane}), Copnor Road
N, Old London Road, London Road N, Portsbridge Bus
Lanes, London Road S, Kingston Crescent, Rudmore
Central RAB, Wharf Road (to Ferry Gate), Twyford Avenue,
Northern Parade N, London Road N, London Road S,
Northern Parade S, Stamshaw Road, Kingston
Crescent, London Road N (to Old London Rd)

sw

Tangiers Road (from Eastern Rd), Baffins Road, Milton
Road N, Copnor Road N, Stubbington Avenue, London
Central Road S, Chichester Road, Kingston Road S, Fratton
Road S, Fratton Bridge RAB, Fratton Road N, New
Road, Baffins Road, St Marys Road (to Fratton Rd)

SW

Page 45




South

Langstone Road W (from Eastern Rd), Milton Road S,
Eastney Road S, Highland Road W, Albert Road W,
Elm Grove W, Kings Road W, Landport Terrace N,
Hampshire Terrace N, Lord Montgomery Way N, St
Michaels Road N, King Richard 1% Street E, Winston
Churchill Avenue E, Victoria Road North, Goldsmith
Avenue E, Milton Road N (to Langstone Rd)

Sw

South

Mile End Road S, Church Street, Holbrook Road S,
Holbrook Road N, Lake Road E, Fratton Road S,
Arundel Street E, Holbrook Road N, Lake Road W, Bus
Route Area, Unicorn Road, Edinburgh Road W, Alfred
Road, Market Way, Hope Street, Commercial Road N
Mile End N.

sw

10

South

Arundel Street W (from Fratton Rd), Station Street W,
Commercial Road S, Isambard Brunel Road, Alec Rose
Lane (to Charles Dickens St), Charles Dickens Street
(rear of Civic Offices), Greetham Street, Raglan Street,
Froddington Road (to rear of fire station), Somers Road,
Winston Churchill Avenue E, Winston Churchill Avenue
W, Lord Montgomery Way, St Michaels Road, King
Richard 1% Street, Winston Churchill Avenue E,
Isambard Brunel Road N, Stanhope Road, Edinburgh
Road, Bishop Caspian Way E (to Queen Street).

Sw

11

South

Cromwell Road (from RAB), St Georges Road, Eastern
Parade, St Helens Parade, South Parade, Clarendon
Road (to Circle), Victoria Road South, Victoria Road
North, Fawcett Road, Lawrence Road, Waverley Road,
Clarendon Road, Osborne Road, Duisburg Way (to
RAB)

SwW

12

South

Pier Road S, Pier Road N, Jubilee Terrace, Bellevue
Terrace, Kings Terrace, Museum Road W, High Street,
Pembroke Road, St Georges Road, Gunwharf Road, St
Georges Road, The Hard, (Station Approach — Queen
St, One Way), Queen St (The Hard — Wickham St, One
Way), Wickham St (Queen St — Clock St, One Way),
Clock St (turning left onto The Hard) and Station
Approach including all bus lanes), Queen Street, Alfred
Road, Market Way N, Market Way S, Alfred Road,
Anglesea Road, King Richard 1st Street, Lord
Montgomery Way, St Michaels Road N, Anglesea Road
N. Queen Street S, The Hard E, Park Road.

Sw

Page 46




Summary of Priority 2 Salt Routes

Route . Design
No. Route Area Key Roads/Locations Responsibility
13 North Walton Road, Station Road, Central Road, Lower
Drayton Lane, Court Lane sw
Medina Road (Northern to Parr), Parr Road (Medina to
14 North Bell), Bell Road (Parr to Winterhill), Winterhill Road (Bell SW
to Medina).
15 North Credenhill Road (Allaway to Ludlow), Woofferton Road SW
Sywell Crescent, Robinson Way, Moneyfields Avenue
16 North Bus Lane, Moneyfields Avenue, Martin Road,
Eastbourne Road, Cobden Avenue, |dsworth Road, Sw
Neville Road, Hayling Avenue
17 South Moorings Way, Furze Lane, Locksway Road, Priory oW
Crescent
18 Central Gladys Avenue, Gunstore Road, Limberline Road,
Mayfield Road sSw
19 Central Tipner Lane, Range Green, Tipner Road, Walker Road sSw
20 South Gamble Road, Malins Road, Sultan Road, Nelson Road,
Wingfield Street (from Nelson Road to Church St) swW
21 Central Flathouse Road, Prospect Road, Whale Island Way SW
22 South Winter Road, Festing Road, Francis Avenue, Jessie
Road, Devonshire Square, Devonshire Avenue Sw
Bransbury Road, Ferry Road, Lumsden Road, Fort
23 South Cumberland Road, Henderson Road, Eastney SW
Esplanade, Southsea Esplanade
Somers Road South, Cottage Grove, Green Road,
24 Central Norfolk Street, Eldon Street, Middle Street, High Street
Old Portsmouth, Broad Street, Seagers Court, Trimmers SwW
Court, East Street
Outram Road (EIm Grove to Campbell Rd), Campbell
Road, Grove Road South, Marmion Road, Kent Road,
25 South Portland Road, Avenue De Caen, Clarence Esplanade SW
W, Southsea Terrace, Western Parade, Clarence
Parade, Clarence Esplanade E.

Page 47




P rtsmouth

;Awdn RT
|
i Portsea tsfand

 Marys rg

Py Loy 3 .

FRATTON

E
& .

b University of Portsmouth

82154

Wavart Rd

Centegj Md

B21yp

Salent Ad

Page 48

82,,

i

-

-

>



YISMUH

Fienon'
p— .

._m.ow..

g O g Y
3 3D e e K 3 ot
’ & . . _ TR 1,
= e 2 e m.l L7 aay aepsuen  WVHS0D WJWN__&%WE.%M“
. e g & o 5 e
£t 2 g onv Armyiy <
Zz E : .@ :
3 2
SRS = :
O.
m_ (O
m (a
Py MBLA B33 5 | .f
L
% i
Py o § : .m ,mo
% 8
PH $2150Woa 1
3015 a1y
g
: 5 | zainow |
Kapim B £ I
. Z
3 w..w. —
| _ . bi




\»ﬁmﬂd

Leomingter Ad

Q-g.

o

¥

Wopfferton:

Portsview Ay

:
A

Portsdown Rd

f b2}
)
I § P 2
=% > E
& g 2
w o
DraytonLn
17
IS
P,
& m
<
i
PH¥O01Gusepy

R

PH inog.
PH uoReys

Pivey

1 1otieiq voq

Portchester Castle' 3

/Mountbatten Centre »

.




)
.
p ——
PEOH YINOWSLIOY -
s plevagan ¢
E & g >
E & ;
o2 “ | 3 U3(0S MOd
;%wm é\@ _H .,.._r. ; & L] ME_EE uo3pQ Qmﬂ‘gbq -
W T - & 4 d =
Sl R £ TR m ¥ ! 3 38 21045
= = L M E . o Y 2 fis 2
g8 2 214 Duikerg L | N g, : o
g N e . N % $
= Ly ‘.I_ . A : i > .
ueyson D g [{ LTS X - o L
: - N : 2 = - . |
N - 7 4
= % Py E‘Sobtwm %v b@b:.u ) h ..\..m.‘
g . sy voyq 00531, & 1
m. g P Duep, mw ¢ duoys auoyg
b z bm.‘wnwi“g 4 Aem Aaeuig .y =
LR e e p
v PYEUIPIA -nomeN = i pY vuichueyineg
= Py Ftipay, 3405 1od _.,_.uh_n_ﬂw.w_hu - P _._QuEm:So.m. T
e PY @8 ;
INITWAM ssetwo
Py iy, —— PH sfeton |
Py PY F—m&:&wag _.
PY profua0y |
]
P Ptqeieyy PH Uotoey, Gy
E PH engpnig g . Py apoyasnoN A
F pPya . = dnpaig
3 M e ..m_W btwwh:wm._m | 3 M e Mnn Py 3jogman
= Z @ : & < .w ] =
2 5 g & 5 g
= o,
nﬂt P ] [} @
= S M w
= S w
P 3Bpaion T £
12 Ainguan® =z vy Bmwx%
.w, : )
.AA.N.N £ .,Qw._aEw&&m 1 X
g "eM 133msmopeayy ol e e, -jclﬂ n
1zg i Py Aismy
Aaipim Loy
L Re) _._mcms\m.u o
Ry,
Sy , | vainow
< 9 veypeyes sawer 10 veybeyp sswser
\.WQ PH puirgy " Piangg
0 pg it

Page 51




Pyumoey

“ P4 PEley,

i
q
. 3 Kensington fid Kengington Rd
| g : g H § g Belgravia fd
® a = g
5 g £ 5 E 0 : Kenyor Ad
- ] 5 B o
R T - T
- ‘g 2 Cotonnd 5 E 8
PandofphiAd g £ §
Lbns ndolph 3 E
2 e E z FeaonRd & > 3
N f L = g Beresford R
. 2 NP »

Page 52

-0 43 /3 T/

|




aaus |

LA B

-
" N =)
N o o
. -~ 4
4 2 : &
ROUTE 6 % Cosham Park + & Chatsworth Ave h aiy Drayton Par
e, 5 OlSwary, “on,
“ = Cr,
— = = Ay S - i
- — Fy & )
= MeDonald's '°9_ ® ] nghba
]:m - If-‘nrt uth Road c; & ,;\9 '."Grm, r,‘%
| . " lh d@". c"»q)
. # Highbury College ’fy
et Tuor Creg «
- rr— - -
iy, P
vy A
i"-‘a_ - b _?(“
e ——— - 5
& . -
-ﬂ F Sco"Ra T
n
Ho‘sea ¥
i ey,
/f e g, &
¥ T— ﬁ&
&
1 g
¥ /\’Orwa ’ &
are) Normandy g i
| Hilsea¥=
i Afexandra Park 4 & |
e ¢ .é"g
Aaka Health &
Aints Clu Portsmouth i B
erley Rd Thé Range &
i Merriva)e Rd
nagdalen Ad Torringtan pg Wesley Grove 2
Mountbatten Centie @ artiey RS Madeira pg Lovett fd 5 | o
. Campton Ag Green Lp g 5 %g
. Ophir ad "@
1/ chadwell B3 gevenburg Ave Gatcambe Ave E gé
vt z & Al Z2 %'\‘?-I
walden il o S o\ RS o - e catid = -
£ . = 3 ewettpd & Hewelt® £
2 st 2 % \Wadnam Rd 2 LocamoRd <
whd 8 P 2 [ Inburst Rd % -
Suode
s G neisen R % Nodth = & Maylield Ad g'
= k4 1
® Landon Ave otn Rd ‘% 3
Wilzon Ry Thurbietn 3 174 Dundas Spu
] <
g Kirby Rd = % % 2
3 o @ e g Winton Rd E g w
.38 £ 3 3 ‘ 3 z 5 Kiln R
MeyrickRd 'S, @ 5§ £ 8 8 s 5
Knox Rd ; 2 z B R4 E £
! a a , B Toys R Us - Partsmauth a
P 1 th Stubbington Ave
8] smoutn
Tm Wykeham Rd oo
N Dg m 3
%" Stanley pg BLnd £ Laburnum Grove ® g
- q = 5‘ =4 g 8 -y 8 &
Fitcroft Rd J B B = 2 3 <
o 2 g P 7]
‘s‘l’a . 2 ] =Y s D 3
9rave RY = 3 %_. s = E
Bevis Rd '§ 2 2 = 2 s .
is R - 2 a1 & . fd ] £
Chichester 2 K7 <
= 59 3 £ ¢¢8 y 5
¥ oz % Portchester Rd o g g 5 F < r§
£ ;&
] S % Wymering Rd e T{ = ts. g
22z G5 Ly is
I & POWersCowt g &
tany Fernes g é’
H Queen's Hd - c__k o

Page 53



R ip.
e ‘ 5 g
| ———— Y 0!::03{ = - #’{
wd “‘ L
Easer” e
5g 3
V8 22
4= - '] 3 -
':8 @ '8' % T .
Eg g = % &
23 3 S
P nwE =
(v g} = 2
w BT a:
T 8 :
' ,_? wg - g % “é‘,
E @5 5 % %
=1 >
- @g 5 @ fvg
?‘2 ﬁ g,- :_11 ;-,‘# ‘yd g S
<:r§ N £ & -
§ & 3 § = K9 % 9, wayles R
o Uy <
s & g = e % )
S 2 %,
Hi .:"' e Bd g e £ % crottonRd
ghgrove = o £ L
%LI‘?' E 5?; g ) l“*qts-\ %
westover Rd % x- % 4 =
W W PAY dpsaye ‘5 p
Q*thrm,-a,s < Idsworth Rd .‘g e g £ 2 ;." % = %
v E 3 7= T ﬁ Z 3 < i ;Qa %
- Ripley Grove i g g 5 g 7 %
k] V 9woypg & PUMOANS  pg josey & £ § G %
g aw""lﬂb}a.-_f i bR &g ? 2
5 PH thy Chesterfield Rd PH 3iepbiuung = 2 ] AR
3 Ty -
P aumsan, P iy -3 BNV 9
HJ250g Ay SURI e ) 8 K
Py U e PH Uosagquy & Py Mwml'!
Oeg 3 uy S')p;ms
& %
. A 1y, E
w *g
Pd Weysoqg,; Q. =
1P J &
P uiBiipuny;  Perch® "3 & G
Kensirgton Fis: s ey
N Y ) L - H
8 BB‘QI'BV‘B Rd Wallace Rd B“dn?\d. E\ E
E “
| " ‘preston RY: % &
1 g o o -1 g Fifth St Glarkes R4
21 2 g & % & ‘ ny
= . - & Y,
P 5 5 g 2 5 “. %
'; _; g T% 'i v shearer A & ‘gg ‘ "% i
; ol H = lord Hel i
Gl & g £ i 5 PH eadsagne PH PIOIPING § Gudk = 5
] Baltour Ad ] 5 - H 2 * %
e & & “® 9 &
‘Beresford Rd- . g F: § ‘?.
DiéyloriRd Drayton Ad - -g i
Emsworth RA Emewdrh Rd % ﬂ
Havant Rd: © o
A Buyey- 3 9; 55
Y -4 3, =
— @ L I Y.\ 3%
L =] B &, et G ak F
iz 2 Koo A oe 4% o
- = PY Assaiy = 1ds ™
~fF z fy s ey 3 o s
5 £ o om e 2 Lo %,
i B s &2 5 PH 51, ; ¥ ‘a” 1o
gvs € i Sty < §
§ & - 5 - 'smz,f%, . = &
< 5 = , : P &»
& ~ ® : O, Sty
v -8 o© %'é i 5w £ & %’?‘ = 2z “? &
% G 2 & Y S 5 @@&”E
| I ‘“@ — g -] % < -
- & e ~ . - - g . ‘%fs




=T 5 o RS T E rogd o S g
e © & 4 £ F oo w% z 9 @n&&
5 goS Sy 0 ban
) Py Sy 2 PH sigag ST k@.._.m, 3 01150
ik ; : 5 - & = &
ooV 7S seya, P 2 ¥ Alatawe peoy pueiybiy 2 g LT = g =
T - < : % _m..._u o..eem_\e 3 E g 5
el - 23 Z g T o, 2 Es g "
- 2 - [ g oo - Y Py ug < 8 2 e
) g 5 Wo.u., o &@ .Cf Py U, T k4 A
. 5,8 o o g ssrou Ptk
= E n P4 vany,., § > 1%. - n.n"u_ g % & § supad
& tpssuom W 3 &5 2 58 ,.m % £
g P pap, By p r - 8 a S E; 5
£ [ oy iy p Moty § F T g 383 Py &5 s, .
& P o ] £ z = s S Plis S ¥oomque,,
5 £
Py Angsutag : Plotises g M Plasay, ..w.. &g m = ] /_w&u g
: 3 Papg, § 0 S ee! . py paadwEd - & o,
¥ 3B Amgsusrg o “Hifpy 3 FE 2 » 53 2
0B M Hogng = u.,vﬂac&&: .Nh.e $55 2 8 2& ©
P o ] x.u»uﬁ__w___k_ a0 2 F L g g @ %55 .55 CDEEQ " h%, =
pu Karshul - Py » = e >y By o 2 S & 2
H Xaee o 2 > = 3 4
p segund d %8sy & : Wsday Gl ¢ & Py G g N B Py w._.v&_@ % D.«o 2 1S o0, _.mﬂ.o 4
& o > W PaISUE, o £ =z 2y
£ 3 T & p LT g, o 1S By o,
N o s & P a1555,. 5 S > ey, M & ! %
b,.d .Dm\* & ssry & = » ‘o mEu .unm 3 (=% .M.&V L 4 s
me»,,u Pissy B 3 ¢A¢$a. S = & 4 Qanvam. 9 ..mu
~ . ] L S i
_ 03 "2, g by, Py & 5 8
! O £, o % ot 1Spulepy % { TS = B
pu feneN ) zaug 61 Wik ? Y0y, k2 oty g g % S 2 a2 @
o @ o & el o = &
& T T i [ P .
= e.ndu = B B uequlw v > .EgP.o ¢w=ocn£w._. . 5.93@ == 10 AirsBA) 9
- 52 £ 2% § i : Y . & YINOWSLIOd Jo Bahiry
S o m 4 w ,D.W "l @nuaay yiusspiog T ()
: S G aor) & S WMONIEL
= N Py < =% . 4% Yy
x §485 ‘ S Ty, g™
3k EH uonesd o & M, 2
i 2 6P Z 25 mwequonely 1 < & % ™
ks 3 GRS - > S ot 3 S ey ]
L o g S @ B 5 N g lIeYpItNg tanowsiiog B 2
o G .q@% ® F 5 3 "9 : g
o - = 2, Y £3 > B = =
S ,.m.qu, ¢ ® pal % t\_.mcbotn &.wue ....W == BaSINOS 3 yINoWs}ng
= & @ S eneg ¥ wreg euoi
PY 3(EUrgy
i oY . apLny
o 7 Laauisg oy g, SRR s ol
e - py ‘T pMplaygyays 1g Bt
o R P 7
o g R MOl rs e uoomay 2 y
2 & < - 1S amsseL) (o Hwag Buiddoyg
LA - 5 - - : % e
% ¥ o3 2 = s 5 e
& Bl o E w % 2
& ned unlSBUY Y = S py sy 22
i} i\
’ PH ufsag> P ffesjep, _- n\b: 2 < x - @
HIEo yLOMUre) o PUSAR 1 Cas e
- ) % ) A
“ 9
Pa (2dny t o B N . mm g83aLNoy
B PY Yuq g 3 U = =
% Mg | m = = 2 % o~
i 3AY apu ¢ = T 5 = = 3 2
: PS o s 8 2 2 £ £ il & 2

Page 55



23 S‘T"Qroveﬂd EE 2 c:'jt_ ] 3
_- 2 22 3 2 37
ROUTE 9 Bevis Rd &
dmore Square )
Nl g L) ‘g't" i Chichester Rd
The Ship & Castle v 4?0.77
Travelodge Hotel m o
oy L Pmlammq ith z é F Pl
First Wessex = o 2 § <3
Rd 3 E = W
ate? o pE = 2
§ £ =
=3 S 3
| % @ powerscourt Rd
Biittany Ferrles » = nd
P Clydebank RS
£3 Queen's Rd
» LD Lines Ferries % L
Portsmouth ferry port ; op 2 Arms
0 -
stittoo St L] Winchester Rd
% B
Haghingron Ad % 3
" ]
Shell Station & = & Huckiand Park - pinsreed s
Py
T3
=
g Arand & ® -\—ogon\OP'd
. | H
Fey ol i E‘b 2 E4
. {1 vk 5
n'nb Os‘)ec’ A g&@n St 5 Y é
3 13 é’ Seymour Ci 3
g e O 2
] Sul S 2
F) tan fg a2
i d o
" ¢ B v .
(;\rc\l\“ HMNB Portsmouth Hetbens P}mge s St Suftan Rd
Teafalgar Gate Pass.. Charles Digkdhs o ;
Birthplace M 2 & b g
- weonst £ 03 Y, . Manor Infant Schagl
5 g § £ % S
z z & 5 &F A
= % w Morrisdns $ ) QP ﬁs 2
c n & & &
gm 3 g é,,'g 5 g Hampsh
é? ad Q§ L
5 waasy <
< panor R
T,
@ %r gy
&
\d Pl
& & e  Portsmouth .,
é" = SRS gy ,@‘é‘ %‘ Academy for Girls
5 ; 4
5 X o 2 %
5 Cormwal® 2 .
" PR (13 St Mary's Chuden &
= % %‘ﬂ %
& g urch Ad
s g . ¢ guchBd O 5
@ ¢ a, Mfbonald's mouth g o
2 é S oad 7 -
& 2 s §
% g 3 < B S
% B i o, E] Alver Rd
o
s 1% 9 % . 2
58 % = 2 pontrst St ok 2 %
$ 7 %z B eynaSt - g
X L . 3 £ £
Cascades L‘S‘QP 's:‘vb ”é 8 @ gyning E il &
opamg Cevle pa J Crasswell St !
F = Q. 3
S
Tesca Portsmouth
Superstare E
S copurast & Shefiield Rd
A .
:%? el st Arundel St Sandringham Ad
g. o Asda Petrol Station B

Page 56



ro =3 s g — =
5 -4 “Ye oy 4 2 ~
o) & By i @ Ll
...1\_ (2} e 7]
A %, o ; 2 o 2 £ »
= = T & b Y J=! g e F N
m nm W = D Ry S Q.\.wm.b o& m m % Heg m‘.um & =
a 8 £ 3 Yoy, e, K4 g & % » 3
i b & & By, 5 & S 2 . B & 3
pukebny ~ 2 “oy i i = B G
5 T a
PY pug %, ISIREEM £ % &
LN % =l N B oz
g S uoibulEn = N E B
L Id U @ O
% (00498 AIoLg [ — e < aiys104 Jo Ayssaaun £
It.\\\.‘ l..J_ | T = m
.“1. — .‘ punosg uon|
. sanaag pl
3 :
quv‘ o) bﬁ..h.\ Jf._.m_. a wﬁr.r ‘..W/A =
9% & o
, 3 % 2 8
wom..t&.m. : " & &
2 Em.c:m S g
[ e 9 wopbury &3
= , 2ua0 stiodg BQuIEs| ay) - uw
B Anuniuwos ey - g
g s '_ i
g = : IS AIBANESI0 fount YINoWsog - | I nows|o,
B s u_._.mss B 3 3 d jeyping 3y Hod D
o & Poysyen 5 e 2
el ) &
2 ¥ 5 @ S
- = e 5 % 2 0dBUIN0S 3 YINOWISLIOY <
- = 5 Massadng s K B v X
m m Yinowispod epsy e .000 @ &Q -
i Z “ > ¥ 4iBd BLOIJA
B 6? ;
7 18 191nes %
A uoneis _E«Uﬂ Epsy
wﬂ-.-._nﬂ_ﬂm |u....._|. [=Teilly is E.DEJ._Q
00 . =1
ousaus 5 8o ~ o.%q O
W alolssedng o& =
Z nowspoy 05831
g ° . 4
= 15 [1IemsseID S o.wo o S0usg Buiddoys
e a o fa Sy ] nmu &MV ~ S3pEISE]
u = - A T »
3 m 2 8 B e 2 ] & Q 0L 3LNOY
= = = I = o &
o] (o) eaudd = = 3 < r
B - = 18V = =z = L
e U = 5 g g -

Page 57



= F)15e) LaSYINOS

& U3 SpRUEIS

: 58¢y, 3
e,
Fidey I3URey I wnasnyy Aeg-q &
3) ke
uetdsd bmcm.\qm
ap® o = 3 oy
& g =)
g o
g = &)
z o = o
g e g o
2§32 g 3
e g i . < %
% A £5 Ty, kS
s ¥
3y zm.m.ruw m,md .uew‘ %%_an a,w\
o .._...w ol &mNu
'y Py E:am:mm = z @4@.. =
= 19 Buyes -4 m. & .a,v .%W
2 2 N
] il @ ¢
ac i5 Py mc.SDU M. Py wEmQ 3 =5
gttt E40g g2 8 ¥ Asdtawag peoy puenbiy 2
A T o o
- T < %n
e - =
.%&6. 2z a iy g -3
o , o B &
rsieg § # &
a ﬁ_a_ -‘M .n..\_. Wo 5 o = m
5 L% 2 . o
rM- Py _quc_:m@t J_____.WS‘ ..n.dw .m_h uw mr.m: ..Wnn.. % Nwa
g fYy P > =& e pm.
5 Plonbpugy o " Preuss, & 5 3 ;22 ¢ W Ay
% Py Pray ~mm&5 M.- nwo M W. = i
oy - n & & 3 5 i
& Hopzey 2 P Prayye, g o 3 Py & o =)
2 g Pygis M = F3 g ] = & 3 =
z s o $ s & i Pey @ P
s Py & a, 03 & & g a3 & Sleg 12 INF
ke i ray, ¥ FFE f P
z WStigpsn & LI g 14 &
= Py xag,, Aag = £ 3 = 2 g Ptgy &
Ppoyy g « g 3 e ;_bb%n. g o 3 o
BY xge PH 1y §F3 & s Py Yoy & N % Py
i *oss3 &£ WShan T &2 rwague T ooy, O 0 o Sewos 2 Yps
3 = B pu passuerg E g, % 3 o IS6 & R
x 8 = = o 1y ty
S Py Al 5 P 31559 gt D Py g ; )
& fx, ssy 2 2 oy O F T ey, ¥ ¥
.m..mw Py 85y nU., .«.nu. Q.—.O.an M&.. ,.&uo\ G.Oﬂu v @ o
12 fa! 2 g fo! g U7 suaugy Ao . b&.\&. .wmf.m, b5} m_.,m W %.
o = UL, £ = 3
rnduind o U2 Buimog m.bﬁu_‘,\ t_:ocwxﬁa £ Qm.,._u:cms_ & ..m\..\m.@ &, ¥ w g = &
a & & Yy UOW ; o J ] Es 59
£ 2 = = % o, PH g  pug 5 Qe
= E 2 IBg UOHIA ¥ P, Uelapa, e -
W g B2 Mg UTHIA & 0 ] & A IYBING Lgys & LINOWSLIod J0 AUSiaaiun =
= = 5 . U
g 2 3 ] .m@r cwowﬁx __anuany (wspiol e = i
Ed ap LA = - uonelq 2 b
P § 5% & Ay P G
I z 3 : 3 “, 0
E 43 e 2 8 Y, kL 3LNOoY at®?
2 @uﬂ.& Z 5 mjrquonery A : %
m ,w.vwo o3 23 .s. 2 ..vatza; w o n_@a._w
R g S iy 5 o1 oy [IBUPING YINOWSHIoY 7 TR
3

Page 58



ROUTE 12 I % Fleet Way 3
0, ) v
INCLUDING TEMPORARY ‘f»,_.,? . o
ROUTE FOR THE HARD' v giewd
R -
<& 4 S Ak & T Crassw
+ \ “.n(\\‘ g: *®
o o
-‘ G o
| Y, o ST Arur
 Portsmouth 'iz%
-.list_oncal_l_pgckgg_lrd-‘_l z Station
L] 1
! '\Le_(\'i =N
A Portsmouth Guildhall
<
d G

py Agewng

S Z
‘&eﬂ w & g
9 & £ 428 o
& o = &
& S o o
Uy ! o 7
“a Kfng_ S E % QQ"&:
[ . S
% Vorke g ‘,;’ ﬁq' o, "?ar,oﬂ
2 5 ' S el ] G’Ucr@
& a5
& 2 &  Bus
£ ¢ =
g P F
1, '
aMbrog) St 8 Ed“’.ﬂlu 7‘ § o
HiXe ‘9d = E_
3
. 33'2-“3 Cres o5
& 4
k=) &, A
o ; e T Sy § e
43'6 5 @ 33 Ao top qu?cl
%, o 9 5 -
> 5§ 3 Yo
zZ o i
% Osbo G.a ‘s'fe! y 1
e Ra £/ o
Cy ¥
’bf@o Sy
<,
' ,90'

Page 59



" . -
L4 orsee " 5 “
ROUTE 12A / J - &
\ g On,
Margy,. % g, HILSE N
Wiz, By HILS A Orwa), P
Tipner ¥ q
pner Lake g
[
Nmrnandy' Rd & &z g
& 3 v
r:," & =
< & ”
= 0, &
Alexanitira Park A ,;‘3' e Ay, QS';
% 3 & e
= K
") R o hI'Fi;:llctn Healt
qu Meredy, el Amberley ag 2l Portamou
A é’* Merrivale jy
Magdalen Rd p Torsingtn pg Wesin
- Mountbatten Centre = . Madei
g pantley Rd adeira Rd Lov
2
5 Ophic B Compton Ry o
Al
Fipne! o z z aadwell Bd meMenburg Ave Gtcon|
Brick 4 Wolden ad 7 ] ot R -
Kiln Lake T %z ad Hewgtt pa & uewelt Rd i
Aaris ad i a< ® - Wadhaf e
: 2= guode M @ & mhustRd & Logor
sgst Way AT % Notth end Ave =
3 Mo Gnfise A 2 Mayfield Rd g
s = . don Ave a3
%Q)a Wilson Ra Lot Thurbern Rd g 5o
b g z 2 & g
% z g Kirby Rd 4 % 1
2 A=} o
E] 2 v m = )
e B Moyrickpe € & % % = g g 3 wintenfd &
=4 e B I+
Knox Rd 3 E S 3 5 2
N L za 2 2
_ | Portsmouth Stubbington Ave
Whale Island Whole Ialang Da Wykeham R¢ 5
l‘-"}- Stanley R, by Rd 2 N 2
¥ Ad = - w & Leblrnum Grove 2
I Ritcrott Rd s 3 § 8 £ g &
| a7 “ & 8o g2 & El & g
p'\el“e (’ﬂgrg,,e Rd < £ g ? § & g ;
A = = -4
Bevis Rd e’ E z z %
o Chichesta 74 =
a7 z 9 9 3 ] z 3
2 g2 ;% Portchester Rd ¢ o 8 ‘E
lres cartedRd § ; EY ?E Wymering Rd i i _:E" 2
lith, UK - st | - ) i E a a 5 &
K-St H&ﬂeg-JE : p Brittany. Ferries s 3 =5 POWErscour gg n
e Fian |
7. Queen's Rd
&
Slj:\\n@s\ 9& Winchestes Rd 5 % ‘% g;
R ° 2, watta fd 2 e 2 4
Tty = e 2 3 F:4 2
Ry & s 2 New RAE
Sititag, ¢ B Sorort? e G
] > §
| S L4 E
Jar o SUKIRNO § < 2
o - o
LD . & Sutan®d “?"l o
g S oo § 5o Ok )
§ g L -
£ @ PP 2 Mingston G
- J ) Q.b > & E L Emelery L :
! F et a & 2z & H
I % 3 s
o Ch "‘fﬁp L Manor Rd g 3 E
= 4

Page 60



KA — —_ .
— .B\WT e —— j&nﬂw}i’.
t SIysiep) voibuiey., i —_
- . ‘ e .
e HIEL UINOWSLIOZ e
=ARIBUY WBGINDg Sap -
® pue ysmoag ) Sennt
i % abayog AngquH < 5
o&@ 8, ﬁ&,u.,.f & 2
(3 % = =
C m\..u. O.s._mu A.._..‘.... ﬂww. .mw,;nw ..m
& 9454 2 & 9
S : P
m% 5a ) e
4 v
o & s 2 c..__oﬁ____w K4 S;.o%ﬂ.m
w,. ¥ WIe4 Uo1ARl &wt 43 2AY GoMS RG]
z
g ungsules & o 217 550 3
3 begidee suryy - PU 108pLy,,
v o
ueu%,_.b.. an Bjepsuo WyHS0D |
$ _ e @
ofyos pjenbuad 2
£ 3 e x = e BRI =¥
- z m - . W & _..).Wwb B
T =4 £ c  ¥WlUesipg X o any Ly d o
auyntd @ ﬁmnvv uuM 3 a3 m mn_u.. B4 e __.m..t_mmhe
g ¥ a 1 : — \
: 3 2 T _ S 5 & _
35 o g .R_u 5 =8 - P Liagpy
.m [ [ .M_ &
= E T =
L " £
N2 FH luepe
m
&
@ é
Eaj = =7
T puybIRnd PY WBIOS 5 = 3 -
ﬂ.u.. m m .M ....m.fn.-._ mn DLl Sthtme o o

Page 61



pisi4 buike)d
¥ atuoag biiry

%

Bt

== weysa)
X
g &
@ T...nu..qm_tkau. N
= 2UBJ WJERH WEYSED =l 2,
p
! . Y Uy oucmm “@ALBS DU INGIY
.% g ® |enuan yinog SHN
S = Py 100y2s AiBwiiig euipaw & Py
o i g,
E z oy o % ¥ i3 Sy,
2 z " =y < auozield @
o uw._m.xsc,ww 7y m
Q
B =3
B i
(=N
£
d 0
g 3 s
i 3 5 = MM e
py inds > F ]
- i : 5
5 Py @ P
m. 933.? ] e a o...u._o aw\u.\o
: q
A i N
4 £y P duay pa PO i
10.38pLpung
N oy p1ojyaad
PY Sigepsy,
SHyM 1 3LN0Y
PH RLUELIES
Py 2180 .

Page 62



¥ Aeme| |y

E:ncwbm ig

1elg

W femeyy

ﬂm. aiopAeagy

P P.:q 7 ey

o,
oe™
pat®

Dy fingpat =

.w\co«mEEEa

s

PY uapsiepy

“Ay Aemeyy

nm‘%HmQEmI
- 8847 uoibujon
=
3
%.
>
)

pi Jajs oo

Y

&
Ll
<
=
v
(=8

Pd3wnog r@?@xﬁ |
and % yam
L' 208
=
&
S pudupis
&aaw
Q
Ay aunogsajod
0,
%S
%
%
2 %
% ¥
%A\\ Pk
.va
%,
(2
K4
P35 UMoay. & Sunnesy)

Wbﬁﬂﬁ w_nc.._.w
§L 31LNOH

Page 63



AT 4 *u
Hilsea=2= [:3
] I
m ‘ :m
vt
. i
Q;' ’-];3 1 Wl
s |
&
Roko Health & Morrigons w
Club Portsmouth;~ ‘ &
The Range &
Wesley Grove .
. E kﬁ'ﬁf{;‘;
Lavati Ry o
U 2 2
Green | a D %
, g 5
Gotcombe Ay t B
£ 2
. oz
Aflcot Rd © '& 3
g § 3
Locamonpg < = £}
3
>
)
w2 Dundas Spur
i3 ;
m 23 8 2
ton = 3 a 2] *
A T ¥iln Rd §
a = £ )
4 ! . .
= . Toys RUs- Portsmouth & & Carphone Warehouse
‘I
T Rd
E
Bltter:
y "rhields R 4y
< . @
= Great Salterns Course'at &
£ Portsmouth Golf Centre ?D
i ) @ g
= & ‘
5 E =R %
2 S 5
&l I &
i g 3 :
Aa g oy R Great Salterns \
@ Recreation Ground .
o E & N -
@ L F oo Loy .
g :@‘ .C? @ g r~ nAl"'e
wu w g .,rg’:, 5 %:! s
= e a I 4,
- ® % 3 & § £ & Uy, .
b A E S 28 0 52 2% T
“ &3z g3f 8 ;. a0
x 3z ET A N S
S g eSS Portsmouth College 5
I =i ¥
g 2 i
i §Ba ins Pond 4
5 5 |l
» o) @ fve ﬁ
3 i€ :
L = o = e lonking Sea o

Page 64



= T & R A s, 2 Jor ™
= Z & Aied uoniy Sy oS .ﬁoog\
4 % o > M )
Q. Q b& S5
.m.,\ b@*&
B -« °a 2 Sy
z : L by
o B % 2 3 Hoysy
) . g = a
St 3 =] T 3 Yy B 9 \\;
o ® peoy ABMmsy 307 = =) & o o uaag buymog Oc
.w g YR BTN }I8ef UONI 92y
kS - ° p: 018
1M
35n0HgRISAC % = (53 any i =
1921540 PIO 34 3 ) 2 = g g ¥ R UOIN mm -4
T (] = - A0S0
& 2 2 2 £ = puag0iased > 5
a n 2 T
- (1] =
a
uoy @ |eoyas E PY 3300,
% Qs
Incaien sy pyg w03 o 4D 5
. < )
oth % £ <
0o ZE & i F f
e 2 g E & P £ 2L » 50K
> Q =2 = = o
= 2 = © = = " x g =
= D & = 2 e = &
- % & e o ®§ fwedwn
-3 ey 2 G aw_wﬁ,.w &
a
S £ 2 | z
aoue? &
el <
3 uosPN 5% o §
o % Z
L 27 5, %
WWRd oy, zoo@ ,%67 % Amcbo
YE o..o.vv 24 o
%
2 %
ot Bupispues pusT ¥ %
7N
W 03 poog 3y
[}
z ¥ As8j3wad Loni,
- 10098 gy
= ke 6
1004 H Lo
g 3y, o # * 2L 3ALNoY —m
5 ey & S g /
) 3 g g A

Page 65



.{..r._ﬂﬂhg_{.d ¥ M._ m ek .W [12] == ud gl Py
. g | 5 PAASLUTIINGE] 5 pufgng
: 3 P B A
. ‘ ; < P WS
PRSP NG | B
H aay. uotbuIqamS.
ssnayaies auoydien @ w pinowslog -snyshoy | 2 2 -] 2 & g E z
§ oY Ul 5 & ¢ . z s g = RET &
g 2 83 puloum g &5 £ 3 i
g g 5 ¢ z kg -
| [ 2E - _ oY
g sepung a @ S Py UsRRINUL g LOPU
= 2 . 3
2 R — 3 yuoN pat
LY
= — £ pyremnyu S ] b
..% > Pp—— o m i o WwepeN m. 5 o
5 5 punewer 3 PdBamay e &
S S Puway o g e g3 i
= = LA
b % prpeus 4
T A < m ¥ ,, " 35&0
jat 6 %, < L3 =] U 33 PH Umduspy -
: % Y = i pases oo
g b LR £H a0y Py EfiSpeyy A
s > . s1epbew
" .M K049 }bﬁmﬂg .EED«QC‘E&H . L?.wuv_ _ﬂﬁ i Hepe!
PH Mestayy. g 4y
e ~ ‘
I e = y_u.m‘.&utwaca( t.ﬁ..w&.wb«
& < Wnows1iod Gniy : PY By,
sosow: O - %% ylieap ayoy @y s
e’ & 3
Yoy, 8 B e e T Hed eIpuExaly
= EDQ .m..
§ &
31y \\u..au.\. = g %
i = a s
% y Hwﬁ_f & M & PY Apirewsso
N8 éwm g mm&m..\go 3
3 5 V z o
& * Y0
o g P o %, ey
& na\._.v.,..v “
& d %
. §
huww g L g1 ALNoNA
F T §F 3
= . i § 7

Page 66



SERTYLTN

oy uapieh

oY uepieny

JEN0H Aermsisen

]
sowin yuid LLY

Twyford AE

JIEgAL 18U |

=]

]
A & .@QQP

suonnog PINdwod

w

-

[0OY3S JOIUN[ MBYSILEIS

Target Rd

Hilldowns Ave

61 3LNOH

Page 67

Uia




S ST 3 I 3
\ Se_ - v B o = “ [+}]
-- e gy § & ¢
. o I " = = a2
' 2 4 2 o = Y
Bevis R T = 5
re P
L o
N
. 4(',0 Chichester Rd
a0 ‘7
(275 | w TrAVElDdge Hote "
o - , - Portsmouth 5 ?’ E Pe
aRd 8 3 -
e 2 2 3
part® L3 g = W
& = e =1
F o g8 Nl
! S 9 A
Forrie o 5
o ] g , " Powerscourt Rd
| f [ deebank Rrd
275 - Queen’s Rd.
“c:? Armg
. PP T
3 ] String % winchester Rd
2 | % %
.« “sshington Rd B Z
n ¥ § ‘o ) L [ood
i > A Buckland Park 3 =2
I > P asteed
4t
Arnau® 2 corono®
i , g o g
%\.‘-o ‘é'qﬁﬂ tel s g x 2
& S @ 4
g & Seymour.Cl Z
'Suf “? 2 . _'ﬁ:}
g tan Ry o
% " =9
Prince's St
1=
n o y \ -
ictonia St ~ & Oy
Vict S ? u@o anor Infant-School &
oy RN &
& F % )
Is & < G o
& : S
S o 5 £
) 5 ¥ &
& L 5 R Hampsh
oF S

Page 68



Lower Derty rq
m 2 Derby Ad
., Rd Stanley R §, North End
\ &
Simpson g S
Seagrove g
2
Bevis Rd ;,.?
<tmore Squai {f
The Ship & Castle - 4?0&;7
Travelodge Hotel
Pt
First Wessex » o
.. Rd &
garte® é‘!
2 &
=
Brittany Ferries » 2 ] &
L clydetanck &
LD Lines Farries -
Portsmouth ferry part
stiing St
&
=2
Shell Station & g P
g £
=5
= =
£ 5
Suel st 5 =
~ R
g g ey
T
Sultan g
: s BE
o \E=1 R o St N L ,
cired e portsmouth esbect _ Fines's St glianag
rafalgar Gate Pass,.. Charles Dickens ) ;
Birthplace Museum = R I R T Dy
yictorid 5 A
2 5 F %
F o ' =
z 5 = Morrisons § Q?
z El g ] é -E:';’
= S Ry T
L » & 2
g & pd £ &
S ety A
& -
Chure, Ty, o
) h‘s" l’e'fﬁd je
(=] e

Page 69



LB 3
; oY ¥ e
® = =3 =
“ o o P & 5,
a9® IPEIE (113SeD \mmﬂoo@.?am nvn\.u
> a )
ol 274 i
W faspg g °F -
Z &.)0 > W
P Kinga, g ¢ £ r
: %m.w = @ 009 By say CRINSIeR m.a..m ;v..oa W & . A%,
L 3 & ¢ 8 s &
= x @ ]
P4 ey 3 y &
. o Py Slnp e
. .uc.wa_m.., s reyap oo # g8 A — g ¢
a08® TE 2 v Asiaas peoy pueiyliy E
- [ L] ]
5! =5 B = N
inos 0¥ 2% 7 B g &
5 o $E17 ¥S1Z9
= B AWAL] o
= e 2 © aneayy sb
(-1 s 24 up o 3
v N "y 2 25§85
e = M o = 4
umooﬂvo uw.m.,n um‘o&am.oemu ® Py Em_:.‘.mwe S “m unn. 2 &
& PY pray Sy & W._.-. m. %8 g GUCV
PY i a 3
py Aingsuesg & Playisey = Py pya 2 3
g -1
=1 3 2. B “
+ eq Angsusig 2 = - -m@“ﬂ_mnnc.ﬂu
Xasy,
b oy feisBunt ey
Gy ﬂﬁ.ﬁsc:_.n L4 F oo
é o
Z 7 papaisueg O m.O
=] o & 3
< 22 CAl=
E 5 B &
g 7 = & g By, “
o Lanswo0 o UsaIg buymog . o . o By w&cﬂw Siauuepy 2 s ‘@. :
3 5 z = b ﬂ Bt Lo oy oy W ol o
=y T = T 3 2 g P4 p,
uwu w % g g E ,w. MiEg UTHIW * > 405 a@a&ﬁ a%mé
= T e = B B = S 5
o B 5 B m_ I E 7 (23 anuaay yinuspjon
® =3 210 _
& & = oy w0 LA o = uonNed i
e 3 2 S g3
e 2% g ga
2 £ @%3 T A3 mopeduoneld
o : e LN . o
W a. ﬁw&u o»wﬂﬁ - = D &
S & il rl o =

Page 70



ROUTE 23

!l R

Lavitence Hd

82154

Page 71



e o T 7 —
4 5] =2 o . v J.erc o 13mo] 3ienbs
g > L &L & = S
> & 2 N F & g o
. g &V ~ .y @ a8 &
% &% L o F » = &
= > g E 3 ; = & >
el = E F a ..%h w o W2
& @ po, s g 2o LN g ¥ S
& & = PSizg g &° 25 N T 4, ©
X )
2] o w 2 > o %,
3 L 7
% 2 18 payg- ¥ e««
A
(3]
m .m.. @ ﬂ\.u B
g 15 oo, £ < P @, % 153593
] 2 @ D, %
e St
5 = 2 £
g 8By - 23 o
W |ﬂﬂ /.P«
54 ] S
2 S o
%) & [77] s ]
bt 2 18 ajpaoe ¥ © & Sh
5 s MRS - s oV E
D, m o , o nDa' @ & _._Jfo Z
g, g 3 ey £ g =8 " & 3 Aifjeg xadsy
% a - & - Z
& 5 @ g & & & :
-a .m @ 000. m_.?cv\..ﬁ
a O-nv ?ﬁ#r.&. \
1S aoplem tea z F- ;
. = 3 N B2 @ -
et g N o = a o
5 = Iguoibuiay . & wauet® 2% = o Punug sods o e
A gy Holsuyy INdWsPod Jo. Anseaiun = Z % & PHEAUWDL SIH n.m = S
] = e
A : i
2, .Q:.E.E::Q 110} Ui = m m
) pUNGIa UoRERIIS 3 2
SADIAIES PALIUN r.w. =
[izd
yors . . L 2
Yo awed? & i
%, < & wed %
" £ o pur %,
% o 3 il
S. & Z2 -
o> [ Szinog)
jaurug wopbupy S z S :
J - anued suods plegues| gt PN : a = =t i
%e&mm © Ruunitie) 214689 & & J € o \W &l
FM oy 4 IS weyisaig 115una) 45 (anoiusiiog W jleypEns E:eEw_r._m_m\.M & «aamu 16 260H90 = BULT [BAE: | 150
e = 1948 1 1934
J Lo ] .-u‘.wa uan -]
& o M 5y
iy v 2 b am.,.ﬁu
% %ﬁ ; = 2 vZ ALNoH
33 G = == £35UIN0S % UINOWSLIo S , 3
w® ® o e
s ® 2 % nw&f e 2 = = =

Page 72



£

= = o (i3 =
5 = g %‘ -%: %b/ =] E m.ln:
\AwrenceRg - 5 % & il
3 § 3 ¥ S
3 = £ £
% PH l.!ﬂunoa ;N: E § E S
! " i s
by Ploy IdusImM = 3 _‘ft“g égpﬁq@
- F= T &
Pl po £ )
g Py = P, S P sy
5 Py, o K ﬁt'? £ 5
g - =
B, ) i % . By Tang g = 2 Qﬁos-g,% ot r%f
£ i E by ey, = g Dy Mo <
~ ¢ R 3 By 4 = TN
[} S, 2» use, 2 g 0
° w MY Winouy £ -3 £ &
5 g & Pty @ 5 f & 3
| LOpA A @ i
| t% @ g G
g ts1dg | kép P 3ouayy, E
é ».}-"6\ N'vommﬂ o W -
IMalvern
claierice 89
0 510, > Lennox R4 8 o
4 2
aﬁ”s 8
Vo P
g L
9 &
: H
» ¥
_ z <
2 3 E
e %O‘%J(’A é
z
[~
(=)
N
15 va ° E
SHINOS: 1, S
'3 @5t 3 <
& 15 aypy Is é
z 3
L]
!
a
3 o

Page 73



Appendix D4
Salt/Grit Bin Locations

Bin No | Location
1 Coleridge Road junction Wordsworth Avenue
2 Fort Southwick junction James Callaghan Drive
3 Tintern Close junction Winterbourne Road
4 Lime Grove opposite No 3
5 Allaway Avenue adjacent lamp column 33
6 Racecourse Lane opposite Community Centre
7 Racecourse Lane adjacent lamp column 4
8 Southampton Road adjacent lamp column 72
9 Ludlow Road junction Blakemere Crescent
9A Meadowsweet Way junction Wymering Lane
10 Wymering Lane junction Hythe Road
11 Sundridge Close adjacent lamp column 3
12 Southwick Hill Road junction QA Hospital Emergency Access
12A Southwick Hill Road junction QA Hospital Main Entrance
13 London Road junction Southwick Hill Road
14 London Road junction Chalkridge Road
15 Widley Path near Widley Road
16 East Cosham Road junction Courtmount Grove
17 London Road near lamp column 48
18 Dell Close adjacent garages opposite No 2
19 Oakhurst Gardens junction A3
20 Christchurch Road junction A3
21 Hilltop Crescent junction Portsdown Hill Road
22 Penrhyn Avenue junction Penarth Avenue
23 Uplands Road junction Seaview Road
24 Farlington Avenue junction Blake Road
25 Gillman Road junction Woodfield Avenue
26 Beverley Grove junction Portsdown Hill Road
27 Second Avenue side of No 144
28 Havant Road junction Waterworks Road
29 Central Road junction Station Road
30 Havant Road outside 174
31 Hilary Avenue opposite 34
32 Medina Road junction Northern Road
33 Northern Road outside Royal Mail (South of Bus Shelters)
34 Northern Road Bus Terminal access
35 Portsmouth Road Bus Terminal access
36 Northern Road northbound approach Portsbridge RAB
37 Northern Road southbound approach Portsbridge RAB
38 Western Road junction Portsbridge RAB
39 Tudor Crescent opposite No 35
40 London Road (the old water bridge)
41 Walton Road (on bridge)
42 Walton Road adjacent lamp column 31
43 Walton Road junction access road to Colas Depot
44 London Road opposite Hilsea Lido adjacent lamp column 126
45 London Road south of footbridge Hilsea Lido
46 London Road junction metal footbridge (Grit Only)
47 Military Road junction London Road (Grit Only)
48 Norway Road approach bridge East
48A Norway Road approach bridge West
49 Tipner Lane junction Tipner Road
50 Moneyfields Avenue side of 199 Dover Road adjacent lamp column 2

Page 74




Bin No

Location

51 Copnor Bridge junction Tangiers Road

52 New Road opposite No 313

53 Sultan Road adjacent underpass

54 St Marys Road adjacent bridge East

B54A St Marys Road adjacent bridge West

55 Stanhope Road junction Commercial Road

56 Greetham Street adjacent Jacobs Ladder

57 Northumberland Road on island adjacent to Nameplate
58 Fratton Road southbound near Selbourne Terrace
59 Goldsmith Avenue junction Francis Avenue

60 Goldsmith Avenue junction Milton Road

61 Bransbury Road adjacent lamp column 12

62 Ferry Road west of lamp column 55

63 Southsea Esplanade junction St Helens Parade
64 Richmond Place side of Waitrose

65 Clarence Esplanade outside Hovertravel

66 Cambridge Road junction St Michaels Road

67 The Hard entrance to Interchange

68 The Hard exit to Interchange

69 Kingsley Road outside Flat 188-194

70 Broom Square junction with Broom Close

71 Burrill Avenue outside No 39

72 London Road junction of Portsdown Hill Road
73 Galt Road junction of Grant Road

74 Portsdown Avenue junction of Moortown Avenue
75 Alec Rose Lane junction Mary Rose Street

76 Drayton Lane junction Down End Road

e Total 80 No (including 9A, 12A, 48A and 54A)

Page 75




G¢ ON alsoddo Juadsal) Jopn] 68
gy abpiiqsHo4 uoyounf peoy uisisepy | 8€
avy abplgsiod yoeoidde punoqyinos peoy WayuoN /€
gvy @bpuqsuod yoeoidde punoqyliou peoy ulayuon ae
SS909E |BUIWIS| SN peoy YnowsHod Gg
S$S900. |eUIWID | SNE Peoy UIayloN s
(sJ8319yS sng JO Yinos) e [2A0Y SpISin0 peoy UIBYLON £e
peoy ulsypoN uonounl peoy eulpsiy z€
¢ ausoddo anuany AlejiH L€
/| 3PISINO peOY jueAeH 0¢
pEOY UOle}g Uojoun| peoy [BJUSD | 62
PEOY SHOMIB)EAN uooun| peoy jueaeH T4
| ON JO 9pIS 8NUdAY pU0daS | /2
peoy [|IH UMOPSHOd uonoun 9A0IS) As|1aAag 9¢
ANUBAY P[BUPOOAA Uoloun| peoy uew|s | Gz
PEOY aye|g uonounf snusay uoibulied | g
peoy malaeag uonounl peoy spueidn €z
BNUdAY leuad uonoun snusAy UAylusd 2
PEOY |[IH UMOPSLOJ Uofjounf jusdsald dojiiH \Z
gV uonounl peoy yaunydsuyy | 0z
€y uonouni susples 1SINY¥eQ | 6l
Z ON @ysoddo sabeleb juadelpe aso|D |19Q gl
g UwN|oo dwe| Jeau peoy uopuoy | /|
3A0I9) JUNOW}INGY uolouni peoy weysos jseq 9l
PEOY ASIPIM JB3U Uied ASIPIM | GL
peoy abpuyeyd uopounl peoy uopuo [ 4|
PeOY 1lIH XoMmyinog uooun( peoy UopuoT €l
souesu3 uiel [B}dSOH vO uopoun peoy [jIH Y9IMyinosg | vzl
S$$822y Adusbiswg [ByidsoH v uonoun( peoy |jiH 39imyinog Z1
€ uwnjoo dwe| juaoelpe aso|) abpupunsg 1l
peoy SUIAH uoiouni aueT bulIBLAAA 0l
aue BuswApA uonouni Aepp 199mMsSmopesiN | V6
JUS0S3I0) SJoWdYe|g UoRouNl peoy mo|pn 6
Z/ uwnjod dwej juadelpe peoy uoidweyinog 9
¥ uwn|oo dwe| Jusoelpe sueT 8siN00adey /
aljua) AluUNWWO?) a)IS0ddo suEeT 8SIN0292ey g
£¢ uwnjoo dwe| Juadelpe anuany Aeme||y G
€ ON &}isoddo aA0Jg) awi ¥
pPEOY SUINOGIBIUIAA uoouNl 8S01D UL €
aAlIg ueybe|le] sawer uonounl 30IMyinos 1o4 Z
aNUAAY YUUOMSPIOAA uoioun] peoy abpus|o) L
Adwa =3 J100d = d
ajep linj ey =H Jiej = 4
uonoadsu e I = o poob = 5 uopeso
SjusU0)H uonipuod

}99Ys }29yQ uig J9fes — gq xipuaddy

Page 76



:9jeQg :ainjeubis :3WeN JuLd

peoy puj umoq uonoun] aue uolielq g9/

19911G 9s0y Ale|y uoiounl sue] asoy 29y | G/

SNUBAY UMOUOOA LIONOUN] 9NUSAY UMOPSHOd | #/

peoy jies uonouni peoy juels | ¢/

(puejsi uo) peoy lIH UMOpSHOd uojoun| peoy uopuo] |z

B€ SpISIN0 SnuUsAY |lNg |92

2s0]D) woolg uopoun sienbg wooig 0/

¥6L-881 Siel dpIsino peoy Aaisbuly | 69

obueyolou| O} Ixa pieH 9yl | g9

abueyolo)u| 0} 8ouenua pleH 8yl | /9

PEOY S[9eYdI 1S uonoun peoy sbpuqued | 99

|19AB11ISAOH ©pIsino speueidsg aouale|) | 69

ISOJ)IBAA JO 9PIS 30B|d puowWYdly | +9

apeled suajeH 1S uonoun! apeueids3 easyinog | €9

GG UWN|[0D duie)] JO 1Sam peoy ALld 29

2| uwn|od dwe) Juadelpe peoy Alngsueig 19

PECY UOj|Ipy uoyaunl 8NUBAY ywspios | 09

BNUBAY SIDUBIH UOOUNT SNUBAY YNWISPIoS) | 6§

90e119] 2UIN0Q[S JBauU pUNOqUINOS peoy uopeld | gg

o)e|deweN 0] Jusdelpe pue|s] Uo peoy pueequinyuoN | /G

JoppeT sqode(r juadelpe 1pang weyeais) | ag

PEOY |BI2ISWWOY) uolounl peoy adoyuels GS

1so M 86plg jusoelpe poey SABIN IS | VS

yse3 abpuq Jusoelpe peoy sAlBW 1S | +S

ssedlspun juaoelpe peoy ueyns | ¢g

€1 ¢ ON 9)isoddo peoy MoN | Z§

peoy sia1bue ]| uonoun] abpug toudon 1S

Z 102 duie Juaoelpe peoy JOAOQ 66 JO IPIS SNUBAY spleukauol | 0S5

peoy Jaudi] uonounisueqioudll | 6v

1S9\ 9DplIq yoeoidde peoy AemioN | v8yp

1se3 abpuq yoeosdde peoy AemioN oy

(AjuQ 1149) peoy uopuoT uopoun! peoy Alejiin | /v

(Aluo J19) abpugjoo) [e3awl uolaun peoy uopuo] | 9y

opI eas|iH abpLgJo0} JO Yynos peoy UopuoT | Gy

97| uwnjod dwe| Jusdelpe opiq eas|iH @1soddo peoy UOPUOCT [ 24

10da se|0D O} peol $$990e UOKOUN| peoy UClepy |

1€ uwnjod dwe| Juadelpe peoy Uo) A A%

(ebplig uo) peoy uojem | v

(9bplqg 1a3em pIo 3Y}) pEOy UOPUO] | OF
Adws =3 Jood =
ajep lin}jley = H lej = 4

uornoadsuj SO ny=4 poob = g Slella (o

SUIUOH uoIpuo)

Page 77



peoy au
|ooyog
(looyas sy} Jo Juoy Uy 3snf papaau aoueles)o) (weg) olsybug/peoy looyog peoy
PBOL UleW 3Y) 0) (00YDS WOl SSI0IE 03K & M & (nog | SSeEsnd 10048 eulpay 08z Srh 4 PEOY EUIDIN Arewud HNE 90d Ueysad eulpay 90k \Mm_Eo_.i
uogaunp 1PaN
(100yos ay} Jo Juoy U] Isn[ papaau aouelea|O} |ooyog peoy |ooyag
PEOC) UlBW 8y} 0} |OOYDS WO} SS8I08. 1a3ll] Eu L Eu UHON i E/d 031 08 b PECY 3019 Aepuossg ADL 904 (WEyso] lenua) plsyBundg
$8300 anuan anuan anuaA SNUBA ooy anuan 0008 JUBJL|
AEem]00) SWES J|00YIS JOIUNT SUET HNOY) JeaN w:m_< m_mumc%._ jseq m_mum:%_ Em__I< 0SS 74 i m_mumcMJ _EmcE_w ddZ 90d weysod Em__I< ! mcr_m._w«w:cw I
ss900y anuaay anuany anuaay anuaAy 1o0ydg anuany |ooyog Jolunp
sng ajepsuoT se3 3lepsuo ArejiH oLl SSE 4 a[epsuon Jounp ddz 90d teysod AejiH aue] pno)
SS$300Y SnusAy Y anuaay anal snuaay looyas SA0IS) 10042S Nied
sng HomspeyD 1583 ypomsjeyd As|quiap oze €le b YHOMS)EYD Aewnd Ade 90d weysay LEILITEIYY poompay
$$900Y anuaAy Y anuaAy peoy anuaay peoy abajj0n
10045 Asewid Anqybiy Jesn sng HomspeYyD S9M ypomsieyd nosvIaAoQg 96¢ voz b yHoMSIEYD aBsi0 V82 90d LLEY209 HnoasenroQ AanqybiH
$S300y BanuaAy Y so snuaAy peay anuaAy |ooyog TS peoy \_noocu_.._m
sng HomspeyD oM ypomsieyD nousisAcq (A3 e b ypomsieyD Aewndg Z¥z 90d usod HNooJaA0Qq brﬂmuﬂ
peoy JlelVial) aso| |looyds
e/ Efu e/u 1S9M e B 0z 0L L uoidweynos Aewig are 8od weysod aBpupung InogieH ayL
looyag
peoy |ooyos aso|)
e e e/ 159 e e YOE | Wesk | L | oduegnog Aoy re 90d Weysod | gnoing Aewng
umopsHog
{1o0Yas ay} Jo JuOY Ul )sSn| papasu aJueLes|d) looyog uo)ieiq peoy gl jo |ooyog
PEOJ UlEW 3y} 0} [00YIS LIOY, SS92IE Joala e e B/ uinos Eu e reL 19 b peoy uBojerg Juey| Hat sod / uolbulieq yBajaag aysoddo uBju| JUSjog
{100yas ay Jo Juoy ul }snf papaau aoueIEd|d) peod jusjog [[eel¥s2 uolAelg peoy |00yas
PEOs UIBW 3] 0} [OOYIS WO} SSIT0E 103l /4 il gu UHON & e w:m\%mwﬂw_c:ﬁ o€t 89 + peoy juslog Jolunp THI 904 J uojbuipey jusjog 44 lowne Jusjog
{wy) fo
1een o2l Ba pEOy
uopeoo} ] Mw._ Lo Y
suaWwWay oBeio)s (wbs) h._uE esn 0p02)80d PIs|g 1998 a:JuS sweN
moug Bajm
oL | Y58 | perean maisesoin ssaippy
€81

"SUONEe20| ajid MOUS PapuaLILINDa.)
pue psjess} 89 01 M4 du} Jo uonedo| Buiquosap dew pajiejep e A[[ediuosjos|e pioy Sej0D MO[Sq PaIIUSP] [00YDS LoBS Jo) JBLj} 9)0U 9Ses|d

sjooyos o} buipea] M4 jo uoneaynuapi pajiejaq — 3 xipuaddy

Page 78



peoy |ooyog peoy Jooyog
e/ e/ e/u yinog uogounp 1o0yos ol 8 uoysBury uEp) A0S 1Od uoyeld ssousaAY Jueuy Jouepy
Kemjoo4 |ooyag sueT Awspeoy
e eju e wnos | uopounp |00uog obie 5.8 Shi peoy sulien Kewig ras zod R g Buikl4 Ing Buikl
peoy aue sue |looyag
e gju eju ynog e Joudiy ziel | 9s9 peoy JoudiL vi8 20d uosiaN oudiy nogueyy
{ . z_co%w
weyl $59008 aue wgy sueT ooyog aueq BpuCdag
) sng sepung DRE:TYY sepung 10048 8oeds UsaI9 9£9 (422 SUET sepung AIepuoosg 1Xs £0d E3sIH sepung uosieN
yinog pi0T JeIwpY
(
ueyl — PECY (woz pEoY 00YO: aoeds uaal BOY Joudo looyds e9s| e bmﬁﬂ:omﬁ
; e 1oudon )isom Joudo jooyos o] 9€9 4% peoy 0 Arewiy N0 Zod IIH eseqieghs Ud sed
IqUIONES)
uinog
(j00y9s 2uj JO Juoly Ut JSN[ papasu SIUEIESID) e - e P - e 08 - peoy Joudon) 100Yog Joudog anuany 0 ﬁwﬂww
pEO. UlBW aU) O |00YDS WOY) SSI00E J0aNg Aewng NS0 20d Binquaneg L01 aEp 5 nn_v
([00yos 8U} JO JUOY U] }SN[ papaaul S2UEIESIO) peoy |ooysg
PEOL UlBW 3Y) 0) [00YDS LUOY SSSIIE 193, &y & e Hinos e e sk 9 PEOY PIoUABIN HH0 20d Joudo plaken plaukewy
(wsy) peoy anuaAay Aemyoo4 peoy Jjooyos anuany JooYoS JuBjU|
&M e B yinos MBUSWES pu3 aynuoN abie Sel s MBYSWE)S uejy MN8 2Od B9StH puz yuoN gek Meyswes
{jo0yos a4 jo Juoy ut }snl papasu aoUEIEd|D) peoy looyag peOY jooyosg Jounp
PEOI UlEW BUj} O} [00YDS WWIOY, SS3I0E J93lIQ & & e HHON S el oL ss MEYSWEIS tounp HO8 20d UosieN 1audip 5 MEYSWEIS
speled Awspeoy
UIauHoN ELITETY apeled Jooyag peoy
B/ e/ E/U uinog um alfoq 0tElL S9 uiauyoN eyl N6 20d essiiy Buiidiy Speied
UIBYHON
o) | s voounp | (409 Jooups Aamjooy 00z | oo e o 3N6 20d essyH e o
1523 sng UHON abie ulaypoN Jounp § s)fog wayyoN
(jooyog skog
(100y3s 3y Jo Juoly Ul jsn| papaau souLles|o) peoy Winowspod
PEOJ UJEW BY) 0] [00YDS LI} SSB00B 193110 B e e e e/ e/ |00yog JeaN €6 sl pecy uopuoT Y6 20d eas|H uopua] 0 »«_u Jauliog)
Wapesy
leBleyel ]
(jooyas sy} Jo Juoy ul }sn[ papasu aoueles|d) (wog) 5S320B (woyz) Jooyas 1eau ELUETA] jooyag anuaay |ooyag
PEOI UlewW 3] 0} |00YIS WAL SSS0IE J0a11(] YuoN sng [oows yinog S§5920E sng looyos aoedsusalg oge Sl Remhe|y Aewud DY 80d anoibsined AemAe|y cre pJeyoly Bury
anuaay Ae
$5900y Mme||y/pecy anuaAy peoy anueay Jooyog peoy Jooyss
wnog sng aulnog unos Aeme||y awnog ccs iz Remie|y Aewny ary sod anoibsined aunog 2414 Arewuq
uonounp odInedig
(jooyog
(looyos ay Jo Juoy Ul isnf papaau doueies|) (w S5200Y {w;ze) o Arewig
11snf ! {ooyos Jeau snusAy [o0Yog anuaAy MOIMO anoibs|ne,
04) 00LD! $S300E SNy 00y a Ined
PEOJ UJEW 3L} 0} |[O0YDS WOY SS399E 1931 Wnog sng 1oouos YUON g 100498 aoeds uasio) Lir 201 Aemhe|y Arewug Sdg 90d anraibsined Keme|y Z-L o 13U110})
aysoddg Awspeay

M3IA UoDESg

Page 79



aso[) . peoy looyag fouise peoy col 100428 juejy|
peo) uiew e/ e eju B 1'gze | 6l TH6 vOd Nse3 Lo i Guns
a4 0} [00YOS 3y} JO JUOJ} Uj PIP3BU FOUBIES|D Bl e 4 d / Wepad 1o pug pueyBIg 1uE) e pue
Mmom_ u
opuiqqnig peoy jooyog peoy 100Y2S juey)
e/ e 0] 1S9 1 peoy jooyag (254 g€l uoBuIgams e 910 20d loudoy 1SINYPUAT 9Ll sieg ab3(09
uoyoi)
uopounp
mmom u
obuigans peoy 100403 peoy 1o0yag Jonp
B/ B e 19M 1 peoy 100498 251 9z obteans o 1IN0 Z0d soudod Wi 76 sSinuputy
1sinypuky ’
uopounp
peoy 19 peoy peoy
Jooyos
1S9YaMyD uojkeiq uojfelq peoy 100UoS peoy omodos
ABMj00) SUIES [ [00YDS JUEJU| LHIPIISIN JESN jse3 / peoy / peoy yinog / PECY |ooyag 09z oel 131809140 Jownp ZH/.20d loudop 18188Ud10d Zl El .D._mmp__me_hm
uoyke.sq 18188Y010g 121882104
uanounp uonounf uopounr
peoy 18 peoy peoy
s34oyg uaelq uakeiq peoy |ooyos peoy |ooyag 1uBY|
13 | /peoy / PEy nog / peoy jooyog ove 0t P e o drs zod Joudog Loroaog ge sy
uolkelq 13)s940104 J8}sayalog -
uopounp uonaunp uogaunp
|00Yog Jounp
(j0oyos 8y} Jo JUoY Ul IsN[ papaau aoueles|d) o e e 0 . peoy MON looyog M2 Z0d uopeld peoy moN €1z |
PEO. UIEW 8Y) O] |00Y9S WO $$2998 10811 e e B uinos o 4 b Jounp sBplgman
anuan 00y, |o0Yos Jueyy|
e e B wom | uopounr looyos oze | o9l Buier e A39 £0d sugeg | peoy j00sy auojsbue
anUaA jooyos anuaAy |00Yag sounp
e e e/ ez | uopounp looyog oot 0s Buner o 739 €0d suyeg apisad pepi bl
Jooyog peoy J0ouos
(looyas eyt jo uoy ulssnf pepssu saueses|o) B/u e B 1s€3 e e/ oze 09l peoy Joudo) Jounp 785 £0d Joudog soudob Jounp g
PEOI UIEW BY) 0} [00YIS WO SSBD0E J0alI]] pue e 1B Joudan
peoy BOY Jalfue 10042 SN9 £0d suyleg PECY ﬁmﬁﬂw
e B B/ wea | AE0eL oouog vee | 291 peoy sapues | (ONS N Rt e
(jooyos
Jounp g
peoy axe peoy e el
AE&V $5920B AE fo0uds SU3YN peo wey i
/peoy 1 PeEoY 004! 20y 9 Jownp Nd¥ LOd Hola Y sz sepeyn
ztvcz sng rewny ) HNm_‘mv>> Jsuing 100yas 00 051 P =1 puE e sepey) Jsuing Jauisop
uoaung uopounp fwapeoy
susoIq iy
o peoy e SO
toouos aip jouay ujsnl papssu sousieaio) |, e e YN B e 2L 2 sl 4dS 10d uopery sheptg | “PoUwIE0 | o) Awapeoy
PEOJ UlBW aU} O} (00YDS WOJ} SSAI0E 108110 NS e N

Page 80



peoy

|ooyos Awapeo
e pecy Aeujses/peoy 2oy AsUjse Joun easyno PEOY z peay
aU)) 0] |00YIS BY} JO JUOL U] papaau aoueles|) E/u e EfU UHON e lequnQ X3ss53 08 U4 PECY ise3 9 «.:ﬂm.__ 138 +0d hnos lequng Hled uoiiy
uoyounp :
bt et u e/ o e peoy mﬁ_mvo u._uw* u | g | peoy JaluIMm ] 308v0d4 | eesyinog =S8 I
0} |[00YJS U} JO JUOL) Ul PApdau SouUelEs|) g &/ / UHON 4 sueay femgooy am:wu_ b Jounp QUINOGUIIAA SUIOQUUIIAA
Jjooyos 004OS JUBJU|
pEO. WiBw peoy . SN {ooyos S peoy I
8] 0] [00YIS B} JO JUOL Ul P3P3aL SOUBIES|D e L e HHON B sueag Mm,u,.ﬁowcw%%_ g6zh vs PEOY oM ey 308 vOd Hinos JUINOGUIAA SUIOGUIIAR
|ooyos Jolun( anysuoasq end - e - - anuaay mﬁ_w%“_uny ul g'z91 - anuaAy |ooyag Svdlioa eesuinog anuane ™ 100ydg Jolunp
0} [00U2S 3y} 4O JUOJ) Ul PAPIBU SOUBIES|D 4 4 d 93 4 souely fewnqoo, abren SIOUBIY Jounp siouely 1sInyway
|ooyos Jooyag
peo. ulew anuaAy ERUETA ) |ooyos BOSLINO! SNuUaAe JoIUn; uel
ayj 0] |00YIS 3Y) JO JUOY U] PAPS3U IIUBIEI]D &M EAl e/l 1583 e siouely Mm,ﬁMow:Mm“_m._.__ 66 s SIoUBlS Jownp OV0 ¥Od Hnos sioueld 184 m.:_cm,muwm m |
Alasinu ss|quielq peay pEOl 10USA Jooyog e —— peO.) o0UoS JuBL|
SU] 0} |ooUOs 8y} JO JUOL) Ul papasu S9UBIES|) e s e Hinos e a|quelg jo pug 8¢ 6t PEOY paamed Jue| 1do¥od nes s|quielg €€ yHwsplog
peO. UIBW peay DEO! JOUJUSA peol Auasiny
9UY) 0] [OOYIS B JO OI[ Ul p3P33U S0UEBIE3|D e i e wnes e |jquielg Jo puz vel <6 PeoH HIome Aissiny Laovod easynos 3|quielg L& s9|quuelg ayl
19818 |ooyog
peo. Ulew e 5 looysg SEETI I
] BU U e e e/ SEIOYIIN 6l I 1831 YbIH 2ZNZ 10d BISYINOS | o sl ewild 3
3} 0] |OOYIS BU) JO JUOL Ul PIPIIU JVUBIEI|D e Jonp OYIN 1S fel5IEsEnrhS
(pureg) |00yos
pea. uew 950|0 SIBAIYD Jooyos asoy A0S
3] 0] JoOYOS 31 JO JUOUL Ul papPaaU IdLBIEd|D) e e B e & Eu Jo pug 69¢ 8l PecY sisuios Jownp OHL SOd eestpnog SIBAIYD abepog _w_m_mmﬂwﬂw
oe
peo Wew jooysg peoy 100Y9S JuBU|
24} 0) [OOYIS 3U) JO JUOL} Ul PSPESU SOUBIES|D & B ey &/ L LC 9ee 8l PEOY Heqly juep) ¥se S0d edsunos 1sideN 95 easynog
10040g
yainyo
peo. uew peoy 100423 peoy Kewnd|
3} 0] JOOYIS 9] JO U0 Uf PAPSSU SOUEIED|D &M e e M B e mcﬂ_:_om 0s} 00} uopuese|) Jounp Q¥ S0d £9suInos |omseL anoyien
1S pusg i
{|ooyas ay) Jo Juol Ul 1sn{ papaau SoUBIES|D) sjed A looyos pEOY Jooyog Jounp
PEO. UlBW By} O} |00YIS WO} SSIIIE 198, e e Bl & e e [00y3s By} U ge9 62 peod Heq Jounp Xd0 ¥Od Eesyinog S,UBUOY IS Oz I8jemsauel)

Page 81



/peoy

peoy Awspeoy
e sed apAH THY §0d Easynog $ed 9pAH 181BYS
uopaunp
peos ye jooyos
{looyas ay) Jo yuoy ut jsnf papsau 93UEIES|I) ome4/pecy peoy au} Jo Juoyy EoY Heome |looyog 400 ¥0d easynos peoy 1z Jooyag Atoud
pEO. UlBW 3} 0} JO0YIS WO $S990. Jo3lI] 19M Jeomed naomed u| Aemjooy s 9L PEOY e yaome
uonouny able| ay) uQ
peoy
18un.g pJeq PEOY peol B0y [oUn 000! peoy fwapeoy
peo. urew . _«w._wﬁ wes|/pecy jounig ied spAH g %ou L6 B Ew_a_Emm_m _«:Mc_w S SOd e9sUYIN0g sIowog St uopAy sy
9y} 0] |OOUOS Sy} JO JUOI} Ut PIPS3U FOUBIES|D y sIowos piequies| 10 pUB B3 1Y
uopounp
jooyog
19ang |8
peo. uew wseg | PURYMOIA g ued 8evy | 7z pang jepunyy | 190908 Xd} +0d vodpuen il z Jw__smm_
341 0} |00Y3S BY) 4O JUOL] U] PAPasU SUBIEI[D abenog [epunzy g0 Jo sseln oune sbepoy |eipeLIED
vorounr suyor1s
i wmumam peo. Jooyos
peos uiew ojjeld/peol peoy UDiIe - |ooyag e
aU) 0) [OOYOS U} JO JUOLS Ui PApa3U IOUBIES|D Hinos aeyuad aeyuad 23U} uo |ooyos eL8 +61 pecy uojield JuBp) 08¢ 10d Held aleyuad s JuBjul 3|eyuad
uonounp 3} 4o jJuoy u|
peoy u
peol utew jses ojllN/peoy peay Bupied SonIuo |looyog dGi peoy Awspeay
ay) 0] |00YDS U} JO JUOLL U] PaPasU IoUEIES|D & & B ynog saler salwep |ooyas ay ut 0st §L PEOY UGHIN Aiepuoosg 849 £0d W sawep € SS0IQ UOHIN
uogounp
anuane
(|ooyas sy Jo Juoy Ul }sn[ pepasuy SoueIes|o) e g g winog mu_o_._mgv_mmg snuaAy au ”m_mmwcom val 26 anuaAy |o0yos (A8 $Od ol Rep zo1 Jooyag
PEOI UlEW 8U) O} [00YJS WOoJ) SS309E 10a11] sBuoop pIwsp|og o1 10 1004 uj piuspjosy ey - sButioopy Aep sBuioopy
uogounp
B0 aue 00y
0040g 3PISIBIEM ON e/ =T e/u =] e eju >mm>mv_w_o._ w48 20d 1oudip oo am_. mrﬂwﬁmg
Z Jaquinu
peou uew peoy peoy |o0yos peoy |ooyog
aU) 0] JOOYOS B} JO JUOL} Uj PAPIBU BJUEIESID e & & 159M B piojoyS :wﬁ..w gmcpﬂ_w : 98¢ 24 Aemsyoo Jue) 1N8 ¥Od eestynos piojjays Sv Jueyu| uoapy
Z Jaquinu
[00UDS JUBJU| U0 peoy peoy [ooyos oM UG |ooyog
3} 0] |00YDS 3U) JO JUOY) Us paPasU 3UBIe3|D e & 2 M e/ plojaus :wmkw _M_.ﬂ_w ' oy 0z Aemsyo0 Jownp IN8 +¥Od Basynog peoy uoapy vs 1olunp uosy

Page 82



peoy |ooyag
VH8 20d ybejpuey noquey
uaIpIYD
anuaAy
NS0 20d pug yHoN 10} 9)UBD
Binquaneg SmolI
looysg snuaay Awspeay
Aewug ddr 90d aroibsined Qajgnp faopIp
20! 0oy
198b0d | eesyinog L) osou oo
20, o0y
a8 vod ol me__w,_ 1sh h_:ouhmw_._
peoy |00yag
435 10d uoyetq sjeyuad inoglen
Jooyag
|ooyag anuaay Rewnyd
frewny Xv6 ZOd puz yuoN skpeio o1ouEeD
nsuyD sndiod
1904ag
Alewig
w3 U ealg ﬁm__o::ow
peo. ulew sanpAssns JEETI Aemjooy Biq B [} . |ooyos os JEENIS EJUN[OA
aU] 0] |00YIS BY} JO JUOY Ul P3pasU soueles|) 1se3 JanoueH JanoueH §] 918U [00YIS SLLE 004 198d1s USeNn juejy| N&e LOd essyinog JaroueH 4 pue|bug
uonounp 9y} Jo Juoy u| 1o yainyp
|e1oususg
536109918
1934S |3p
uniyasans pEOY Bupped . . |looyos JEENI |ooyos Jounp
10040S JUBJU| UNGY) [9pUNY 81| 90E|d SWwes e welion EiT) e 9’182 TS 19808 [9pUNIY Jolunp arl 1od podpue wewoN 661 finc= Y Seaney
uonaunp
jo0uiS 19
peol uew unuynsans peoy Bupyed | . Jooyag JEETIS |o0YoS JuE|
3L} 0] [00YOS BU) JO JUOI} Ul paPasU SIUELBS|D) 1se3 weypoN {apunty |0oyas ay u g8z s 13948 2punty e arkrod Hodpuen weyyon 661 1nog [epunly
uonaunp
18343 I9p
S 19848
(100Yos aup Ja U0 Ut jsnf pepasu saueIes|d) UnivAs 199,35 Bupysed ; |ooyog
PEOJ UlBW 31} O} |O0YIS WOY SSBT. 12811 Hinos _NMM“% [spunyy {ooyos sy u| 9'06e gt 190ag |9puniy | Aepuodes X4l 1od Hodpue _wwum_m_% spunwpg IS
uonounp

Page 83



anid mous Jo uorneso| I

!
1
']

Iy

pa1es[o aq 01 ABM100,] D i

RV

—~— O ———— ]

Mm———

eem.________———— =

Too1dg ATewn g UMOpPSHOJ

Page 84




Appendix E1

School Crossing Patrol Sites

School

Site

Admiral Lord Nelson

Anchorage Road

Arundel Court Infant & Junior

Holbrook Road / Fyning Street

Charles Dickens Infant

Sultan Road / Malins Road

Charles Dickens Infant

Turner Road / Wingfield Strest

Charles Dickens Infant

Turner Road / Watts Road

City Boys London Road Hilsea

City Boys London Road Hilsea

City Girls St Mary's Road

City Girls St Mary's Road / Moorland Road
City Girls St Mary's Road / Shearer Road

College Park Infant & Junior

Lyndhurst Road / Stubbington Avenue

College Park Infant & Junior

Lyndhurst Road / Kirby Road

College Park Infant & Junior

Lyndhurst Road / Kirby Road

College Park Infant & Junior

Mayfield Road / Randolph Road

College Park Infant & Junior

Crofton Road

Copnor Infant & Junior

Copnor Road / Wallington Road

Copnor Infant & Junior

Copnor Road / Burrfields Road

Corpus Christi

Gladys Avenue / Connaught Road

Corpus Christi

North End Junction

Cottage Grove Primary

Green Road / Cottage Grove

Cottage Grove Primary

Cottage Grove / Somers Road

Cottage Grove Primary

Eldon Street

Court Lane Infant & Junior

Court Lane / Lonsdale Avenue

Court Lane Infant & Junior

Central Road / Lower Drayton Lane

Court Lane Infant & Junior

Tregaron Avenue / Dysart Avenue

Court Lane Infant & Junior

Salisbury Road / Magdala Road

Court Lane Infant & Junior

Court Lane / Hilary Avenue

Court Lane Infant & Junior

Court Lane / Hilary Avenue

Craneswater Junior

St Ronans Road

Craneswater Junior

Albert Road / St Ronans Road

Craneswater Junior

Festing Road / Highland Road

Craneswater Junior

Festing Road / Highland Road

Craneswater Junior

Highland Road / Winter Road

Devonshire Infant & Fernhurst Junior

Francis Avenue / Jessie Road

Devonshire Infant & Fernhurst Junior

Francis Avenue / Jessie Road

Devonshire Infant & Fernhurst Junior

Heidleburg Road / Devonshire Square

Devonshire Infant & Fernhurst Junior

Jubilee Road / Devonshire Square

Flying Bull Primary

Malins Road

Gatcombe Park Primary

Copnor Road / Old London Road

Gatcombe Park Primary

St Barbara Way / Copnor Road

Goldsmith Infant School

Bramble Road / Fawcett Road

Goldsmith Infant School

Jessie Road / Fawcett Road

Goldsmith Infant School

Jessie Road / Talbot Road

Page 85




School

Site

Highbury Primary

Highbury Grove / Dovercourt Road

Highbury Primary

Chatsworth Avenue / Dovercourt Road

King Richard

Allaway Avenue

Langstone Infant

Milton Road / St Mary's Road

Langstone Infant

Milton Road / St Mary's Road

Langstone Infant

Milton Road / Baffins Road

Langstone Infant

Baffins Road / Hayling Avenue

Langstone Junior

Lakeside Avenue / Hayling Avenue

Manor Infant

George Street / Ernest Road

Manor Infant

Inverness Road / New Road

Medina Primary

Medina Road / Sixth Avenue

Meon Infant Hollam Road / Meon Road
Meon Infant Shelford Road / Meon Road
Meon Infant Locksway Road / Shelford Road
Meon Junior Crofton Road / Meon Road
Meon Junior Euston Road / Warren Avenue

Meredith Infant

Drayton Road / Chichester Road

Meredith Infant

Drayton Road / Powerscourt Road

Meredith Infant

Chichester Road / Farlington Road

Milton Cross

Velder Avenue

Milton Park Primary

Dunbar Road

Moorings Way Infant

Moorings Way / Warren Avenue

Newbridge Junior

New Road / Aylesbury Road

Newbridge Junior

George Street

Newbridge Junior

George Street / Shearer Road

Newbridge Junior

Shearer Road / Hampshire Street

Northern Parade Junior

Kipling Road / London Road

Northern Parade Junior

Kipling Road / London Road

Northern Parade Infant & Junior

Doyle Avenue

Paulsgrove Primary

Allaway Avenue / Walford Road

Paulsgrove Primary

Allaway Avenue / Marsden Road

Penhale Infant

Penhale Road / Guildford Road

Portsdown Primary

Southampton Road

Portsdown Primary

Southampton Road

Portsdown Primary

Sevenoaks Road / Hythe Road

Priory

Fawcett Road

Victory Primary

Allaway Avenue / Bodmin Road

Victory Primary

Allaway Avenue / Falmouth Road

Solent Infant & Junior

Solent Road / Farlington Avenue

Solent Infant & Junior

Havant Road / Galt Road

Solent Infant & Junior

Havant Road / Station Road

Somers Park Primary

Somers Road / Blackfriars Road

Southsea Infants Albert Road Traffic Lights
Southsea Infants Albert Road Traffic Lights
Southsea Infants Albert Road / Napier road

St George’s Primary

Queen Street / Cross Street

St John's Primary

Arundel Street / St Johns Road

St Jude's Primary

Pembroke Road

Page 86




School

Site

St Jude’s Primary

St Georges Road / High Street

St Jude's Primary

High Street

St Paul’s Primary

Allaway Avenue / Bourne Road

St Swithin’s

Clarendon Road / St Simon’s Road

Stamshaw Infant

London Avenue / Stamshaw Road

Stamshaw Infant

Stamshaw Road / Wilson Road

Stamshaw Infant

Gladys Avenue / North End Avenue

Stamshaw Junior

Walden Road / Walker Road

Stamshaw Junior

Tipner Road /

Westover Infant

Westover Road / Tangier Road

Westover Infant

Westover Road / Tangier Road

Westover Infant

Neville Road / Tangier road

Westover Infant

Westover Road

Westover Infant

Westover Road / Cobden Avenue

Wimborne Infant & Junior

Goldsmith Avenue / Winter Road

Wimborne Infant & Junior

Wimborne Road / Winter Road

Wimborne Infant & Junior

Devonshire Avenue / Winter Road

Wimborne Infant & Junior

Devonshire Avenue / Prince Albert Road

Page 87




pagsene [re12p dew jo ajdmrexs 293G 4

s
iedyno) yaedIes 03 UORES Py =8 ;U EL'ETT 659 T DjAses n.v: ot ey pecaaxases uodije uop@s earyy
LY PRI STTRT T vodie
=
[ ™ sa@mpug 7t zer T wpr | emswe raspy | peosmsasuedite uopes easiy
wodm
= =
3%pHq e ol szoy rez T e | S99 ey | pRos TS wedie uopes easy
21 40 e papSu Sl A 40 RuIy powm Aemaoa)
- o
sqiBun 1ea s g0%e bat t apes EB:E r easpy | peoiaiates podie ones eey
2 Jje Uo papaaN WP wioped Jo pUa = e
=
su:ueg wam ) 8095 w9t T azps i eaty | peosaduELode vepEwE eesity | uoms wes)
g [ U papasy TR wiapeyd jo pua e | UUoR=H
‘wauisred ) vanmg
1o Wy v scerd o sob ok | jeons ulss| vonms il | gBE S0 | weysn wans yik i
10} @/ cmtavonsy
[ wEms |
(51 . w 991 pacy uoneld oz o ' wormS uRly | 431 10d | Ry | sseim) ewncqes |
s sigresed uogaual [ sEpUg pwspen RiL uaeld
=g — -, umms
pLe pans
o ypvamn| W s0s ' ey | wms velL (031 10d | 1onS LogES e Teskiie
= e,
uopmis e o euegua = e v | pemau | venms ey, | vas od | SR R AL et
TG LI W] SR S | ou Jey Z2edey
y fsse® aup vy "vanes | pral s
uopes snq Ay 404 YopUO’ o 99°L9E 26 T uepewssng weysaa peosuapua) ogeTs sha
16363 Uf popaaL sauAeR e L 509w pUYaY uopuioy Amzamjowed | oo ienuoy
eee 8 ey 10 fuopen pecs o FEMI00]
unges snq 3y u g ' ves T uopme mm weysea enasuopua) uopmss snq
193UDL Ul pOpRI BB ERD b Lkt sqappnpq | 7S 4 uopugy | UORETR Awmzan oy | BRI
F pras Zuapms
Gz o Uopess snq B wom pEal vy Lesson s us 65T cee t oy | UORTETA weysas pealsau t el
40 3US44 Ul FAPAIU ATV feunum | e
Fepsaz peDI = Tuopes
IR £ UOET g RO e peas uapiou ARRA0O} M3 UD 543 g5 T ou | VoREF =N weyrm pRol LBRIor T - .
J03UD| U1 PApYOU IR =
“Bupyen Sq 9qy, . = b
& wr o FT Y pEOJUCHEM \anas pRAs UDyRM 3ied Jex eig uo " LeT B0IT 2z [, Rupyed sng Tood waysem PEOJ UOHRM T snq urewson
s
a2 pi3 { L. g sunmg vams
woze v pzy wosz s sne [hs jo e sts =3 t |neHaw | wowsyeng | vae 10d | gl P ouL snarine
s e DT
T wOUeR Femicor
ool =om peos ey 8 s BujwnaEm 3 3 T tu..ﬂ, Aemioay wodman pros pEgpp g1 vzu_n_ yows | Mo Mml
p 60 A opaYY BT wp 03 vEu i )
pr S R - = ey
- wnos pEoL M FASIwoIEN | 2LL6T veat t el vodran peea geum yed ey g jaoy | pod Ay
131 w0 Aua papaRu aNTIEIP B i -
ARG
] 15am peol prum HoiSuNARRIS | g ToeT t Pl | o moay wotmay | peos peym ansua o) | 30 humy
131 US Auo papsRY IR Uo} Ul T58IF B Uy Heyan ey
AEAGET)
] sanoy L pysy 3 peos | Er Ssmay meyfsuiRd vy | e oy
a1 uo Ajua papaRy UL wiN prO. LM Aewaao) g uo vEss Leld t pus 3jiiN g b Ly i punase yod a‘u
7] == EECETE
woR) ez Whed Fe jo juny u Azmon.t {age ) eopn L luﬁ-ﬂba_u 2w o aseds ar [ 3 yng wod Auey Wy jS|  pRON dedwmg Jeyraume
|speumdez L Jeyuual
a8 oz ] souamg | W0 AUed | OVESOd |eevwms | epeuridss aiam yesianoyy
3
Aeixmo) oy 18 oL 7 [fpeowhusy| wmakues |imweod (MR peoy Aoy puers| Bugien
Aorery
ol S T ) s
SuRumg X == = pros e w0 fepoatsed | e nens uopese/esampy | oumy tmtaen
o= AEOL | emmg | P MO ises0rD

"SUONE0| 8[id MOUS PapPUBILLOIA]
pue pajesJ) 8q 0} M4 8y} Jo uoleoo| Buiquasep dew pajiejep e A||ealuojos|e pjoy Sejo) ‘Mojeq pauiuspl qny Hodsuel] |yoes 1oj Jey) 8jou asea|d

sqnH podsuel] o} Buipes] (4 30 uoeayuUaPI pajle}aq
Z3 xipuaddy

Page 88




oid smous Jo uoneso’] I

PaIBa[d 9q 03 ABMI00]

Page 89



Page

3juenua
{woy) yuon apesed LIBUUON pecy veuoy (wg0)) 1583 vy ajfog PEOY UBUCD feg Bupyed 00¢ z L [BpeRd WAYNON| 16 Z0d | EISIH peoy auAm v jfog/pyueue) | asnoy swuE
N KooIA
(9p) uLON peoy ybises (wgl }) ymog pecy sKie 15 19845 YLnog Aeq Buiyey 591 64} 1 peoy shiew s | N76 10d | puepong | snuany ubisiueig 8STIOH Yolulog Auey
(ga) 1se3 yjedjoaq BT amnbs wotsng (Weg) 19M yedjoo 211 aenbg wosso|g Aeg Bunued axa 191 L 1998 ULy | Ore LOd | eesuad | 19ang weniam buy | amenbg wossolg BIENDS BUI0IBY
(way) uneg PRaY PIOJIBYS peoy uajor (we/) 3pISUuoN YoEaY Jaold 3s0|] 139y Aok 5L ;4 i DEOY WO | DOA Y04 | FIsneg | anemny Laus i N0y 1uaig
doedsUBAY z 8 ) Peoy uopuo | x1020d | EasiH g 8qWodjen sjassny
. Wnog
peoy Wajses Aqfe| poedsuseiny Prs4 Z 4 A2 SBULOOW | AMDE $Od | Lol Aep sBuuooy Lo | Aexdso 3 ynog auein
: b P
[EEET
peoy wajses soedsusag 2 gk 7 | AemsBuscon | mOS vOd | UOlIN Aem sBuuoon 1o0p o) apaT uaqiog
SUB3J)K
(wgy) 1523 pecy axel 1331}g UOpUBIEID {wz ) ypon 19311 UopusEl) 3%€|d PIBUINN 902 €04 2 pecyeXel | &rv Lod zcuﬁm 30€|d PRRYNN ynop pumg
1se3 IquWones PECY UOPUCT aoedsuaaly SEb Sy L peoy uopuol | X10 Z0d Bas|iH AL Iquo9len abpoq eas|H
peoy
Ppeoy uojsinsg 5 anuay Aeq
(wgg ) yinog 59908 Sng anuag Aeq puy 9bpa ueapBuo| {woe } yHoN $59098 Sng anusg Aagq puy 86po ueapfuoy Eou s wogaun] ozL 09 1 Peoy ASISIH | HNp SOd | arosBsined peoy Ajs|iH .N_mm_uﬂa_w ﬁ”w pury 56007 URPAUOY
4 0L b [ TE90d | weysoy | asop sbpupung asnoH yBunquipy
uoidweyinog - [
| wen () qed pea| _ proy
gquewwe) | uopeso) viwom moug | o (wbw) | o) prat uew nowsad | KIMPIg Pang UGHEIST | PRy ourey
nug oy | woy soummq | PHITEN MO HWOID

"SUOI}ED0] 9)1d MOUS POPUSIIODSI

pue psjeal} 8q 01 M4 8y} JO uoneso| Buiquossp dew pajiejap e A||eojuoi}os|d pjoy S0 ‘MOjag PaljiluSp] SWOH [eljuapIsSey Yoes 1oj Jey) 8]ou oses|d

SBWOH |eRuapIsay pabeuew 99d 0} Buipes] M4 J0 uopeaynuapl pajieleq

€3 xipuaddy



and mous
Jo uoneoo]

paTeald 8q
0} Aem1004

Page 91




Appendix F

Equipment, store and salt barn location

All winter operations are directed and carried out from Colas depot located at Walton Road,
Farlington, Portsmouth, POG1TA.

The rock salt is stored in a purpose built salt barn. The salt barn has a capacity of 850t that is to
say 200t over the stock level recommended by the UK Road Liaison Group (July 2009) (stock
necessary to treat the equivalent of 6 runs during 6 days on the priority network).

An additional storage capacity of 120t, in a hon-covered storage bay, is available next to the salt
barn to store an emergency reserve stock of salt or grit.

The following map identify the location where the gritters are stationed, the salt barn and
reserve storage bay, as well as the storage building where the winter maintenance minimum
resilience stock of shovels and brooms is kept.

Page 92



Salt barn
Storage capacity 850t

-

-

| lal
||| Ll

Storing bay (emergency use only)
Storage capacity 120t

Page 93



Appendix G

Winter Maintenance Preparation Plan

TO BE
COMPLETED TASK ACTION BY
BY

April Start Wash-Up meetings (if Colas / PCC Contracts
necessary) Managers

June Renewal of Weather Forecast Colas Commercial
contract if appropriate

July Start revision of Winter Colas / PCC Contracts
Maintenance Operational Plan Managers

Early Issue revised Winter Contract Manager

September Maintenance Operational Plan

Late Winter Maintenance Colas Winter staff
September Exercise/Communications Trial

Early Winter Maintenance Briefing Colas personnel involved
October in Winter Duties

Page 94



D kR, WN -

Appendix H

Reference documents

Code of Practice for Maintenance Management

ICE Design and Practice Guide for Highway Winter Maintenance
Emergency Services Plans

Trunk Road Maintenance Manual

PCC Flood response Plan

The Resilience of England’s Transport Systems in Winter (independent review interim
report Dec 2010)

Colas Incident Management Plan
PCC Traffic Management Plan

Page 95



Appendix |

Vehicles and Plant Schedules

The length of the routes covering the category 1 and 2 networks requires 3 vehicles to
enable a response within a 2 hours period.

Colas fleet of gritters is composed of 4 vehicles (which includes a vehicle on standby as
contingency to mitigate the risk of mechanical breakdown). All are Econ Engineering
Bodies. Copies of the current vehicle calibration certificates are available on request.

4 of these vehicles are multipurpose vehicles which are dedicated to gritting during the
winter season. All 4 vehicles are fitted with GPS MASTERNAULT tracking units which are
connected to the ECON download units. This records the following information when vehicle
are used as gritters:

Vehicle Location and time
Spreading on/off
Salt Flow on/off

Spread Rate
Width of spread

The 4 vehicles are as follows:

1 x Dedicated Gritter Lorry: Reg 1RX55 UTO UNI-BODY

Page 96



2 x Multi Purpose Vehicles: Reg KE06 AYC and Reg KE06 AYD UNIBODIES (converts
into Traffic Management Vehicle)

Gritter Bodies and Equipment

4 X Snow Ploughs

Page 97



Footway Gritting and Snow Clearance:
Cruiser Turbocast 300 Grit Spreader:

Cruiser Turbocast 300 Grit Spreader broadcast spreads dry or wet grit/salt mixture to a width
of between 3 and 7m. It is user friendly with front and back rests which make it easy to
manoeuvre up and down kerbs. The front rest allows the unit to be emptied wheelbarrow
fashion after use and the chassis has a special Armortec coating for corrosion-resistance. A
range of settings allows accurate controlled dosing ensuring economic spreading. The gritter
can be disengaged for transportation between sites without losing any material.

Pedestrian 2 Wheel Tractor Unit:

Page 98



Appendix J

Winter Maintenance Exercise Checklist
(to be updated with completed version once exercise complete)

Winter Maintenance Exercise Date: ....ccvveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiannns
Lor Routes Lorry & Spreading Plough Plans &
Nory Driver Insert Fitted & Schedules Comments
) Available | Operational | Operational | Available
1 8,9,10,11,1
2,17,20,22,
23,25.
2 2,3,4,13,14,
15,16
3 1,5,6,7,18,1
9,21,24.
1. Supervision present in depot. YES/NO
2. Loading facility available in depot YES/NO
3.  Client Officer present YES/NO
Checks completed by:
Colas: e (Signature)
............................................. (Print Name)
Client: sccosammssmcusamveieiuotsssssss (Signature)

(Print Name)

Page 99




Appendix K
Standard form and daily reports
This appendix includes the following standard forms:
¢ Notification of Proposed Treatment
¢ Daily Operational Report
¢ Route monitoring Sheet Priority 182
The forms should preferably be submitted by email. Where transmission is by email the

originator and distribution details do not need to given as shown on the following pages as
they will be included within the email.

Page 100



400'35 Winter Maintenance - Notification of Proposed Treatment

Name:
Date: Time:
DECISION BASED ON:- Date Time
24 Hours Met Office Report:
Findlay Irvine Weather Station Check:
Inspection:
HCC:
Area 3:
Other:
ACTION TO BE TAKEN: YES O NO O
Code Description %t::: slg;i:d Comments
(9/m2)
WM 01 Priority 1 Routes
WM 02 Priority 2 Routes
WM 03 Priority 1/2/3/4 Only
WM 04 Frost Spots
WM 05 Snow Plough
WM M275 M275
STANDBY
FURTHER INSPECTION REQUIRED: YES [ NO 0

Recommendation for Escalation at the time of notification:-
Level 1 ) 2 O 3 O
Stage 1 O 2 O 3 O
Accepted by PCC: Yes O No O

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



“COIaS Winter Maintenance — Daily Operational Report

To: Portsmouth City Council Date: Time:
Winter Maintenance Officer (Name):

Period Covered Dates: From: To:

Period Covered Times: From: To:

Operational Summary

Route No Proposed Treatment Actual Treatment Comments
Spread | Start | Finish | Spread | Start | Finish
Rate Time | Time Rate Time | Time
(g/m?) (g/m?)

FW Treatment Activity:

Road Closures:

Salt Stock remaining at 0800 hours: Salt Supply expected in
next 24 hours:

Additional Comments:

Escalation Changes:

Page 103




:uopya|dwios uodn ainjeubig s J9ALIQ

:LHOIIM HSINIH

:LHOIIM L¥V1S

SLCN

¥e

¥4

6l

8l

Z Muoug

SLZN

L

9

g

}

L foud

SLNIWNOD

SIN3T190¥d
/NOILIONOD
J13IH3A

Alvy
avayds

a3llid

HONOd avo

440 FNIL

NO INIL

dIARIA

ON 13374

31NoY

:ajeq

¢ | ALIRMORYd — 133HS ONIJOLINOW 3LNOY

| S191YaA / 93noy

Page 104



:uona|dwod uodn ainjeubig s J9A1Q

:LHOIIM HSINIS

:LHOIIM 13V1S

SLCIN

9l

Gl

142

el

Z fuoud

SLZHN

14

€

LA

I Auoud

SLINIWNOD

SWITa0™Yd
/NOILIONOD
J1JIH3A

31y
avdids

a3llid
HONOd

avol

440 INIL

NO JNIL

dIARA

ON 13314

31N0oY

:a)eq

¢ 3 1 ALRIORId — 133HS ONIMOLINOW 31LN0OY

Z 3I91YaA [ Aoy

Page 105



:uonajdwos uodn ainjeubis s JaALQ

:1LHOIIM HSINId

:LHOIIM 1¥V1S

SLZN

S¢

1574

44

0¢

Ll

Z Aougd

S/IZN

¢l

bl

ol

6

8

| fjuoud

SL1NIWWOD

SW3790¥dd
/NOILIONOD
J1OIH3A

Alvy
avayds

a3iiid
HONOd

avon

440 INIL

NO JNIL

AIARIA

ON 133714

EREple)-]

-ajeq
¢ ® | ALRIOI™d — 133HS ONIYMOLINON 3LN0OY

€ 9I91YaA / ynoy

Page 106



Appendix L

Snow Desk Content

The Snow Desk room shall contain the following equipment as a minimum;

« 1 PC / laptop with, email facilities, self sufficient broadband Internet access and network
access to Colas company systems, email facilities

« 1 large scale street maps of the network showing termination points
« 1 large scale street maps of the network

« 1 laminated copy of the gritting routes

» 1 copy of the Network roads hierarchy map

« 1 copy of the current winter WMDO and WMSM rota

» 1 copy of the Code of Practice for Maintenance Management

1 copy of the ICE Design and Practice Guide for Highway Winter Maintenance

« 1 copy of the Emergency Services Plan
» 1 copy of the HCC Winter Maintenance Plan
« 1 copy of the emergency telephone contact list

1 copy of the Winter Service Plan

- 1 FM/MW Radio, main powered with battery backup
e 1TV set

2 land line telephones

Page 107



Il Y JOU BE:UU

E_;mmEmT— B e

37 v e A9/~ s s *
T (stovelg 3 vorburfied  {; " < = aIL
T 2 - \..: d 2 =4 i =

= = W e (EELITYL L k

I )

; ¥ =% (/)
aurjoy i | a a0 5
Loa LIS /f S A..._..?. = - == : =——2", N, -k
- S e : AN W
A~ 7 AN i =
o ’ ! IA 1 Py — .u'u-u V
; ' L= L . T 7
3 _ ML AEEI S
o ,“,_, s ] ==l il ofld.
j R 5 B2 f= s T
] L2 = e ] |
: % s e
: T Nk ¢ | vige a
= T M«Mw L tﬁmr
| = Eio i ..m
| 4 b
! HO.
P, N i 3
el o 19 St A
.l
e == 4 =
= i ~ A E .f &
.. -m__.. ._. e = i =
b WL Lo A=y :
; b == &4 4 5 .__
o w_‘_,m 5
bis (]

2 g |
20H 30 Jioyaq uo Bulsios 54 ),
—  20d 40 HoyY2q uo Buios oH| ]
———  pompay buyjog T Apuorad 504 |~
— spomga] bunjos T Aldowy J0H
T : T

d __..a._:., Siel” ., ;

E9sioH i
-.\ ﬁq,v,a 7 | .d.hﬂ =
L 7 v e Wi
Sl | Nk =,
Ta . M : r/ S| M#
ml - =
_ it o
o TI[E ﬂz u” x
: ......n..h_...m..w.wmu.w...._...@... = .- .
:H.IIH) = —"1o —=nl
.:.,. T r-..

:nﬁ

su:5g a___wz

DOH *? 90d Usamiaq Juawaalby g uodag

N xipuaddy

Page 108



Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



Title of meeting:

Date of meeting:

Agenda ltem 4

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation

29" September 2016

Subject: Residents' Parking Update

Report by: Alan Cufley, Director of Transport, Environment and Business
Support

Wards affected: All

Key decision: No

Full Council decision: No

11

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

Purpose of report

The purpose of this report is to update the Cabinet Member on progress with
the review of parking zones in the last year and confirm the ongoing programme
as published.

Recommendations
It is recommended that:

(1) the progress made to date on the review of parking zones is noted;
(2) the ongoing programme is confirmed as published;
(3) requests for permit parking continue to be recorded for future consideration

Background

Following the decision to reintroduce a charge for the first Resident permit (£30)
to enable schemes to be self-financing, residents living within the (then) 35
parking zones were asked whether or not they would prefer for the zone to be
retained or removed.

The subsequent report and decisions taken by the Traffic and Transportation
portfolio holder in July 2015 resulted in the substantial programme of works
currently underway to propose and potentially implement the required changes.
The reports are available on Portsmouth City Council's website and contain
more detailed information:
http://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=176&MId=322

9&Ver=4

8 parking zones have been reviewed so far, leaving 23 zones on the
programme for review.

Pade 111

www.portsmouth.gov.uk


http://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=176&MId=3229&Ver=4
http://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=176&MId=3229&Ver=4

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

3.4 The parking zones that residents wished to be retained are being reviewed to
ensure they operate as effectively and efficiently as possible. Residents will be
consulted on any proposed improvements. The current programme is
scheduled to complete in 2020/21.

3.5 Funding and resources have been allocated to the current review programme,
agreed in July 2015. The new areas identified (those areas which have not
previously been surveyed and have been awaiting a survey for some time) will
take priority over areas that have been surveyed in the past and where
proposed zones have been rejected by residents and not implemented.

3.6 The review of existing parking zones and consideration of new zones has been
prioritised as below, taking into account the allocated resources and funding
available, the responses to the consultation on the reintroduction of a charge for
the first Resident permit and feedback from residents on their parking zones:

Zone code Zone name Progress
Priority 1

AA Newbolt Road Review complete
AC Farmlea Road Review complete
JD Portsea North Review complete
GA Fratton Review complete
FD Bevis Road Review complete
FG Stamshaw South Review complete
Priority 2

MB Orchard Road Review complete
MC Bramble Road Review complete

Cosham (east of
High Street)

Cosham (Albert Rd, Dean
Rd, Pervin Rd, Park Lane)

Formal public consultation complete;
awaiting T&T decision September 2016

KA Old Portsmouth
KC West Southsea
Priority 3

JB Landport
Twyford Ave

(north of

Northern Parade)

LA

North Southsea

LB Somerstown
KB Hambrook
KD Castle Road
Priority 4

Broom Square

Page 412

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

area

Pembroke Park

JF Garnier Street
JE Fratton West

HA Baffins Road
MA Beatrice Leopold
JC Hyde Park Road
Priority 5-6

Doyle Court

service road
(London Road)

AB Wymering

BC East Cosham

BD Windsor Road

FB W. Island Way

FC Landport North

FE Buckler's Court

FF Rudmore Court

GB Alverstone Road

JA Portsea

NA Priorsdean

BA Park Grove

4. Reasons for recommendations

4.1 To acknowledge the progress of reviewing existing residents' parking zones,
how resources will be engaged for the coming years, that it could be some time
before new areas on the waiting list are surveyed and that expectations of
permit parking as a solution to parking difficulties should be carefully managed.

4.2 Managing residents' expectations in relation to permit parking is important. The
increasing demand for residential street-based parking in certain parts of the
city remains a challenge. It is particularly severe within the large areas of
terraced housing without off-road parking. This affects thousands of residents
living in Copnor, Tipner, Baffins, North End, Hilsea, Fratton, Southsea and
Eastney, and means it is difficult to locate a parking space reasonably close to
home after 6pm, with many residents regularly parking several roads
away. The number of vehicles belonging to, or used by, residents often
exceeds the on-street parking available.

4.2 Areas of North End, Fratton, Stamshaw and Hilsea, for example, have been

surveyed twice or more and parking zones have been formally proposed.
Ultimately however, these zones were neither approved nor implemented due to
strong objections from residents. Further surveying is unlikely to produce a
different result.

Pade 113

www.portsmouth.gov.uk




4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

5.1

6.1

7.1

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Parking zones operate the most successfully in areas where external factors
influence the available parking - such as tourists/visitors, commuters, shoppers,
local employees, close proximity to a ferry port, transport hub or hospital
etc. Where proposed zones have been rejected, residents have indicated that
as the majority of the vehicles are being used by residents themselves, and
local businesses are entitled to permits, the available parking would be unlikely
to increase, but the permit application and payment processes would apply as
usual. Many households have more than one vehicle and residents have not
shown support for proposals that effectively restrict their vehicles with no
alternative parking available.

Now that all Resident permits carry a cost, residents would expect to find it
easier to park with a scheme in place but that outcome may not be achievable
in many parts of the city as there are significantly more postal addresses than
on-street parking spaces available.

The impact on adjacent roads that experience similar parking issues and cannot
cater for displaced vehicles should not be underestimated and has to be taken
into account before considering just one part of a larger area with similar
housing and parking problems.

This issue was addressed in November 2015, when the Cabinet Member for
Traffic and Transportation confirmed:

That no new parking zones are considered in isolation within Southsea or
Eastney. Should the necessary funding, resources and support be identified,

that the remaining Southsea and Eastney area is considered as a whole via
a single 2-3 year programme.

A similar approach would need to be considered for Copnor, Baffins, North End
and Hilsea locations where clearly-defined natural zone boundaries do not exist
and residents experience equal difficulties with parking.

Equality impact assessment

A preliminary EIA is not relevant due to the nature of this report and its
recommendations, which do not put forward specific proposals at this stage.

Legal implications

As the recommendations do not propose any further action as this stage there
are no legal implications.

Director of Finance's comments

This report is for information only and, as a result, there are no additional

financial implications directly arising from the recommendations contained within
this report.

Page 114

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

7.2 The programme will continue to ensure that the introduction of charges for all
residents and other parking permits will be in line with the cost of implementing
and operating the schemes.

Signed by:
Alan Cufley
Director of Transport, Environment and Business Support

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a
material extent by the author in preparing this report:

Title of document Location

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
rejected by ... ON e

Signed by:
Councillor Jim Fleming
Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation

Page 115

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 5

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Title of meeting: Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation Decision Meeting

Date of meeting: 29" September 2016

Subject: Residents parking zone: Cosham area (TRO 47/2016)

Report by: Alan Cufley, Director of Transport, Environment and Business Support
Wards affected: Cosham

Key decision: No

Full Council decision: No

1. Purpose of report
1.1 To consider the consultation responses to the proposed BF parking zone, and agree the

way forward.

2. Recommendations

2.1. That the BF Park Lane parking zone is implemented as proposed, with the
following exceptions:

2.1.1 Parking bays are not marked out at this time (deleted from the TRO);
2.1.2 Double yellow lines are not marked out at this time (deleted from the TRO).

3. Background

3.1 As per the Traffic & Transportation decision meeting held on 5 July 2016, approval was
given for a parking zone to be proposed for the BF Park Lane area, made up of Albert
Road, Dean Road, Pervin Road and Park Lane.

The report and decision are available to view on Portsmouth City Council's website here:
http://demaocracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=176&MId=3490&Ver=4
(Item 3)

3.2 The area of BF Park Lane zone was approved for scheme design and consultation as all 4
roads returned a majority in favour of permit parking during the informal survey.

3.3 Formal consultation on the proposed zone took place between 26 July - 17 August 2016.
The proposal notice is available to view on Portsmouth City Council's website here:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/tro-47-2016-cosham-park-lane-
rpz-pnl.pdf

Pade 117

www.portsmouth.gov.uk


http://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=176&MId=3490&Ver=4

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

4. Reasons for recommendations

4.1

4.2

4.2.2

4.2.3

4.3

The January 2016 survey results that led to the parking zone being proposed were as
follows:

Road name Support Object No. of properties
Albert Road 6 2 64
Dean Road 12 2 33
Park Lane 9 0 50
Pervin Road 10 1 33
Totals 37 5 180

The public responses have informed the recommendation to implement the parking
Zone as proposed:

Road name Support Object Comments/queries
Albert Road 3 1 2
Dean Road 1 2 1
Park Lane 5 1 2
Pervin Road 8 1 0
High Street 0 2 1
Outside zone 0 3 0
Road not given 0 1 0
Totals 17 11 6

The full responses are reproduced at Appendix A on pages 6 - 20. Whilst this
represents a low percentage of the properties in the affected area, the
recommendations are based on the responses and information received: no
assumptions can be made about the views of those who have not responded.

The main reasons given for supporting the introduction of the parking zone are:
e Parking congestion: difficulty finding a parking space near to home, during the
day and early evening;
e All-day parking by commuters / local employees (hospital, High St, Cosham
commercial area);
e Shoppers, customers and visitors (e.g. to the 2 local churches) using free
parking in residential roads to avoid Pay & Display.

In summary, the reasons given for objecting to the introduction of the parking zone are:

No parking problems;

Permit costs and paying for visitors;

Too many new double yellow lines;
Insufficient interest or support from residents.

Under new legislation that came into effect in April 2016 relating to parking restrictions,
many road markings and signs are no longer required to be used together (Traffic
Signs Regulations General Directions 2016). Previously, parking bays could not be
marked without a restriction in place, and all parking bays were required to have
accompanying signage.

Page 118

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

43.1 Controlled zone signs at the entrances to the zone and individual signs within the
parking zone will be placed as usual. In accordance with revisions to the TSRGD, it is
no longer a requirement for parking bays to be marked out. PCC will be following this
guidance and therefore parking bays will not be marked.

Without parking bay markings, there is no requirement for double yellow lines, and
therefore this aspect of the TRO will not be pursued.

Should it become necessary to consider designating parking bays and double yellow
lines at a later date, further consultation will be required.

4.3.2 It should be noted that permits will be required to be displayed (or authorised
electronically) when parking on the public roads within the parking zone, including in
front of dropped kerbs. This means PCNs may be issued to any vehicle parking on the
public road without authorisation or beyond the 1-hour free parking period.

The obstruction of dropped kerbs will be enforceable in the usual manner, i.e. if the
owner is unable to access a driveway, hard-standing or garage due to a vehicle being
parked in front the dropped kerb (with or without a permit) and contacts Portsmouth
City Council for assistance.

4.4 3 objections were received from residents living outside of the proposed parking zone
(from Lindisfarne Close (2) and Mulberry Lane (1)) on the grounds that parking may be
displaced into those roads.

44.1 The parking zone includes the 4 roads where residents petitioned for permit parking:
no requests have been received from residents of Lindisfarne Close, Mulberry Lane,
Magdala Road, Dorking Crescent or Salisbury Road, and therefore these roads have
not been included at this stage.

4.4.2 Vehicle displacement is by no means a guaranteed outcome of implementing parking
zones. Evidence suggests that parking zones rarely lead to significant vehicle
displacement which results in the need to extend into the adjacent area. Of the 32
parking zones currently in place, just 4 have been extended.

4.4.3 Displacement of residents' vehicles is likely to be minimised by the zone's operating
time (8am-6pm), with vehicles able to park within the zone without a permit from 5pm
until 9am the next day.

4.4.4 The parking zone is anticipated to better manage commuter parking. Local employees
and long-stay customers of the High Street would be more likely to use the Pay &
Display once the adjacent free parking in the residential roads becomes unavailable.
QA hospital staff would be required to walk a further distance to find free parking, and
those working shifts would be affected once Park Lane becomes restricted. This
measure should encourage use of the facilities provided by the hospital staff, which the
majority already use.

5. Equality Impact Assessment

Pade 119

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

A Preliminary Equality Impact Assessment has been completed for this scheme. From
this it has been determined that a full equality impact assessment is not required as the
recommendations do not have a negative impact on any of the protected characteristics
as described in the Equality Act 2010. These include Age, Disability, Race, Transgender,
Gender, Sexual orientation, Religion or belief, relationships between groups, and other
socially excluded groups.

Legal Implications

Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs) can be made for a number of reasons, including
avoiding danger to persons or other traffic using the road or for preventing the
likelihood of such danger arising, for preventing damage to the road or any building on
or near the road, for facilitating the passage on the road of traffic (including
pedestrians) or preserving or improving the amenities of the area through which the
road runs. A TRO may make include provisions prohibiting or restricting the waiting of
vehicles or the loading and unloading of vehicles.

A proposed TRO must be advertised and the statutory consultees notified and given a
3- week period (21 days) in which to register any support or objections. Members of
the public also have a right to object during that period. If objections are received to
the proposed order the matter must go before the appropriate executive member for a
decision whether or not to make the order, taking into account any comments received
from the public and/or the statutory consultees during the consultation period.

The Traffic Signs Regulations and General Directions came into force on 22nd April
2016 and altered the prescribed method of markings to delineate areas of carriageway
reserved for specified classes of vehicle or specified uses.

The dimensions for bay markings have been relaxed, apart from those for disabled
badge holders. Whilst a minimum width of 1.8 m is specified, there is no longer a
maximum width, nor a minimum or maximum length. The intention is to allow traffic
authorities flexibility in determining the bay or parking space size appropriate both for
the intended vehicle type and the surrounding street environment.

Bay markings and parking spaces should be of sufficient length and width to fully
accommodate the vehicles for which they are intended. In cases where larger
vehicles, for example 4x4 type vehicles, cannot fit fully within the marking, it is
recommended that traffic authorities use discretion over enforcement.

In addition to relaxing the permitted dimensions, traffic authorities now have the
freedom to use alternative methods to create bays and spaces on the carriageway.
This may include either colour-contrasting surfacing, or paving in a different pattern or
appearance, to distinguish parking areas from the surrounding carriageway. No
legend is required to be included in these markings. The markings may be used in
conjunction with upright signs as currently prescribed.

Minimum dimensions are still prescribed for bays reserved for disabled badge holders.
These must be a minimum of 6.6 m long, 2.7 m wide, or 3 m wide where placed in the
centre of the carriageway. There is an exception for cases where, on account of the
nature of traffic using the road, the overall width of the carriageway is insufficient to
accommodate a bay of that width.

Page 120

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

6.8 Any new signs indicating parking places and areas subject to parking controls must be
in accordance with the new regulations.

7. Director of Finance's comments

7.1 The introduction of charges for all residents and other parking permits will ensure that the
costs of implementing and operating schemes are fully funded from the income
generated.

7.2 Currently the costs of operating residents parking schemes are part funded from income

generated from On Street parking, which diverts this income from being used for other
purposes. The recommendations in this report are in line with the current council policy
of, where possible and practical, levying charges for services that offset the running
costs of those services.

7.3 The introduction of parking zone BF is estimated to cost £8,000. This includes the Traffic
Regulation Order in the press, the introduction of signage (and physical works related to
this), postal communications to properties within these zones and associated officer time.
This will be funded from the £200,000 set up costs budgeted as part of the on street
parking revenue budget and in effect will reduce the transfer of any operating surplus
that would be transferred to the off street parking reserve.

7.4 The proposed changes to charges for permits and scratch cards with regards to parking
zone BF is estimated to generate an additional £8,000 in income. This income will accrue
to the on street parking revenue budget and will help to ensure that the net costs of
implementing and operating schemes continues to be funded from the income
generated.

Signed by:
Alan Cufley
Director of Transport, Environment and Business Support

Appendices
Appendix A: Public responses to the proposal (road by road)

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a material
extent by the author in preparing this report:

Title of document Location
Preliminary EIA Transport Planning
Cosham survey results PCC website (search 'parking surveys')
34 emails Transport Planning
Page 121

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
rejected by .....oooiiiiiii ON i

Signed by:
Councillor Jim Fleming
Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation

Page 922

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Appendix A: Public responses to the proposal (road by road)

1. Resident, Albert Road

After perusing your plans for the new parking area to be known as BF zone covering the area in which
| live, | would like to put on record that my wife and | fully support these proposals. | have also
discussed this scheme with my neighbours within Albert Road Cosham and they are also in
agreement with the residents parking scheme. | have not received one negative comment from any
of my neighbours concerning this scheme. Please ensure that this email is brought before the
Committee when making the decision. The reason that we all support this scheme is that it is
currently very difficult to park in or around our own homes during the week because of the amount
of vehicles from outside the area that park in Albert Road all day whilst they go off to work.

2. Resident, Albert Road

| live at Albert Road Cosham and am happy to support the proposals described in Portsmouth
City Council (BF Park Lane Area) (Residents Parking Places and Waiting Restrictions) (No47) Order
2016.

3. Resident, Albert Road

| support the resident parking scheme 100%. During the day and early evening the road is full of
commuters and we can never park in our road until late in the evening when they all finish and go
home. Myself and my husband think resident parking would make life so much easier.

4. Resident, Albert Road

| object to the letter you have sent out | feel as if it's just a con just to get more money out of us we
pay out council tax we pay our road tax we should not have to pay to park outside of where we live
it's outrageous it's not going to solve anything especially if they can get a 12 hour permit for £1
everyone will be parking there it's cheaper than all of the car parks around cosham area if anything
you'll make parking harder for the folks who live down the street

PCC response:
The proposals have been put forward for public consultation in response to the residents who wish to

prevent long-term parking by non-residents such as commuters, local employees etc. Neither council
tax nor the vehicle licence contributes towards parking schemes, and therefore permit charges are
made so that the schemes pay for themselves instead of being subsidised with public funds. Visitor
permits are only available to residents, for their visitors (friends, family, tradesmen etc) - they are not
available for general purchase by customers or clients of local businesses, for example.

5. Resident, Albert Road

Thank you for the notice about starting a residents parking scheme in our area. We have read the
information carefully and have a couple of questions:

1. What does the, 'reduction of prohibition of waiting at any time mean? We are concerned that it is
even more likely that vehicles would park overhanging driveways, as they try and squeeze in, making
what can be a tight turn considerably harder or even impossible. This is of particular concern as my
wife is disabled and may need to get to the hospital in a hurry.

2. On the subject of disability, my wife also has regular carer visits arranged by Social Services.
Normally this would fit in the allowed hour but what happens if they need to overrun?

Pade 123

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

3. We normally park in our drive, so would not necessarily want a permit, but if the drive is blocked
by inconsiderate shoppers how could we park? It would seem we would have to pay you £30 a year
just in case.

PCC response:
1) There are a couple of reasons for proposing to reduce the double yellow lines there where shown

on the plan. Firstly, they are longer than those in place at similar junctions, possibly because they
were installed many years earlier when parking pressures were less severe. Secondly, there is
currently a 7-metre gap between the double yellow lines and the dropped kerb. Drivers are generally
less inclined to overhang or partly use double yellow lines, which is why you may currently
experience vehicles overhanging driveways (they cannot be penalised for doing so). With a little extra
room, vehicles can park at the revised end of the restriction and not as close to driveways.

2) Carers should have an 'Essential Visitor' permit, which exempts them from the time restrictions
within residents' parking zones. If they do not currently hold a permit they can easily obtain one from
Portsmouth City Council.

3) If your driveway is obstructed by inconsiderate drivers (shoppers or otherwise) and you are unable
to get out, please contact the Traffic Management Centre for assistance on 023 9268 8290. The
nearest enforcement officer will be able to attend. This is regardless of whether or not a parking zone
is in place.

6. Business, Albert Road

We are a care home with nursing situated in Albert Road. Potentially 46 residents may live at the
premises at any one time. As a care home visitors frequently access the home as they would, visiting
relatives, even if that person was living in their own home. We also potentially have 20 staff at any
one time working on shift, some of whom have vehicles.

Could you please confirm how the home would be provided with permits to enable visiting with
residents as well as for staff to park.

PCC response:
With 32 parking zones currently in place throughout the city, this is not a unique situation and care

homes are catered for. Those living at the care home are classed as residents and therefore would be
entitled to purchase visitor scratch cards for their visitors i.e. relatives. If the care home itself wanted
to buy them on behalf of a resident this would be possible but the purchaser's name would be the
resident and a document relating to the resident would need to be provided.

Staff at the care home would be entitled to Business permits (purchased either by the home or on an
individual basis). Any staff who currently hold Essential Visitor permits cannot use them for parking
at the normal place of work, but would continue to use them when visiting service users away from
the care home. Any external staff visiting the home, nurses etc., could use their Essential Visitor
permits in the normal way.

7. Resident, Dean Road

| am writing with regards to the proposed parking zone in dean road to say that | am in support of
these proposals. My only concern would be the amount of double yellow lines proposed for dean
road and if this would have an impact on there not being sufficient space for residents to park.

Page 424

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth

CITY COUNCIL

PCC response:
With regard to the additional double yellow lines - parking bays within parking zones are typically

marked where vehicles currently park. They are linked up by double yellow lines so that unrestricted
sections of road are not left that could cause confusion or encourage drivers to park in unsuitable
places and obstruct access.

8. Resident, Dean Road

| would like to object to the introduction of BF parking zone as it is not required in our opinion, we
never have a problem, or our visitors, parking in Dean Road anytime of day or night, it is not
always right outside our house but never in a different road, the only time we ever park more than
5 doors away from ours is late afternoon/early evening weekdays. In my opinion the majority of
people in favour are residents who think it is there right to park immediately outside there front
door, we all live in a densely populated city and all the local residents chose to live close to the
great amenities on our doorstep, this inherently comes with parking issues but not enough to
warrant extra restrictions and charges. Given the percentages in favour of the scheme | can't see
how it is democratically fair either to impose this scheme, only 79/620 less than 15%. The one
single reason why parking has become an issue to 'certain' residents over the past few years is the
expansion of QA hospital, if the parking for employees, patients and visitors was addressed more
efficiently then TRO 47/2016 would not have been required at all!

9. Resident, Dean Road

| would like to make the following comments.

(1) DEAN ROAD has not been given a name on your Diagram of BF Zone Boundary. The road has
not been titled on your map. As | like there | am a bit miffed!

(2) Section D) Prohibition of waiting at any time (double yellow lines ). Section 2 re. Dean Road.

| have today walked Dean Road and there are currently NO double yellow lines on the road (other
than the ones at the entry of the Road, which have been put there, very sensibly, to ensure that
those entering and leaving the road have full visibility and safety enhancement ). Your notification
suggests that instead of there being NO double yellow lines in Dean Road that a total of --- 66
Metres --- of double yellow lines are to be introduced into Dean Road. Is that really your plan? (or
could it be that your notice has mixed up Dean Road with Park Lane ?)

| would be very grateful if you could please get back to me with your comments addressing my
two points. Additionally, and this is a recommendation for process improvement, would it not
have been possible to provide an additional map showing the double yellow lines to be introduced
or removed in the proposed Parking Zone. Such a map, in addition to the wording, would be user
friendly and helpful.

PCC response:
To answer your points in the order they were raised:

1) The plan incorporated into the public notice indicates the zone boundary, with road names for
reference. | have attached the formal proposal plan, which is one of the documents on deposit at
the Civic Offices and is available upon request. This is a statutory requirement, applying to all
proposed traffic regulation orders. An extract is below for ease of reference in relation to point 2.

Pade 125

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

2) Parking bays within parking zones are typically marked where vehicles currently park. They are
linked up with double yellow lines so that unrestricted sections of road are not left that could
cause confusion, or encourage drivers to park in unsuitable places and obstruct access. For
example, it is not possible to mark parking bays around the 90' bends in Dean Road, and parking
can only take place on one side of the road adjacent to No.30 and alongside No.33. Without the
double yellow lines, anyone without a permit could park opposite a marked bay and (a) could not
be penalised for parking without a permit, (b) would prevent use of the marked bay opposite (c)
could obstruct access to the northern part of the road and (d) could prevent access to/from
driveways and garages. | hope the indicative views below will help to explain this.

REA

TITLEMENT

iG AT ANY TIME (DOUBLE YELLOW LINES)
ITION OF WAITING AT ANY TIME

T
s

W

TIT
U

4

There are already double yellow lines at the northern end of Pervin Road and therefore it is not
necessary to propose them there. The gaps between the parking bays shown in red on the plan
above and attached indicate the dropped kerbs - parking bays cannot be marked in front of them.

10. Resident, Dean Road
| personally think this will make the parking around the area worse especially in the evening when
there are no restrictions to park.

There will be no benefit for the people who work as generally they will be away from these
roads between 8am -6pm (but yet have to pay to not park there)

The proposed yellow lines will reduce the amount of free space to park, which will cause a
lot more parking issues.

All the people that work who live down these roads will struggle to park when they come
home as the hospital have a changeover period, which would allow them to arrive at 5pm and
then they can stay there with no issues until 8am in the morning.

Page!f26
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Based on the results 20% of surveys returned, | do not think this is an acceptable amount to
warrant enforcing the restrictions. Most of the people who have not responded probably have no
issues with parking so haven’t responded.

There has been events around the area and the parking has not been of any issue

What | do see is people unable to park directly outside their homes (maybe one of two cars
up) move their cars when a space is then free. With the restrictions this will not prevent this from
happening.

Personally, |1 have had no issues parking in the area in the last 3 and half years of living here. |
would not be happy to have to pay to park down the street | live in, this is one of the things that
when | purchased my house that went in favour as there were no restrictions. Having to get
vouchers for family and friends to visit during these hours | do not think is acceptable, why should
| have to pay for the privilege for my family to visit? | think before anything changes another
survey should be issued so the people that have now seen the proposal can respond based on
what will change. | am pretty sure the results will go the other way. | think at least 50% of the
people who live around the area should have to respond prior to anything being enforced.

PCC response:
The proposed time of operation takes into account

- The survey results (respondents indicated that 61% of the main parking problems occur
during the morning and afternoon)

- The Pay & Display on the High Street operating until 6pm

- The BC parking zone north of Havant Road operating until 6pm

- Parking by non-residents for several days at a time will be prevented

See response to 9) above, and the images, regarding parking bays and double yellow lines.

The aim of the survey is gather information about parking and to gauge the level of interest in a
parking zone, to see if it is worth spending time developing proposals. Whilst the survey
information informs the proposals, the response to the formal consultation on the designed
parking zone is really what any future decisions is based on, because it contains the detail. A copy
of the public notice was delivered to every property within the proposal area so that people can
have a look, decide how it will affect them, and submit their views (as you have done). A report
will be published following the formal consultation, and residents can view the recommendations,
decide if they agree and have another opportunity to give their views at the subsequent public
decision meeting.

Further response from resident

Yes | did understand the yellow lines, and I still have big issues with it.

| have spoken to a few people down the street as they did not realise this would lead to yellow
lines and parking bays being put into the streets. These are people that were fore the parking
scheme and | think are now regretting there response.

Generally they do not want parking bays or yellow lines. If this was to go ahead could you rather
than putting bays and yellow lines just make it a restricted area, with signs up?

Pade 127

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth

CITY COUNCIL

They also have issues with the timings especially as it was based on 61% morning and afternoon,
but afternoon to evening is still 56% so actually not much difference however everyone would
then be free to park where they like from 6pm (actually 5pm if they get there then as they have an
hour) with the new restrictions. | think highly that these restrictions are actually going to cause
more issues than good. | have been reviewing the parking around the area since this has all been
proposed and there are always empty spaces around. The weekends seem to be really quiet, |
have manged to go out numerous times and have still been able to park in exactly the same spot
when | have returned. Like | have mentioned previously, | think because people can’t park directly
outside their house sometimes causes them to get uptight about the parking. They will soon regret
their responses as they are not going to be guaranteed a spot outside with the restrictions in place
so will not be any different, especially in the evening with no restrictions. Unless you put bays and
allocate them to house and put it as a 24 hour zone.

11. Resident, Park Lane
| live at Park Lane, Cosham. | am over the moon with the parking proposals please enforce them
ASAP !1]

12. Resident, Park Lane

| would like to add my support for the parking charges that are being proposed in the new BF Zone
Boundary for the Park Lane area in Cosham. It has been a year-long fight to get the parking permits
implemented: As the closest road to the hospital without parking permits, our road is always full of
cars.

Weekdays - as soon as a resident leaves for work it is filled with hospital workers, staff working in
Cosham high street or shoppers who do not wish to pay for parking in your nearby car park.
Saturdays - shoppers mainly avoiding parking fees rather than parking in Market Road car park in
Cosham. When a resident leaves for a short trip they cannot get anywhere near the own premises.
Sundays - As we have St Colmans Catholic church and Cosham Baptist Church at the end of the road
we have many worshipers wishing to park nearby.

The main reason at the moment is delivery drivers for Tesco / Sainsburys / ADSA etc., Take away
meals, Home orders and Amazon deliveries, Taxis / Residents friends doing pick-ups. These all think
it’s OK to park across my driveway and sometimes on, as they there is no available parking. So they
park in the most open available space - across my property on double yellow lines.

13. Resident, Park Lane
| am a resident of Park Lane and in favour of parking permits. It's about time this should be done. We
have had a lot of problems with hospital staff using our road to park.

14. Resident, Park Lane
Excellent proposal and a long time coming due to QA staff parking in the Lane. Thank you.

15. Resident, Park Lane

As a resident of Park Lane, | am wholly in favour of having the parking restriction and permits being
put into place. | have no objections to paying for a permit and feel it would ease the problem of
parking in the road, which to be honest is an absolute nightmare and makes residents lives a misery.

Pagelf28

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

16. Resident, Park Lane

| have received notice of a parking Zone for Park Lane Cosham. | personally am not convinced this
scheme is necessary, please let me know how to place a freedom of information request for the
resident poll result for this scheme or please send me the result of the poll. | find the grouping of
roads for this scheme most illogical. Your proposal is to group Park Lane with Albert Road, Dean
Road and Pervin Road. There is NO direct vehicular access between Park Lane and Albert Road,
Dean Road & Pervin Road so | don’t believe Park Lane should be in this grouping. If for example
another grouping was created South of Park Lane, Park Lane residents would be considerably
disadvantaged as they would need to drive some considerable distance to the other streets in
Zone BF and walk through unlit and unsurfaced alleyways at risk of injury or worse to navigate
between Park lane and the other Roads in the scheme. | also object to the charge associated with
the first permit, many other large cities do not charge for the first permit.

PCC response:
The results of the survey can be viewed on Portsmouth City Council's website here:

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/community-and-environment/community/parking-survey-
results.aspx (top entry)

The subsequent report that led to the formal consultation on a proposed parking zone can be
viewed here: http://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=176&MId=3490&Ver=4

Whether or not the parking zone is approved will largely depend on what residents tell us in
response to the consultation. The responses will be included in the subsequent report, to inform
the decisions to be made. As you have responded to the proposal, you will automatically be kept
updated of its progress, have access to the report and the opportunity to attend the public
decision meeting where the results of the consultation will be considered. Whilst there is no
vehicular access between Albert Road and Park Lane, residents would continue to be able to park
in Park Lane or Dean Road (and vice versa) if needed, and walk through to their homes as they do
now. Parking zone boundaries can be adjusted, and should further zones be implemented that
would better serve Park Lane residents it would be possible to propose a change to the boundary.
Until recently, Portsmouth was the only local authority in the south of England that did not charge
for the first Resident permit with the exception of Reading, where the second permit costs £80.
The following information is from 2014, and permit prices have increased since:

Local Authorities in the South of England

Council Annual Permit Costs
First permit
Basingstoke & Deane £24
Bath & NE Somerset £30-£93
Brighton & Hove £80 -£115
Bristol £30
Canterbury £125
Chichester £35-£160
Christchurch £35-£60
Dorset £65
Dover £35-£75
Hastings £75
Havant / Petersfield £25
Herne Bay, Kent £50
Poole £46
Southampton £30-£100
Test Valley £15
Weymouth £70
Winchester £22

Palde 129

www.portsmouth.gov.uk


https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/community-and-environment/community/parking-survey-results.aspx
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/community-and-environment/community/parking-survey-results.aspx
http://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=176&MId=3490&Ver=4

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

17. Resident, Park Lane

While we welcome the proposal to assign residents' parking places and waiting restrictions in the
BF Park Lane Area we have a number of concerns with the proposed scheme. In the comments
made below, comparisons are made with a similar scheme currently in operation adjacent to the
BF Park Lane Area, north of Havant Road, e.g. in St John's Road, and which will be referred to as
“Scheme A”. We propose that the conditions under which Scheme A operates be applied to the BF
Park Lane Area.

The proposed scheme intends to levy residents charges for permits. This is unfair to residents, who
should be entitled to park outside or nearby their properties without charge. Scheme A does not
charge residents for the first permit, and this should be the case with the proposed scheme, since
it otherwise treats Portsmouth residents differently, depending on where they live, and this is
discriminatory.

Residents who have a dropped kerb outside their property will not be required to pay for a parking
permit. Charging residents for a parking permit will encourage the paving over of front gardens to
provide off-street parking. This will increase the amount of rainwater run-off that the city's
drainage system will have to cope with, with attendant costs to the infrastructure needed to
support it. In addition, any increase in the number of dropped kerbs will reduce the number of
authorised parking bays.

The proposal is that authorised parking bays would be in operation seven days a week. The
residents' survey carried out prior to the proposal showed that 57% of residents attributed the
parking problems mainly to commuter parking and shopper/customer parking. This does not
support extension of the parking restrictions to the weekends, which are outside normal working
hours. In Scheme A restrictions do not apply at weekends.

A one-hour limit to free parking means that residents' visitors cannot park without charge if their
visit extends beyond one hour, which is an unreasonably short time. Furthermore, under the
current proposal, this would apply also to weekends, when visits to residents' properties are likely
to be longer than during the week. Extending the limit to two hours would not increase parking by
non-residents, and is the time limit that applies in Scheme A.

In summary, we would like to see the following changes made to the parking restriction
proposals:

No charge be levied on the first parking permit for residents.

The scheme to operate for five days a week, Monday to Friday, 8AM to 6PM, with no restrictions
over the weekend.

Free parking for non-permit holders be extended from one hour to two hours.

These changes would bring the scheme into line with that operating north of Havant Road and
immediately adjacent to the BF Park Lane Area.

PCC response:
The 2015/2016 budget set in December 2014 reintroduced a charge for the first Resident

permit (£30), so that where there is a cost to the council for providing a service (not covered by
Council Tax) a charge is made to cover those costs. This policy aims to ensure that the net costs of

Page30

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

implementing and operating parking schemes are funded from the income generated, and applies
to all 32 parking zones now operating across the city. However, as the charge was introduced in
October 2015 and is payable on the renewal of the permit, it will be the end of September 2016
before all residents have paid for the first permit.

Following the above decision, residents of the (then) 35 parking zones were given the
opportunity to say whether or not they wished their parking zone to continue, in light of the £30
charge for the first Resident permit. This delayed the introduction of the charge from April 2015
to October 2015.

At the same time, residents were advised that each remaining parking zone would be
reviewed so that they operate as effectively and efficiently as possible. The BC East Cosham zone
(referred to as Scheme A in your email) is programmed for review next year, and the 2-hour free
parking period may be reduced to 1 hour or less. Parking zones such as the one adjacent to
Commercial Road and the one in Old Portsmouth were originally introduced with a 2-hour free
parking period, at residents' requests. However, residents reported during the survey that 2 hours
is sufficient time for shoppers, appointments and visitors to Gunwharf Quays, who take advantage
of the free parking as their first choice, leaving residents either using the Pay & Display or being
unable to park near their houses. Other parking zones have between 1 - 3 hours' free parking, and
some operate as 'permit holders only'.

Dropped kerbs provide vehicular access, but cannot be obstructed by their owners, so many
residents choose to park 1 vehicle on their driveway and the other in front of the access. Whether
they do this or just park in front of the dropped kerb, it means they don't take up one of the
marked bays available. There are strict criteria for applying for new dropped kerbs and creating
off-road parking, and drainage is a key consideration that can lead to the refusal of
applications. In Albert Road, Dean Road and Pervin Road the properties that do not already have
off-road parking are either flat-fronted to the footway or have a small forecourt and would not be
able to accommodate a vehicle. Within parking zones, the requirement for permits and/or the
costs involves encourages many residents to use their existing garages and driveways rather than
just park on the road. Update: as the recommendation is that the parking bays are not marked
out, a permit will be required to be displayed (or authorised electronically) when parking on the
public roads within the BF zone - including in front of dropped kerbs.

The parking zone is proposed to operate 7 days a week, but that could be reduced to
weekdays only depending on how residents respond to the consultation. The initial proposal is
based on the concerns of residents regarding High Street employees, shoppers and other
customers parking in the residential roads, and weekends can be busier in terms of these.

Further response from resident

While we are pleased to learn that all residents in areas affected by parking restrictions are to be
treated equally with regard to the cost of a permit, we still believe that Portsmouth residents
should be able to park near their homes without having to pay for the privilege, and regardless of
whether or not there are any parking restrictions in their area. The cost of this should be
subsumed into the council tax set for the city. We pointed out that the one-hour limit, together
with the operation of the scheme on weekends, was detrimental to social visits to residents. A
two-hour limit would go some way towards addressing this issue, together with the lifting of
restrictions on the weekend. We don't believe that a reduction from a two-hour limit to a one-
hour limit would lead to less non-residential parking. It would not affect office and shop workers
in and near Cosham High Street, nor those working at QA, since these clearly need parking in

Pade 131

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth

CITY COUNCIL

excess of the proposed two hours. From the council's perspective would not a one-hour limit need
substantially more resourcing (e.g. the return of a traffic warden twice as often to enforce the
restriction)?

Our experience is that non-residential parking is considerably lighter on Sundays, and this can be
attributed to there being fewer and no large shops being open on that day in the area. We
concede, though, that parking difficulties on a Saturday are similar to week-days. These
considerations lead us to suggest a two-hour restriction be applied, Monday to Saturday, 8AM to
6PM. A final point: would restrictions apply to tradesmen visiting residents to carry out work?

PCC response:
Visitor permits come in the form of scratch cards, which can be purchased by residents for use in

all visitors' vehicles. This includes tradesmen and other professional visitors.

18. Resident, Park Lane

As a local resident who will be affected by the proposed parking order, | would like clarification on
the implications for residents who have a dropped curb in front of their property and associated
off-street parking. For example, if a resident parks across the dropped curb in front of their
residence be required to display a resident's parking permit?

PCC response:
In answer to your query, no, residents are not required to display a permit when parking in front

of their dropped kerb. Residents' visitors can also park there with the resident's permission.
Permits should be displayed (or authorised electronically) when using the marked parking bays.
Should a vehicle park in front of your dropped kerb and obstruct access, either now or with a
parking zone in place, please contact the Traffic Management Centre for assistance on 023 9268
8290. The nearest enforcement officer will be able to attend.

Update: as the recommendation is that the parking bays are not marked out, a permit will be
required to be displayed (or authorised electronically) when parking on the public roads within
the BF zone - including in front of dropped kerbs.

19. Resident, Pervin Road

As a resident of Pervin Road Cosham | am so very happy about the proposal for Residents Parking
Places. The parking situation in our street during the working week is just awful. My husband walks
the dog in the morning and he counted the other morning by the time he had walked the dog round
the block 5 cars had already parked to leave their cars there whilst they went to work. Most of these
drivers work at QA Hospital so they park their cars in our street from 7 till 5 or 6. This is very annoying
because | finish work at 4 and have no chance of parking in my street so often end up trying to find a
space in other streets only to be able to park my car in my street at 6. If | finish work at lunchtime and
do my food shopping | have to park my car outside my house in the middle of the road carry shopping
into the house and then try and park my car. On one occasion there was just nowhere to park in my
street or Albert Road and Dean Road so | had to park in the car park at the top of Pervin Road and
pay! The parking situation has got worse in Pervin Road over the past 26 years. QA Hospital has a
park & ride which is offered to their staff so why are they using our streets to park? They are very
inconsiderate and what annoys the residents in our street even more is the attitude of these
personnel who give us dirty looks. So as you can see this proposal is very welcomed indeed.

Page$32

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

20. Resident, Pervin Road

| am writing to give my support for the proposed residents parking scheme for bf zone . As a
resident of Pervin Road | find parking a huge problem due to local workers and hospital workers
parking here. We also have a lot of large vans from sse and others parking overnight. We have
been trying to get residents parking for some time so this cannot happen soon enough in my
opinion.

21. Resident, Pervin Road

As a resident of Pervin Rd you have my absolute support in the addition to resident parking bays in
the proposed BF Park Lane Area. In the past we have put up with abuse, damaged vehicles, and
people driving too quickly up and down the street all so they can get a free parking space. They
normally start hovering around about 7 in the morning and by the time the kids have left for
school the entire street is filled up. Looking forward to being able to park in my own street for a
change!

22. Resident, Pervin Road

As a resident of Pervin Road Cosham for the last 10 years, | hope these restrictions will be put into
place. Itis becoming more and more difficult to park, and residents sometimes cannot get parked
in Pervin, Dean or Albert Road which then means parking right out of the area. | look forward to
these proposals being confirmed.

23. Resident, Pervin Road

| would like to support the parking zone proposal. Having lived in Pervin Road for a few years now |
can only say it has only got worse as time has gone by, especially when the car park behind Iceland
became a pay and display one. Of the neighbours | have spoken to, | have only heard support for
the idea. With a lot of NHS staff and Cosham high street staff parking here all day, it is a nightmare
to find a space if you pop out somewhere. And with the shoppers coming and going all day, many
a time | have not taken my car as | know | probably won't be able to park when | return. | think the
local traders will find an increase in sales when the zone comes in, as the workers cars won't be
there. The transport links to Cosham area excellent, even a park and ride for NHS staff. | have no
objection to people being able to park for an hour whilst they do their shopping, as | said it will be
good for the local traders.

24. Resident, Pervin Road
| live at pervin road and the need for residents parking is required because if on a weekday or
Saturday there no spaces available between 8.00 am and 6.00pm so | would say yes.

25. Resident, Pervin Road

| am writing to express my support for the BF Park Lane Area parking permit proposal. | live in
Pervin Road and we have huge difficulties with parking. In particular during the day (08:30-17:30)
where people park down our road for the entire day whilst they go to work at QA hospital or in
Cosham High Street. This problem seems to have gotten worse. | have found myself waiting in the
road for someone to return to their vehicle so | can park 3 times in the last week alone. | have a
young baby and walking long distances to park is extremely difficult. | have even had to pay to
park in the car park at the top of the road which is totally unacceptable. | am hoping that this
parking scheme will ensure fair parking opportunities for residents and reduce the number of
business vehicles and long-stay parking of those working in the area.

Pade 133

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

26. Resident, Pervin Road

| would strongly agree with having residential permit parking. The amount of QA employees who
park in our street from seven in the morning till five or six in the evening is very annoying. QA
provide a park and ride scheme and a car park and still people don't use them. | have spoken to
my neighbours and they totally agree with this and support your proposal.

27. Resident, Pervin Road

| live in Pervin Road and, as | understand it, non permit holders would be allowed to park in the
road between 8a.m. and 6p.m. for one hour. Now, it takes two minutes to walk from my house to
the High Street, therefore a shopper could have 50 plus minutes to shop before returning to the
car. The status quo is that around 7.30 a.m. onwards, hospital and some shop workers come and
park here and go off to work. Their cars sit quietly until retrieved in the afternoon. Your plan
means that these workers can no longer park here, so, instead of their cars sitting here quietly all
day, we are going to have shoppers coming and going all day, looking for parking spaces. Knowing
people as | do, they will seek out the one hour free parking spaces, rather than pay their 70p in the
car park. | realize that your are only trying to help residents with cars, who can't park, but | hope
you will take notice of my point about one hour parking being far too long, considering our
proximity to the High Street. As it stands, | think the plan will only exacerbate the amount of traffic
and turning that we get in this cul-de-sac.

PCC response:
The 1-hour free parking period is designed for residents' visitors - without it, residents would have

to purchase and use permits for every visitor. From experience of the other parking zones in
operation, this flexibility is likely to be valued more highly than potential additional traffic
movements. Residents have requested restricted parking due to the all-day parking by non-
residents such as employees of the High Street and QA hospital. Their vehicles' non-movement is
the main concern reported by residents, which affects the ability of many to park near their homes
and go about their daily business, to park on their return after 5pm etc.

28. Business, High Street

As a business on the High Street yet more restrictions on time will reduce the footfall to the local
area again, since the 1 hour restricted free parking we have seen a downturn in our business as
people don't have time to wander, browse or have a coffee. Death to the local shops. During
the day residents are at work. It's at night where the problem lies too many cars per household.
Why do businesses have to pay more for parking permits? These roads are the only non-restricted
areas to park for users of the high street including my employee who works when public transport
is unavailable. Most of Albert Road has its own parking as well as drives or flats. If the councillor
was not on the committee would this be going though? Residents parking permits do not work.
Way of collecting money

29. Business, High Street (same text as above, different email address)

As a business on the High Street yet more restrictions on time will reduce the footfall to the local
area again, since the 1 hour restricted free parking we have seen a downturn in our business as
people don't have time to wander, browse or have a coffee. Death to the local shops. During
the day residents are at work. It's at night where the problem lies too many cars per household.
Why do businesses have to pay more for parking permits? These roads are the only non-restricted
areas to park for users of the high street including my employee who works when public transport

Page$34

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

is unavailable. Most of Albert Road has its own parking as well as drives or flats. If the councillor
was not on the committee would this be going though? Residents parking permits do not work.
Way of collecting money

30. Resident, High Street

| live in Cosham High Street and | normally park my one vehicle in either of the roads listed in the
BF Zone as the parking allocation for the premises belongs to the shop. | have some concerns /
observations that | would like to be addressed.

1. If the proposal goes ahead can | get a refund for the permit if | decide to leave my property?

2. How is a 1 hour parking time going to work when you hardly see any traffic wardens patrolling
the area? It's a lot of work for a traffic warden to walk down the above roads key in car details and
return in time to check if vehicles have left the area!

| can understand partly why this has been raised as doing shift work of days and nights I've
returned home in the morning and seen hospital staff park their vehicles for the day. Having said
that | suppose it's better than putting parking meters along the street and driving shoppers away
just like Northend shopping area. You mentioned about temporary parking vouchers for visitors,
where will they been able to purchase this? Or residents be able to purchase this? If the proposal
goes ahead when will this likely to be enforced and | take it residents will be notified in plenty of
time to purchased a permit and supply the relevant documentation! | suppose a question should
be raised why isn't the 1st permit free for the householder? Why do motorcycles get away with
the free parking? They also pay a road vehicle license and will take up a parking spot as no
motorcycle bays are provided for them.

PCC response:
1. Yes, refunds are provided for permits that are no longer required, on a pro rata basis (i.e. per

complete month remaining).

2. The enforcement officers currently enforce all parking zones in the city, and those with a 1-hour
free parking period or under are more efficient to enforce and therefore more effective. If you
require details of PCNs issued in a particular road, please email parking@portsmouthcc.gov.uk for
the details. Patrols are prioritised on locations of low compliance, with visits increased where
higher levels of contravention are reported/identified.

3. Visitor permits (scratch cards) are available by post, telephone and in certain outlets throughout
the city. Visitor parking can also be arranged electronically over the phone via card payment -
once registered, visiting vehicles can be authorised with a phone call. Otherwise, the scratch cards
can be kept indefinitely and validated when needed.

4. At this stage it is not known whether or not the proposal will be approved; the consultation
responses are still being collated for the report. If approved in September, then potentially the
zone could be introduced in November, with permit application letters sent to all residents
approximately 1 month before the restrictions come into effect.

5. When parking zones were first introduced in 1999 the first permit cost £25 per year. This
charge was removed in 2002 and Residents' Parking zones were subsidised with public funds until
November 2015, when the decision was taken to reintroduce the charge so that parking zones pay
for themselves. Between 2012 and recently, Residents' Parking was on hold, which has resulted in
a backlog of requests and a delay in surveying your area.

Pade 135

www.portsmouth.gov.uk


mailto:parking@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

6. Motorcycles currently do not pay within Pay & Display areas or parking zones. Historically this
has been the case because they take up less space and have nowhere to display permits or tickets.

With the increase in electronic payments, this may change in the future.

31. Resident, Mulberry Lane
We have learned with much apprehension of the proposed residents parking scheme in Cosham,

covering Albert Road, Magdala Road and Park Lane. Like the adjacent Park Lane, Mulberry Lane is
a narrow Road that only allows for parking on one side. We fear that the proposal will encourage
even greater congestion than Mulberry Lane currently experiences, which regularly results in
illegal parking on pavements and leads to obstructions for larger vehicles using the road. These
problems are particularly associated with staff from QA Hospital parking on an all-day basis,
shoppers from Cosham High Street choosing tom avoid the pay car park, and staff and parents
from the nearby Court Lane School. During the past few months there have been several accidents
caused by these issues. We fear that the proposal as it stands may will an adverse effect on
Mulberry Lane, and we therefore urge that this road should also be included in the scheme.

PCC response:
The parking zone is proposed to operate between 8am-6pm. The 4 roads included are highlighted

on the plan below, which is where residents have been petitioning for permit parking for many
years. No requests have been received from Lindisfarne Close, Mulberry Lane, Magdala Road,
Dorking Crescent or Salisbury Road, and therefore they have not been included at this stage.

RROAD. Q HAVANT RGAD
Cosham

—

v [ ]

— [ |
L_Fro

MK sraep
DEAN Roap
WOOLNER AVENUE

PARK L

MULBERRY AVENUE

ALBERT RoAp P

&
T 2

MRSD“M P
=

k

Scho

HGH Srrger

e’
DoRKING CRESS

Ccog
HAM p g gy AVENyg

SALISBURY. ROAD

Ky
0,
Wsig, Roap
inowsLEY FOAD

Y

32. Resident, Lindisfarne Close (outside of proposed zone)
| am extremely concerned and unhappy about the proposed RESIDENTS PARKING PLACES in

respect of Park Lane. Being a resident of Lindisfarne Close, we are already suffering with excessive
parking by residents of Park Lane and also used by nurses whom | presume work at QA Hospital.
We suffer with works pick up vehicles parking here and at times blocking the road as they are
parked either side of the road, making it impossible for a fire engine to go up the close if at all
necessary. Lindisfarne Close has only 1 inadequate pavement to the right side of the road, behind
residential houses. Parking is already restricted here and in places cars are parked on the single
pavement making it impossible to use the pavement. Being disabled | use a mobility scooter and
have no choice but to use the road as the pavement does not have suitable dropped kerbs. | am
sure that the proposed prohibitions would only make the road more congested. Bearing in mind
that this is an estate with a large number of children | am concerned for their safety as well as my

Page?/36

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

own. | am quite sure that a lot of the residents of Park Lane would not be willing to pay to park in
front of their properties, and there are many cars parked there during the day.

33. Resident, Lindisfarne Close (outside of proposed zone)

| would like to object to the parking not to go ahead. Living in Lindisfarne close myself all this will
do is make everyone who had to pay and people from the QA hospital that currently park in these
area all start parking more into Lindisfarne Close instead were it is already a problem with cars
parking on pavements and on drop curbs. Please do not go ahead with this idea, or if you do then
include Lindisfarne Close into this so that it will stop them parking here also.

34. Road not specified

| object to the proposed TRO-47-2016. There are no proposed measures or plan to accommodate
non residential vehicles in the area. If the proposed changes are to reduce the perceived
commuter / shopper parking in residential area (this is not against the law) then where is the plan
for site of new car park to accommodate these vehicles. It appears that TRO-47-2016 is based on
the perceived view of 71 residents who returned the survey. The views of the 496 households
(80% non responders to survey) are not known. Please can you confirm that the results of the
objections and support for TRO-47-2016 will be available. It is important that this is a transparent
process which is fully auditable. Please can you also let me know where to view the full survey
results not just the highlighted summary presented in the report?

PCC response:

Parking zones aim to improve parking opportunities for residents who have highlighted parking
problems caused by non-residents. The survey carried out recently was delayed from 2012, when
parking zones were put on hold due to funding constraints - Cosham was included in the survey
programme following petitions signed by 108 residents of Albert Rd, Dean Rd, Pervin Rd and Park
Lane. No assumptions can be made regarding households that do not respond either to a survey
or public consultation.

Parking zones have the effect of encouraging people to consider how they travel to work, and to
make more use of alternatives available to single-occupancy car journeys and/or free all day
parking in residential streets. The QA hospital, for example, has a number of measures in place to
cater for staff parking, but some will always choose a free option if available. Other local
employees may consider using the nearby railway, bus services, car-sharing or even cycling.

The results of the Cosham survey can be viewed on Portsmouth City Council's website here:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/community-and-environment/community/parking-survey-

results.aspx (top entry).

(End of report)

Pade 137

www.portsmouth.gov.uk


https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/community-and-environment/community/parking-survey-results.aspx
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/community-and-environment/community/parking-survey-results.aspx

This page is intentionally left blank



Preliminary assessment form v5 / 2013

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

The preliminary impact assessment is a quick and easy screening process. It should:

[ identify those policies, projects, services, functions or strategies which require a full EIA by
looking at:

I negative, positive or no impact on any of the equality groups

[ opportunity to promote equality for the equality groups
p data/feedback

i prioritise if and when a full EIA should be completed

0 justify reasons for why a full EIA is not going to be completed

I ™

Director of Transport, environment & business support

Directorate:

h.

Function e.g. HR, ‘{I'raf'fic and Transportation
IS, carers:

Title of policy, service, function, project or strategy (new or old) :

Residents' Parking Zone, Cosham (Albert Road, Dean Road, Pervin Road, Park Lane). Permit holders )
only with 1 hour's free parking for non-permit holders.

Type of policy, service, function, project or strategy:

|' _jl Existing

.

|/£:| New / proposed

| Changed Page 139

M



Q1 - What is the aim of your policy, service, function, project or strategy?

To give priority over on-street parking to residents and their visitors by preventing long-term parking by
commuters and local employees etc.

Q2 - Who is this policy, service, function, project or strategy going to benefit or have a
detrimental effect on and how?

Benefit: Residents and their visitors (including friends, family, carers and health workers). Businesses
in terms of short-term parking for customers. Blue Badge holders are exempt from the restriction and
could benefit from being able to park closer to their destination when visiting the High Street area.

Commuters and local employees could be encouraged to find alternative parking (not in residential
streets) or to consider alternative, more sustainable, modes of transport such as cycling, walking, public
transport or car-sharing.

Q3 - Thinking about each group below, does, or could the policy, service, function, project or
strategy have a negative impact on members of the equality groups below?

Group Negative Pois':ii;/:c{cno Unclear
Age *
Disability *
Race Y
Gender *
Transgender Y
Sexual orientation Y
Religion or belief *
Pregnancy and maternity *
Other excluded groups *

If the answer is "negative" or "unclear" c&nsider1d£bng a full EIA
age



Q4 - Does, or could the policy, service, function, project or strategy help to promote equality for
members of the equality groups?

Age * @ @

Disability * () ()
Race D D ‘;jl
Gender Ij} [f::| |\§/\|
Transgender _j [:] |@
Sexual orientation |\ij I\:W |i§/|
Religion or belief [:, [:] @
Pregnancy or maternity I::j I\:I |K‘E\|
Other excluded groups O |ij| @;I

If the answer is "no" or "unclear" consider doing a full EIA

Q5 - Do you have any feedback data from the equality groups that influences, affects or shapes
this policy, service, function, project or strategy?

o @ @
Disability * () ()
e © o
Gender () * ()
Transgender [ ] * [ ]
Sexual orientation () * ()
Religion or belief | Page 141 [ ]



Pregnancy and maternity *

Other excluded groups *

If the answer is "no" or "unclear" consider doing a full EIA

Q6 - Using the assessments in questions 3, 4 and 5 should a full assessment be carried out on
this policy, service, function or strategy?

yes % No

Q7 - How have you come to this decision?

Improving parking availability for Blue Badge holders, pregnant women, residents with disabilities, older
residents and those who care for them is a positive outcome of parking zones. Permit parking does not
discriminate between motorists in terms of race, gender, transgender, sexual orientation, religion or
belief or other excluded groups.

The survey carried out in January 2016 showed 37 residents in favour of permit parking and 5 against.
The results can be viewed on PCC's website here: https.//mavw. portsmouth.gov. uk/ext/documents-
external/par-cosham-rp-survey-results-jan16. pdf

The results led to consultation taking place on a designed scheme, and again more residents were in
favour than objected (17 - 11), leading to the recommendation to approve the scheme. The full
responses are included in Appendix A of the report to the Traffic & Transportation Cabinet Member
http://democracy.portsmouth.gov.ukfieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=176&MId=3507&Ver=4

Residents of all ages and abilities feel permit parking would enable them to park nearer to their homes,

by preventing parking by non-residents such as commuters on a long-term basis. Residents requiring
carers have been reassured that permits are available should any carers not already have them.

If you have to complete a full EIA please contact the Equalities and diversity team if you require help
Tel: 023 9283 4789 or email.equalities@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

Q8 - Who was involved in the EIA?

Nikki Musson, Transport Planning team

This EIA has been approved by: Gina Perryman

Contact number: 4789

Page 142



Date: September 2016

Please emalil a copy of your completed EIA to the Equality and diversity team. We will contact you with
any comments or queries about your preliminary EIA.

Telephone: 023 9283 4789

Email: equalities@ portsmouthcc.gov.uk

Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank



Title of meeting:

Date of meeting:

Agenda Iltem 6

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Cabinet Member for Traffic & Transportation Decision Meeting

29" September 2016

Subject: Charges for third Permits in residents parking zones

Report by: Alan Cufley, Director of Transport, Environment and Business
Support

Wards affected: All

Key decision: No

Full Council decision: No

11

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Purpose of report

The purpose of this report is to seek approval to increase the charges for the
third permits (Resident and Business permits) within residents’ parking zones.

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation:

approves an increase in the charges for the third Resident and Business permits
per household/business, from £120 to £510 and £360 to £510 respectively from
the 1% January 2017.

Background

Parking zones have been the most successful in areas where external factors
influence the available parking - such as tourists/visitors, commuters, shoppers,
local employees, close proximity to a ferry port, transport hub or
hospital. However, many zones continue to experience higher levels of
residential and business parking, affecting their overall performance.

Residents are automatically entitled to up to two permits per address. A third
permit is issued if the data shows that the parking zone has the capacity to
accommodate additional permits, and therefore the ability of those with first and
second permits to find a parking place is unlikely to be significantly affected.

Business permits are not limited in numbers per business, and rely on the cost
to encourage consideration of alternative methods of travel (particularly by
employees).

Currently 139 third permits are sold to residents and 85 to businesses across
the 32 residents' parking zones.

Pade 145

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



3.5

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.1

6.1

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

With increasing pressure on residents' parking zones this number is not
sustainable in the longer term as it reduces the overall capacity within the zones.

Reasons for recommendations

The council is committed to improving the operation of its parking zones and
influencing attitudes towards vehicle use in order to promote sustainable
transport.

The increased charge for a third Resident permit aims to influence behaviour, to
encourage residents to fully consider if an additional vehicle is necessary, and to
reduce the number of households with multiple vehicles in the long term.

Consideration has been given to the risk of the increased charges displacing
vehicles into the unrestricted streets adjoining RPZs. However, given the low
numbers of third permits issued each year, the impact is expected to be minimal.

The increased charge for the third Business permit aims to encourage
businesses to consider the impact of allowing multiple vehicles to use the limited
public space available. In addition, employees are more likely to consider
alternative methods of commuting such as public transport, cycling, car-sharing
or walking if the cost of parking increases.

Efforts to deter vehicle use within residents' parking zones aim to meet the
expectations of the majority of residents, in that parking availability will improve
with a zone in place and that the Council promotes ‘reasonable’ use of the public
roads.

Equality impact assessment (EIA)

A Preliminary Equality Impact Assessment has been completed for this scheme.
From this it has been determined that a full equality impact assessment is not
required as the recommendations do not have a negative impact on any of the
protected characteristics as described in the Equality Act 2010. These include
Age, Disability, Race, Transgender, Gender, Sexual orientation, Religion or
belief, relationships between groups, and other socially excluded groups.

Legal Implications

Under section 46 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 the local highway
authority may by order impose charges for on-street parking at all times or for
specified times only at such parking places as are designated by such order.
The times and amounts of any charges imposed by such designation orders
may be subsequently varied under the provisions of section 46A of the Act

Page 146

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



6.2

6.3

6.4

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Notice has to be given in accordance with the provisions of the Local Authorities
Traffic Orders Regulation 2006 of any variation of the charges or to the times
that such charges shall apply and undergoing public consultation on the
proposed charges. The notice must give a date not less than 3 weeks from the
date of the notice for members of the public to register their support of or
objections to the proposal or make any other comment. In the event of objection
being received the matter shall be referred to the appropriate executive member
who shall decide whether, in the light of the results of the public consultation, the
change should or should not be implemented

Guidelines issued by the government provide that the setting of charges for
parking on-street or off-street in designated areas is a matter for the authority. It
states that authorities should review charges periodically and take account of
their effectiveness in meeting policy objectives. The Secretary of State
recommends that authorities set charges at levels which are consistent with the
aims of the authority's transport strategy

When setting charges, authorities should consider the following factors:

* parking charges can help to curb unnecessary car use where there is adequate
public transport or walking or cycling are realistic alternatives, for example, in
town centres;

« charges can reflect the value of kerb-space, encouraging all but short-term
parking to take place in nearby off-street car parks where available. This implies
a hierarchy of charges within a local authority area, so that charges at a prime
parking space in a busy town centre would normally be higher than those either
at nearby off-street car parks or at designated places in more distant residential
areas. Such hierarchies should be as simple as practicable and applied
consistently so that charge levels are readily understandable and acceptable to
both regular and occasional users;

* charges should be set at levels that encourage compliance with parking
restrictions. If charges are set too high they could encourage drivers to risk non-
compliance or to park in unsuitable areas, possibly in contravention of parking
restrictions. In certain cases they could encourage motorists to park in a
neighbouring local authority area which may not have the capacity to handle the
extra vehicles. In commercial districts this may have a negative impact on
business in the area; and

« if on-street charges are set too low, they could attract higher levels of traffic
than are desirable. They could discourage the use of off-street car parks and
cause the demand for parking spaces to exceed supply, so that drivers have to
spend longer finding a vacant space.

Pade 147

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

7. Finance Comments

7.1 Although the impact of the proposed recommendation in this report cannot be
forecast with any certainty, the proposal to increase charges could result in a
reduction in the number of 3rd permits in issue and therefore a reduction in the
overall level of income received.

7.2 It should be noted that any resulting loss of income will be managed from within
the existing on street parking revenue budget.

Signed by:
Alan Cufley,
Director of Transport, Environment and Business Support

Appendices:

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a
material extent by the author in preparing this report:

Title of document Location
NIL

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
rejected by .....ooooiiiiiii ON e

Signed by:
Councillor Fleming,
Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation

Page 148
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Preliminary assessment form v5 / 2013

The preliminary impact assessment is a quick and easy screening process. It should:

[ identify those policies, projects, services, functions or strategies which require a full EIA by
looking at:

I negative, positive or no impact on any of the equality groups

[ opportunity to promote equality for the equality groups
p data/feedback

i prioritise if and when a full EIA should be completed

0 justify reasons for why a full EIA is not going to be completed

I ™

TEBS

h.

Directorate:

Function e.g. HR, P:’arking
IS, carers:

Title of policy, service, function, project or strategy (new or old) :

Increase in charge for third Residents Parking Zone (RPZ) permit.

Type of policy, service, function, project or strategy:

|' jl Existing
|_/_-\.| New / proposed

% | Changed Page 149



Q1 - What is the aim of your policy, service, function, project or strategy?

Increase in charge for the third Resident and Business permits per household/business, from £120 to
£510 and £360 to £510 respectively from the 1st January 2017.

Q2 - Who is this policy, service, function, project or strategy going to benefit or have a
detrimental effect on and how?

The policy will provide benefit to the people of Portsmouth overall through supporting sustainable
transport options. More sustainable transport results in lower levels of congestion, improved air quality,
lower noise levels and overall health benefits.

Q3 - Thinking about each group below, does, or could the policy, service, function, project or
strategy have a negative impact on members of the equality groups below?

Group Negative Pois':ii;/:c{cno Unclear
Age *
Disability *
Race Y
Gender *
Transgender Y
Sexual orientation Y
Religion or belief *
Pregnancy and maternity *
Other excluded groups *

If the answer is "negative" or "unclear" consider dojng a full EIA
age 1d§bn



Q4 - Does, or could the policy, service, function, project or strategy help to promote equality for
members of the equality groups?

@ © e

Disability () * ()
Race D ¥* | _jl
Gender Ij} |,£:| |\j/\|
Transgender _j [i] |D
Sexual orientation |\ij I\;W |ij:|

Religion or belief [_/, [_] D

Pregnancy or maternity () I/;\I |\f \J
Other excluded groups O |i;:| {_JI

If the answer is "no" or "unclear" consider doing a full EIA

Q5 - Do you have any feedback data from the equality groups that influences, affects or shapes
this policy, service, function, project or strategy?

@ o @
Disability () K ()
s c o
0 ® O
Transgender [ ] * [ ]
Sexual orientation () * ()
Religion or belief | Page 51 [ ]



Pregnancy and maternity *

Other excluded groups *

If the answer is "no" or "unclear" consider doing a full EIA

Q6 - Using the assessments in questions 3, 4 and 5 should a full assessment be carried out on
this policy, service, function or strategy?

yes % No

Q7 - How have you come to this decision?

This is not a new charge but an increase in an existing charge. The increased charge for a third
Resident permit aims to influence behaviour, to encourage residents to fully consider if an additional
vehicle is necessary, and to reduce the number of households with multiple vehicles in the long term.

Consideration was given to the risk of the increased charges displacing vehicles into the unrestricted
streets adjoining RPZs. However, given the low numbers of third permits issued each year, the impact
is expected to be minimal.

The increased charge for the third Business permit aims to encourage businesses to consider the
impact of allowing multiple vehicles to use the limited public space available. |n addition, employees

are more likely to consider alternative methods of commuting such as public transport, cycling, car-
sharing or walking if the cost of parking increases.

If you have to complete a full EIA please contact the Equalities and diversity team if you require help
Tel: 023 9283 4789 or email.equalities@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

Q8 - Who was involved in the EIA?
M Robinson

This EIA has been approved by: Martin Lavers

Contact number: 1534

Date: September 2016

Page 152



Please emalil a copy of your completed EIA to the Equality and diversity team. We will contact you with
any comments or queries about your preliminary EIA.

Telephone: 023 9283 4789

Email: equalities@ portsmouthcc.gov.uk

Page 153



This page is intentionally left blank



Title of meeting:

Date of meeting:

Subject:

Report by:

Wards affected:

Key decision:

Agenda ltem 7 Portsmouth

CITY COUNCIL

Cabinet Meeting for Traffic and Transportation Decision Meeting
29" September 2016

A2047 Corridor (Fratton Road, Kingston Road and London
Road) Junction Treatments - Raised Tables

Alan Cufley, Director of Transport, Environment and Business
Support

Hilsea, Nelson, Fratton, Charles Dickens

No

Full Council decision: No

1.1

2.1.

(1)

3.1.

3.2.

Purpose of report

To consider responses to the public consultation on proposals to implement
traffic calming on the following A2047 (Fratton Road, Kingston Road and
London Road) corridor junctions: Washington Road, Clydebank Road and
Powerscourt Road, Stamford Street and Queens Road.

Recommendations
It is recommended that the Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation:

approves the implementation of raised tables at the A2047 Corridor Junctions
with Washington Road, Clydebank Road and Powerscourt Road, Stamford
Street and Queens Road.

Background

Following a request from the local ward councillors and residents concerned
about cycle safety, a consultation was undertaken with residents on the
introduction of traffic calming on the following A2047 (Fratton Road, Kingston
Road and London Road) corridor junctions: Washington Road, Clydebank Road
and Powerscourt Road, Stamford Street and Queens Road. These junctions
form part of a wider scheme (12 junctions in total detailed in Appendices 1&2)
along the route. The other junctions utilise surfacing and lining treatments only
and therefore formal consultation is not necessary.

The A2047 corridor is currently the highest casualty route for cyclists in
Portsmouth. During the 5 year period 2011 to 2015 there have been 103 (25
serious) cycle collisions. This equates to an average of 38 collisions per mile
which is 3.5 times greater than the average 11 cycle collisions per mile for the
rest of Portsmouth's 30mph road network.

Pade 155

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



3.3.

4.1.

4.2.

5.1

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Of the 103 cycle collisions in 2015, 76% occurred at junctions. The four A2047
corridor junctions (Washington Road, Clydebank Road and Powerscourt Road,
Stamford Street and Queens Road) experience high volumes of non-residential
traffic, increasing the risk to cyclists. Implementing raised tables at these
junctions will act as a deterrent to vehicles using the residential roads instead of
the strategic road network, and will slow vehicles entering the junctions.

Reasons for recommendations

Implementing raised tables within the A2047 junctions with Washington Road,
Clyde Bank Road, Powerscourt Road, Stamford Street and Queens Road,
received the majority of votes from those residents that participated within the
consultation.

The combination of surfacing, lining and the implementation of traffic calming
methods within the junctions will seek to increase road safety through reduced
speeds and promote better traffic discipline to provide a safer environment for
all road users.

Consultation

A postal consultation was carried out with residents within the affected areas
during March 2016. The results were as follows:

Clydebank & Powerscourt
From the 199 households consulted 13 responses received (a return of 6%).
The breakdown of the results is as follows:

Yes, | would support proposed traffic calming & improvements - 12 responses

(92%)

No, | would not support proposed traffic calming & improvements - 1 response
(8%)

Queens Rd

From the 87 households consulted, 6 responses received (a return of 7%). The
breakdown of the results is as follows:

Yes, | would support proposed traffic calming & improvements - 5 responses
(83%)

No, | would not support proposed traffic calming & improvements - 1 Response
(17%)

Stamford St
From the 104 households consulted, 6 responses received (a return of 6%)
The breakdown of the results is as follows:

Yes, | would support proposed traffic calming & improvements - 5 responses
(83%)

Page 456

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

No, | would not support proposed traffic calming & improvements -1 response
(17%)

Washington Rd
From the 75 households consulted, 18 responses received (a return of 24%)

The breakdown of the results is as follows:

Yes, | would support proposed traffic calming & improvements - 17 responses

(94%)
No, | would not support proposed traffic calming & improvements -1 response

(6%)

Equality Impact Assessment

A Preliminary Equality Impact Assessment has been completed for this scheme.
From this it has been determined that a full equality impact assessment is not
required as the recommendations do not have a negative impact on any of the
protected characteristics as described in the Equality Act 2010. These include
Age, Disability, Race, Transgender, Gender, Sexual orientation, Religion or
belief, relationships between groups, and other socially excluded groups.

Legal implications

It is the duty of a local authority to manage their road network with a view to
achieving, so far as may be reasonably practicable having regard to their other
obligations, policies and objectives, the following objectives:

(a) securing the expeditious movement of traffic on the authority’s road network;

and
(b) facilitating the expeditious movement of traffic on road networks for which

another authority is the traffic authority.”

Local authorities have a duty to take account of the needs of all road users, take
action to minimise, prevent or deal with congestion problems, and consider the
implications of decisions for both their network and those of others.

Any works that fall within the definition of traffic calming works must be carried
out In accordance with The Highways (Traffic Calming) Regulations 1999

("the Regulations").

Traffic calming works are defined as build-outs, chicanes, gateways, islands,
overrun areas, pinch points or rumble devices. The proposed works would fall

within this definition.

The local authority have a duty under the Regulations to consult with the
following persons:

Pade 157

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

(a) The Chief Officer of Police for the area which the proposed changes are

situated;

(b) people and organisations who are likely to be affected by the proposed
changes; and

(c) any other person likely to be affected by the traffic calming works.

7.6 Legal Services have been instructed that this Regulation has been suitably
adhered to.
7.7 A Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) is not considered necessary in this instance

on the following basis:

(a) there will be no change to the speed limit; and
(b) there will be no change to the direction of the traffic.

8. Director of Finance's comments

8.1 This scheme forms part of the Local Transport Plan and Road Safety capital
scheme which was approved as part of the overall Capital Programme 2015/16
to 2020/21, by Full Council on 9th February 2016.

8.2 The Local Transport Plan and Road Safety capital scheme has a budget of
£82,311 for A2047 Junction Cycle Treatments, and focuses on junction
treatments along A2047 to improve cycle safety. The costs of implementing the
recommendations contained within this report, are anticipated to be contained
within that amount.

Signed by:
Alan Cufley
Director of Transport, Environment and Business Support

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a
material extent by the author in preparing this report:

Title of document Location
NIL

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
rejected by ......oooiiiiiii (o] o I

Page 158

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Signed by:
Councillor Jim Fleming
Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation

Appendices:

APPENDIX 1 - Locations of schemes

APPENDIX 2 - Design of identified junctions
APPENDIX 3 - Preliminary Equality Impact Assessment

Page 159

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

APPENDIX 1 - Locations of Schemes

5 % v U — ____ARWrorms
o a
= 3
& - /ANOR ROAD
END
2
L\ T
LONDON

ROAD

MON
\
(S

K/MONR‘\F

RD STUBBINGTON

x
LABURNUM
e
e
(@]
(N
o
in}
oo
g D Bﬁg
i
&
< | THE BRIDGE
CHICHESTER SHOPPING
x i CENTRE
= ~ POR
5 3
(@]
=
i}

\
::q@® V“4BQER
< O\\TEL\

N Ep
< HONE
RD ©)
fy
Based on or reproduced from Ordnance Survey 1:1250 Base Map with the permission of HMSO © Crown copyright reserved. Licence No. 100019671

Scale: 1:5,000 @ A4
Page 160
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



' Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

APPENDIX 2 - Design of identified junctions

This isa G.A.D. drawing and may only be modified by hand in

with QA Procedu

Area|8

APPENDIX 2

ORONANGE SURVEY GOPY RIGHT.
Based orreproduced from the 2008

parmission of HMSO crown copyright |

reserved. License No. LA 100016671

1: For Area 1 Detailed Design Refer to Drawing
HWIB9E-101.

2:For Area 2 Detailed Design Refer to Drawing
FHWIg96-102

3 For Arca 3 Detailed Design Refer to Drawing
HWIB96-103

4:For Area 4 Detailed Design Refer to Drawing

—

»

Area 11

T

E
B
=3
T
// |
—

HWIB96-104

5: For Arca § Detailed Design Refer to Drawing
HWIB96-1051 & HWIB96-1052

6: For Area 6 Detailed Design Refer to Drawing
FHIWIS96-1061 & HWIB96-1062

8: For Arca 8 Detailed Design Refer to Drawing
HWIB96-108

9 For Area 9 Detailed Design Refer to Drawing

Detailed Design Refer to Drawing

Detailed Design Refer to Drawing

o | o L L]
s Kingston/London Road
Cycle Improvements

Overview

W 21042015 [ NTS

@ﬂanﬁgoc;
CITY COUNCIL

anet
FABMITY THER | % | AT
]

Pade 161

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Preliminary assessment form v5 / 2013

The preliminary impact assessment is a quick and easy screening process. It should:

[ identify those policies, projects, services, functions or strategies which require a full EIA by
looking at:

I negative, positive or no impact on any of the equality groups

[ opportunity to promote equality for the equality groups
p data/feedback

i prioritise if and when a full EIA should be completed

0 justify reasons for why a full EIA is not going to be completed

I ™

Director of Transport, environment & business support

Directorate:

h.

Function e.g. HR, ‘hoad Safety & Active Travel
IS, carers:

Title of policy, service, function, project or strategy (new or old) :

A2047 (London Rd/Kingston Rd/Fratton Rd) cycle junction improvements

Type of policy, service, function, project or strategy:

|' _jl Existing

.

|/£:| New / proposed

| Changed Page 163

M



Q1 - What is the aim of your policy, service, function, project or strategy?

Following contact by Ward Councilors and local residents concerned about road safety and rat-runing
in their local area along with recorded high casualty levels for cyclists a scheme was put forward for
consideration for Local Transport Plan funding. The aim of this scheme is to reduce cycle casualties by
enhancing their visibility and safety at junctions which experience high levels of road related cycle
incidents along the A2047. The scheme consists of a series of surface lining treatments at the below
junctions:

London Road/ Powerscourt Road
London Road/Clydebank Road
Fratton Road/Stamford Street
London Road/Chichester Road
Kingston Road AWashington Road
Fratton Road/Penhale Road
Fratton Road /Lucknow Street
London Road /Queens Road
London Road/Mayfield Road
Fratton Road/Newcombe Road
London Road/Laburnum Grove
Fratton/Outside Halfords entrance (201-205)

In addition, the installation of raised tables at junctions (Washington Road, Clydebank Road and
Powerscourt Road, Stamford Street and Queens Road) will slow speeds, deter rat-runing and improve
visibility for, and the presence of pedestrians and cyclists.

Q2 - Who is this policy, service, function, project or strategy going to benefit or have a
detrimental effect on and how?

The scheme will benefit vulnerable road users by improving safety by lowering speed and discourage
rat-running.

As a road safety scheme, this project aims to meet the requirements of the Local Transport Plan by
seeking to reduce casualties. Whilst it is recognised that the installation of raised tables has been
highlighted as a concern by disability groups due to the removal of kerb lines, the current high casualty
rate (103 incidents between 2011 - 20195) is 3.8 times higher than the Portsmouth average for 30mph
limit roads supporting the requirement to reduce speeds and traffic volumes in the area by these
means.

Q3 - Thinking about each group below, does, or could the policy, service, function, project or
strategy have a negative impact on members of the equality groups below?

Group Negative Poisl:i[;l:c{c ne Unclear
Age *
Disability Y
Race Y

Gender Page 164%



Transgender

Sexual orientation

Religion or belief

* O %

Pregnancy and maternity

Other excluded groups *

If the answer is "negative" or "unclear" consider doing a full EIA

Q4 - Does, or could the policy, service, function, project or strategy help to promote equality for
members of the equality groups?

Group Yes No Unclear

Age *
Disability Y
Race

Gender

Transgender

Sexual orientation

* Ok 4 b %

Religion or belief

Pregnancy or maternity *
Other excluded groups *

If the answer is "no" or "unclear" consider doing a full EIA

Q5 - Do you have any feedback data from the equality groups that influences, affects or shapes
this policy, service, function, project or strategy?

Group Yes No Unclear

A Page 165



Disability

Race

Gender
Transgender
Sexual orientation

Religion or belief

* % ¢ R b A %

Pregnancy and maternity

Other excluded groups *

If the answer is "no" or "unclear" consider doing a full EIA

Q6 - Using the assessments in questions 3, 4 and 5 should a full assessment be carried out on
this policy, service, function or strategy?

yes % No

Q7 - How have you come to this decision?

A postal consultation has been undertaken with residents within the area to ask for their feedback and
comments for consideration. 199 households were consulted on the raised table elements of the
proposed scheme. The majority of responses were in favour of action being taken.

A report will be submitted to T&T in September where the recommendation will be made to implement
the scheme based upon this consultation.

If you have to complete a full EIA please contact the Equalities and diversity team if you require help
Tel: 023 9283 4789 or email.equalities@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

Q8 - Who was involved in the EIA?
Oliver Willcocks - PCC Senior Road Safety Officer

This EIA has been approved by: Amber Kerens B1aé%naker
age



Contact number: x1637

Date: 19/09/16

Please emalil a copy of your completed EIA to the Equality and diversity team. We will contact you with
any comments or queries about your preliminary EIA.

Telephone: 023 9283 4789

Email: equalities@ portsmouthcc.gov.uk

Page 167



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Title of meeting: Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation
Date of meeting: 29" September 2016
Subject: Goldsmith Avenue Cycle Lane (TRO 11/2016)
Report by: Alan Cufley, Director of Transport Environment & Business
Support
Wards affected: Central Southsea, Milton
Key decision: No
Full Council decision: No
1. Purpose of report
1.1 The purpose of this report is to review comments received in response to the TRO
11/2016. This order proposed the implementation of double yellow lines on the
north side of Goldsmith Avenue, adjacent to the railway line opposite Francis
Avenue to the pedestrian crossing west of Fratton Way. Removing the loading
bays and the current unrestricted parking is also included in order to facilitate the
introduction of a dedicated eastbound cycle lane
2. Recommendations
2.1 It is recommended that the Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation:
approves the Goldsmith Avenue cycle lane as set out in TRO 11/2016.
3. Background
3.1 In 2015 a large Tesco superstore was constructed in Fratton Way (off Goldsmith
Avenue). During the planning process, concerns were raised (regarding the
safety of cyclists, due to the potential increase in traffic that the new store will
bring. As part of the section 106 agreement with Tesco, funding has been
provided towards the installation of the cycle lane.
3.2 Cycle casualty data shows Goldsmith Avenue has experienced 14 cycle road
casualties in the period 2010 - 2015.
3.3 A report regarding Goldsmith Avenue cycle lane was taken to the Cabinet

Member for Traffic and Transportation in March 2016. Approval was given to
undertake a consultation via a Traffic Regulation Order for the change from
unrestricted parking and marked loading bays to: Advisory cycle lane and no

Pade 169

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



4.1

4.2

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

waiting at any time (double yellow lines). This 21 day consultation closed on 30
June 2016.

Consultation

The TRO was advertised for a 21 day period via yellow on-street notices
displayed in Goldsmith Avenue (the affected location) and also in Francis

Avenue,

and a copy was published on Portsmouth City Council's

website. These measures are in addition to the statutory requirement to publish
a proposal notice in a local newspaper (The News). . Users of the parking bays

were provided with ample opportunities to comment.

A total of three responses were received in response to the consultation as
shown in Table 1 below.

Respo | In Agai | Comments Officer comments
ndent |sup | nst
port
Local | am emailing with Officers consider that
busine X reference to the above the safety and
SS TRO 11/2016, we object accessibility benefits
because there are already | greatly outweigh the
plans to build flats with loss of non-residential
inadequate parking for parking.
them, and now you are
proposing to add to the
parking issues in the area.
We are a business in this
area, and there is already
inadequate parking, we are
in need of more parking,
not more cycle lanes. This
will affect us directly, as the
proposed plans are directly
outside our premises, on
our side of the road.
Please supply further
information on what you
are proposing.
The The committee of Officers note
commi | X Portsmouth Cycle Forum Portsmouth's Cycle
ttee of has asked me to comment | Forum request
Ports on the above Traffic regarding the design
mouth Regulation Order. of the cycle lane. Any
Cycle We fully support the cycle lane
Forum reallocation of road space | implemented will be

on this busy thoroughfare
to give greater priority to

compliant with design
guidance and the

Page 470

www.portsmouth.gov.uk




Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

travelling by bicycle. The
use of a section of a major
and congested A-Road for
long-term vehicle parking
has always been
guestionable and the
arrival of Tesco Extra on
Fratton Way has had
notable impact on the local
highways with much
increased motor vehicle,
pedestrian and cycle
movements.

We request that the width
of the cycle lane should be
at least 1.5 metres and
preferably 2.0 metres. This
should be easy to
accommodate since the
road space is currently
used for long term vehicle
parking, most of which
occupy 2 - 2.5 metres of
the carriageway.

There is an omission from
the plan and that is the
section of Goldsmith
Avenue between Fratton
Way and Priory Crescent.
Portsmouth Cycle Forum’s
vision “A City to Share”
highlights the importance
of East-West links and the
lack of provision for them.
We ask that the scheme is
extended to include this
section of highway.

specific details will be
fully considered during
the design stage.

Resid
ent

| wish to object to TRO
11/2016 as currently
advertised.

The loss of parking on the
north side of Goldsmith
Avenue will have a huge
detrimental impact on
residents in the streets in
the surrounding area,
particularly overnight when

Officers consider that
the safety and
accessibility benefits
greatly outweigh the
loss of non-residential
parking.

The southern side
footway is not suitable
for a shared cycle
path due to the

Pade 171

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



4.3

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

finding a space is
practically impossible (|
note that surveys have not
been done late in the
evening or through the
night when the vast
majority of people are
home)

There is however a simple
way of adding a cycle lane
to the north side of
Goldsmith Avenue without
losing the parking in the
process.

The pavement on the south
side of Goldsmith Avenue
is incredibly wide (much of
it is between 3 and 4
metres wide) and could
easily be 'split' for
pedestrians and a cycle
lane. By moving the cycle
lane on the south side onto
the pavement (as in other
areas of the city) the road
would be wide enough for
2 way traffic, a cycle lane
(north side) and parking
(north side by the
pavement)

As you can see, this would
not reduce the width of any
lane as the road is already
split into 2 way traffic, a
cycle lane (south side) and
parking (north side by the
pavement) but would avoid
the backlash from a
reduction in parking in the
area.

number of crossover
points, width for
majority of the length
and bus shelters.

Current funding
identified is through a
planning agreement
which specifies the
exact location of the
cycle lane; no
additional funding is
currently available.

Two of the respondents objected to the proposals, both on the grounds of loss

of car parking.

Page 172

Table 1

www.portsmouth.gov.uk




4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

6.1

7.1

7.2

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

One of the respondents supported the proposal and commented that the
proposed cycle lane should be of sufficient width and should be further
extended.

It is considered by officers that the benefits of safety and accessibility greatly
outweigh the impact of the loss of non-residential parking.

The cycle lane will be designed to be compliant with relevant guidance.

The funding identified for this scheme is a planning agreement which specifies
the exact location of the cycle lane.

Reasons for recommendations

Planning Policy PCS7 states that all developments within the City will be
designed to be pedestrian and cycle friendly. Although this road does have
existing advisory cycle lanes along a major part of the route, the existing section
where parking is currently permitted results in the loss of a cycle lane.

The link to Fratton Railway Station has a high number of cycle causalities.

There are 9 schools in the immediate area, this combined with Portsmouth's
current high child pedestrian and cycling road casualties on 30mph roads
underline the need for safety schemes on such roads.

Officers consider that the safety and accessibility benefits greatly outweigh the
impact of the loss of non-residential parking.

Equality Impact Assessment

An Equality Impact Assessment is not required for this scheme as there is no
negative impact on any equality groups as described in the Equality Act 2010.

Legal implications

It is the duty of a local authority to manage their road network with a view to
achieving, so far as may be reasonably practicable having regard to their other
obligations, policies and objectives, the following objectives:

(a) securing the expeditious movement of traffic on the authority’s road network;
and

(b) facilitating the expeditious movement of traffic on road networks for which
another authority is the traffic authority.

Local authorities have a duty to take account of the needs of all road users, take

action to minimise, prevent or deal with congestion problems, and consider the
implications of decisions for both their network and those of others.

Page 173

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



7.3

7.4

7.5

8.1

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Traffic regulation orders (TROs) can be made for a number of reasons,
including avoiding danger to persons or other traffic using the road or for
preventing the likelihood of such danger arising, for preventing damage to the
road or any building on or near the road, for facilitating the passage on the road
of traffic (including pedestrians) or preserving or improving the amenities of the
area through which the road runs.

A TRO may make provisions for identifying any part of the road to which any
provision of the TRO is to apply by means of a traffic sign.

A proposed TRO must be advertised and the public given a 3 week consultation
period where members of the public can register their support or objections. If,
as here, objections are received to the proposed order the matter must go
before the appropriate executive member for a decision whether or not to make
the order, taking into account the comments received from the public during the
consultation period.

Director of Finance's comments

This scheme is to be funded from Section 106 - Developers contributions, and is
anticipated to be delivered from within with the budget of £40,000.

Signed by:
Alan Cufley
Director of Transport, Environment and Business Support

Page 974

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a
material extent by the author in preparing this report:

Title of document Location

17" March June 2016 Traffic and PCC website/Democratic Services
Transportation Report

TRO 11/2016 PCC website/Democratic Services

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
rejected by ......oooiiiiiii ON e

Signed by:
Councillor Fleming
Cabinet Member for Traffic & Transportation

Pade 175

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Title of meeting: Cabinet Meeting for Traffic and Transportation Decision Meeting

Date of meeting: 29" September 2016

Subject: Montague Road Traffic Calming - Results of Public Consultation

Report by: Alan Cufley, Director of Transport, Environment and Business
Support

Wards affected: Hilsea Ward

Key decision: No

Full Council decision: No

1. Purpose of report

1.1. The purpose of this report is to consider responses to the public consultation on
proposals to implement traffic calming within Montague Road.

2. Recommendations
2.1. It is recommended that the Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation:

(1) approves Option 1: to implement traffic calming by reducing the width of
the carriageway to a single lane at both ends of Montague Road

3. Background

3.1. In December 2014 residents were consulted regarding the proposed reversal of the
existing one-way system in operation within Montague Road.

3.2. The postal consultation was carried out during December 2014 until 19 January
2015. From the 149 letters addressed to the residents we received 57 completed
voting forms (a return of 38%). The breakdown of the results was that Option one -
the existing layout of Montague Road remains unchanged (Traffic would continue
to travel eastbound from its junction with London Road to its junction with Beresford
Road) - received 38 votes from residents (67%) while Option two - consisting of the
proposal to reverse the direction of the existing one-way system within Montague
Road (Traffic would travel westbound from its junction with Beresford Road to its
junction with London Road) - received 19 votes from residents (33% of returns).
Option one received the majority of votes from those residents that participated
within the consultation

3.3. This option was not supported by residents and was taken before the Cabinet
Member for Traffic and Transportation on 05 February 2015 where the decision

Pade 177

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

was made that the existing road layout remain, as requested and supported by
residents.

Montague Road is perceived by residents to have high levels of vehicular traffic due
to the presence of a Tesco Express store on the southern side of the junction of
London Road/Montague Road. Residents have complained to Councillors of
Montague Road being utilised as a ‘rat-run’ by traffic wishing to utilise the store.
Montague Road, along with surrounding residential roads within the vicinity, is part
of the citywide 20mph speed limit which was implemented in October 2007.

Residents have also raised concerns regarding the number of vehicles that ignore
the existing one-way system. This has been verified through a review of penalties
issued within this area. The Parking Team conducted a review of the penalties
issued within the vicinity of Montague Road from 01 January 2014 until 14 January
2015. For this time period records indicated that 296 penalty notices had been
issued to vehicles within Montague Road that had illegally parked within the area.
Residents observed that those vehicles that park illegally within Montague Road to
utilise the existing facilities (local shops, cash point machines, etc.) tend to reverse
or perform a three point turn to exit back on to London Road. This is in violation of
the existing one-way system that operates in a north-eastern direction from the
junction of London Road to its junction with Beresford Road.

Vehicles also park illegally within the entrance of Montague Road at the London
Road junction, and consideration has been given to implementing measures to
prevent this from happening. The proposed measures would make the parking
self-enforcing at the junction and prevent vehicles from violating the existing one-
way.

A further request was received from ward councillors asking for residents' views to
be canvassed on the introduction of traffic calming within Montague Road. A postal
consultation was carried out with residents of Montague Road and Beresford Road
(from its junction with Kirby Road to its junction with Stubbington Avenue) from 17
May 2016 until 8" July 2016. The results were as follows:-

From the 181 letters addressed to residents we received 42 responses (a return of
23%). The breakdown of the results is as follows:

Option 1 - Implement traffic calming. To reduce the width of the carriageway to a
single lane at both ends of Montague Road by allowing the footway to be built out,
existing signs re-erected to make the restrictions more visible and bollards will be
erected on the footway to prevent parking. - received 30 votes from residents (72%
of returns);

Option 2 - That the existing layout of Montague Road remains unchanged -
received 11 votes from residents (26%);

One resident responded to the consultation giving no preferred option and stated
that the proposals did not affect them. (2%).

A spreadsheet of all responses received, along with comments has been attached
to this report as APPENDIX 1.

Page 478

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

4. Reasons for recommendations

4.1. Option 1, to implement traffic calming by reducing the width of the carriageway to a
single lane at both ends of Montague Road, received the majority of votes from
those residents that participated within the consultation;

4.2. By retaining the existing one-way element of Montague Road, drivers familiar with
the area will be less likely to violate the existing one-way Traffic Regulation Order.
The proposed traffic calming will also make it more difficult for drivers ignore the
one-way, encouraging adherence to the existing Traffic Regulation Order;

4.3. The proposed traffic calming will also remove the opportunity for vehicles to park
illegally within the entrance of Montague Road at the junction of London Road. The
measures would reduce the carriageway at this location to a single vehicle width
making the parking restrictions self-enforcing and deterring/preventing vehicles
from violating the existing one-way;

5. Equality Impact Assessment

5.1 A Preliminary Equality Impact Assessment has been completed for this scheme.
From this it has been determined that a full equality impact assessment is not
required as the recommendations do not have a negative impact on any of the
protected characteristics as described in the Equality Act 2010. These include Age,
Disability, Race, Transgender, Gender, Sexual orientation, Religion or belief,
relationships between groups, and other socially excluded groups.

6. Legal implications

6.1 It is the duty of a local authority to manage their road network with a view to
achieving, so far as may be reasonably practicable having regard to their other
obligations, policies and objectives, the following objectives:

(a) Securing the expeditious movement of traffic on the authority’s road network;
and

(b) Facilitating the expeditious movement of traffic on road networks for which
another authority is the traffic authority.”

6.2 Local authorities have a duty to take account of the needs of all road users, take
action to minimise, prevent or deal with congestion problems, and consider the
implications of decisions for both their network and those of others.

6.3 Any works that fall within the definition of traffic calming works must be carried out
in accordance with The Highways (Traffic Calming) Regulations 1999 ("the
Regulations")

Pade 179

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

6.4 Traffic calming works are defined as build-outs, chicanes, gateways, islands,
overrun areas, pinch points or rumble devices. The proposed works would fall
within this definition.

6.5 The local authority has a duty under the Regulations to consult with the following
persons:
(@) The Chief Officer of Police for the area which the proposed changes are
situated,;
(b) People and organisations who are likely to be affected by the proposed
changes; and
(c) Any other person likely to be affected by the traffic calming works.

6.6 Legal Services have been instructed that this Regulation has been suitably adhered
to.
6.7 A Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) is not considered necessary in this instance on

the following basis:
(a) There will be no change to the speed limit; and
(b) There will be no change to the direction of the traffic.

7. Director of Finance's comments

7.1 This scheme forms part of the Local Transport Plan and Road Safety capital
scheme which was approved, as part of the overall Capital Programme 2015/16 to
2020/21 by Full Council, on 9th February 2016.

7.2 The Local Transport Plan and Road Safety capital scheme has a budget of £85,000
for Traffic Calming schemes. The Montague Road traffic calming scheme is
estimated to cost approximately £46,000 and can therefore be contained within the
budget available.

Signed by:
Alan Cufley
Director of Transport, Environment and Business Support

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a
material extent by the author in preparing this report:

Title of document Location
NIL

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
rejected by ..o (o] o I

Page 180

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Signed by:
Councillor Jim Fleming
Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation

Page 181

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



________

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

APPENDIX 1 - Proposed Scheme Layout (Drawing):-

= [t
—— n e b et & mb g e
pr— L e e e e
o _H_ et b ity e i
—— e 7
e ] st srmge s e T I
) | = ﬂ
% / |
A : ety o b e et
v g s e ﬁ sty
’ s, Propromsl we
- | riem g
YT '\ e e
r
o et =
g = b e ot y =i
ﬂ n [ ikt e g i . > _m
£ o ot Mg ot - /|
iy agage s be e ‘ 7
oo i s .-ﬂm propcam: bl s b A
[iyepa et e s
kit o s o bty 2 e E
_m_"-la-q-i..i.l_ iy i sz i
Nortsgee o F Y[ —
v.l et e
0

AT i
=

MONTAGUE ROAD - ONE WAY
SYSTEM

=3

PROPOSED BUILD-OUTS

w2024 [w NTE

Portsmouth
CITY COUNEDL
TRANSPORT AND semvce
e

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Page 982



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

APPENDIX 2 - Consultation results and comments:-

g g | 25
sS2g| BE
cfsg| sS
S5 8| &%
g3 Fs3
X g 2 =
Yo & NS 2
c c = £ c& g
. 2323 835
Address:- 8- 583 8- 8 g Comments
Montague Road
People will probably start using the private car parks in Montague Rd which might start more arguments
1 outside.
1
1 How a serious accident has not happened already is anyone's guess.
1 Have been blocked in car park by illegal parking. No-one wants to take responsibility for enforcing parking.
1
Arelief to know that something is getting done. Narrowing the top end of Montague Rd may cause the loss of
1 4 car spaces. Maybe a camera would be a cheaper option.
Volume fo traffic using the road to park or using Montague Rd as a short cut is a big problem. Change
direction of flow. Remove parking restrictions on south/west side.Improve signage and road markings for exit
1 from car park.
Would like residents parking to be considered due to number of vehicles from estate agencts and local
1 businesses parking in the area.
Parking is already a nightmare. All the estate agents and customers of Tesco park on the road. Option 1 will
1 reduce spaces. Never had a problem accessing Montague Rd, just parking.
1
1
Ridculous. Will reduce parking spaces. Ambulances regularly visit Montague Rd and block it for up to an
1 hour. Will be bad for business and encourage Tescos to park further soen Montague Road.
1
Can consideration be given to a residents parking scheme? The road is always heavily parked by 8am with
1 estate agents.
1
Could you add more 20mph painted on the road and turn left only into Beresford Rd but leave Beresford Rd
1 as is (both ways). This would help rat-runners avoid the north end of Stubbington Ave junction.
A great plan which will benefit residential drivers and all pedestrians. Very well and clearly presented. Thank
1 you.
It is very difficult and dangerous to turn into Montague Rd from London Rd due to cars parked on DYL's.
1 Ignore one-way. As a cyclist it is dangerous to meet a car head on. Taking too long.
Why are the Council spending more money on this? Twice we have already said no to changes. We do not
1 need to lose parking spaces. It is already very difficult to find a place to park.
Potentially only required to narrow the carriageway at the London Road junction as that is where the
1 problems are.
| cannot see the benefit. A waste of money. You could have the same issue with many other roads. Put a
1 one-way sign opposite the entrance to Belham Apartments.
1
1 Always cars and vans doing u-turns back into London road. Vehicles parking on DYLs.
Questions the measures to be implemented at the Beresford Rd junction. Concerned that this will impact
1 and reduce on-street parking spaces in this location.
1 This is long overdue. | proposed this at least two years ago.
Convenient to park on DYLs to unload golf bag, etc. As there are no problems at the east end the works are
a waste of money. Works at the wetern end will not prevent drivers turning behind Belham Appartments and
1 driving out against the one-way system. Nor will it prevent them reversing into London Road.
1 Still in dispute with a heavy goods vehicle that damaged building.
Beresford Road
1
1
1
1
1 Intorduce Residents Parking in Beresford/Montague/Kirby Road?
Prefer not to narrow at Beresford Rd end. Will impact parking as 2 vehicle can park on existing DYL's.
1 These do not hinder visibility or access anymore than narrowing it.
1
Do not see the need for traffic calming at the eastern end. Lorries will not be able to make the turn.
1 Pavement outside 108, 110 and 112 has to be repaired frequently and it will make the issue worse
Do not see why the eastern end needs to be narrowed. We do not have issues that end. More difficult for
large vehicles turning.l do not feel that this would serve any purpose to residents and would be an expense
1 we all could do without. | do agree with the narrowings at the western end.
1
No markings or singage at exit from Belham Apartments car park. Most traffic going wrong way. Another
1 issue is the long waiting time of some taxis.
1
1
Other
1
The proposed scheme does not impact on Strawberry Green. However, concerned with lack of DYL's
outside entrance on Beresford Rd. Restricts access for emergency vehicles.
TOTALS 30 11

Pade 183

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Preliminary assessment form v5 / 2013

The preliminary impact assessment is a quick and easy screening process. It should:

[ identify those policies, projects, services, functions or strategies which require a full EIA by
looking at:

I negative, positive or no impact on any of the equality groups

[ opportunity to promote equality for the equality groups
p data/feedback

i prioritise if and when a full EIA should be completed

0 justify reasons for why a full EIA is not going to be completed

I ™

Director of Transport, environment & business support

Directorate:

h.

Function e.g. HR, ‘T\Jetwork Management
IS, carers:

Title of policy, service, function, project or strategy (new or old) :

TRAFFIC CALMING MONTAGUE ROAD

Type of policy, service, function, project or strategy:

|' -_jl Existing

.

|/£:| New / proposed

| Changed Page 185

M



Q1 - What is the aim of your policy, service, function, project or strategy?

To improve the layout of Montague Road and address the concerns raised regarding illegal traffic
movements and traffic speeds within the area. It is proposed to build out the existing kerb lines at both
the eastern and western ends of the road to reduce the width of the carriageway to a single lane. This
will enforce the existing parking restrictions at these locations as vehicles that do so will be causing an
obstruction. Also, by reducing the width of the carriageway at its junction with London Road, vehicles
wishing to utilise the Tesco store will have to commit to the existing one-way system. It will also benefit
pedestrians wishing to cross the carriageway at this location by improving their visibility and reducing
the width of live carriageway that they need to cross. Vehicles will hot be able to carry outa u-turn
manoeuvre within the mouth of Montague Road due to the reduced width.

Q2 - Who is this policy, service, function, project or strategy going to benefit or have a
detrimental effect on and how?

This scheme would seek to address the speed issues and illegal parking and vehicle manoeuvres
within the area by making the restrictions self-enforcing. They will also highlight the existing 20mph
speed limit and encourage compliance using traffic calming methods. It would look to improve the
existing layout by highlighting road space to be used by other users to all drivers within the area. The
addition of advanced warning signs will warn drivers of the proposed changes within the area. It will
look to improve the drivers’ visibility of other road users within the area and to abide by the current
speed restriction of 20mph. As a road safety scheme, this project aims to meet the requirements of the
Local Transport Plan by seeking to reduce casualties, which help PCC towards achieving the National
targets. The scheme also seeks to improve the habitability of the area for residents. This scheme
contributes to protecting and supporting our most vulnerable residents whilst assisting with reducing
carbon emissions in the area due to idling vehicles.

Q3 - Thinking about each group below, does, or could the policy, service, function, project or
strategy have a negative impact on members of the equality groups below?

Group Negative Pois':ii;/:c{cno Unclear
Age *
Disability Y
Race Y
Gender *
Transgender Y
Sexual orientation Y
Religion or belief *
Pregnancy and maternity Y

Page 186



Other excluded groups

: %
N

* @

If the answer is "negative" or "unclear" consider doing a full EIA

Q4 - Does, or could the policy, service, function, project or strategy help to promote equality for
members of the equality groups?

Age * ® ®

Disability e () ()

lf_“\ f_“\ A
Race |\_J L*j' L )

Ty ' oy
Gender L) o -
Transgender [_/ ‘;] |f_\|
Sexual orientation Ir_\| L‘;| | )
Religion or belief [_l |;| [_J
Pregnancy or maternity [;I L_| |f_\'|

o : ., 3 N
Other excluded groups [ J |\*J ]

If the answer is "no" or "unclear" consider doing a full EIA

Q5 - Do you have any feedback data from the equality groups that influences, affects or shapes
this policy, service, function, project or strategy?

Age D f_\l *

. N 4

Disability () () *
NS NS S

- — —

@ ® o
— — e

Gender I \| %
o J A A

L /_|
Transgender |/_j Page ﬁ7 |/;\|



Sexual orientation

Religion or belief

Pregnancy and maternity

L R SRR JRRR. 5

Other excluded groups

If the answer is "no" or "unclear" consider doing a full EIA

Q6 - Using the assessments in questions 3, 4 and 5 should a full assessment be carried out on
this policy, service, function or strategy?

yes % No

Q7 - How have you come to this decision?

A postal consultation has been undertaken with residents within the area to ask for their feedback and
comments for consideration. This was undertaken by a letter being addressed to residents along with a
voting form which they could complete and return. From the 181 letters addressed to residents we
received 42 responses (a return of 23%). The breakdown of the results is as follows:

Option 1 - Implement traffic calming. To reduce the width of the carriageway to a single lane at both
ends of Montague Road by allowing the footway to be built out, existing sighs re-erected to make the
restrictions more visible and bollards will be erected on the footway to prevent parking. - received 30
votes from residents (72% of returns);

Option 2 - That the existing layout of Montague Road remains unchanged - received 11 votes from
residents (26%);

One resident responded to the consultation giving no preferred option and stated that the proposals did
not affect them. (2%).

Some residents requested that additional sighage and white lining be implemented as part of the
scheme and this has now been incorporated.

A report will be submitted to T&T in September where the recommendation will be made to advertise a
Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) of the proposals so that all residents and groups within the City can
comment, support or reject the proposals. These results will then be re-submitted to T&T for
consideration and a decision.

If you have to complete a full EIA please contact the Equalities and diversity team if you require help
Tel: 023 9283 4789 or email.equalities@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

Q8 - Who was involved in the EIA?

Tracey Shepherd - Senior Traffic Engineer
Adil Mohammad - Traffic and Network Manager
Amber-Kerens Bathmaker - Road Safety & Active Travel Manager

Page 188



Elected Members will be consulted in September via the T&T Report.

This EIA has been approved by: Amber Kerens Bathmaker

Contact number: x1637

Date: 02/08/2016

Please emalil a copy of your completed EIA to the Equality and diversity team. We will contact you with
any comments or queries about your preliminary EIA.

Telephone: 023 9283 4789

Email: equalities@ portsmouthcc.gov.uk

Page 189



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 10

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Title of meeting: Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation

Date of meeting: 29" September 2016

Subject:

Tendered Bus Routes Update on Patronage

Report by: Alan Cufley, Director of Transport, Environment and Business

Support

Wards affected: All apart from Paulsgrove

Key decision: No

Full Council decision: No

11

2.1

3.1

Purpose of report

The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the current patronage for
the tendered bus routes which have been in place since the end of March 2016.

Recommendations
It is recommended that the Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation:

(1) notes the patronage levels for the routes currently receiving financial support
from the city council

Background

In January 2016 the Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation approved
the award of contracts for bus services that would be financially supported by
the city council to operate for a maximum of 3 years (with a 90 day cancellation
period) with effect from Sunday 27 March 2016.

Service | Operational information

Days of Operation: Sunday only

Frequency: 75 minutes

Route Description: The Hard - Old Portsmouth -
Southsea Seafront - Eastney

Days of Operation: Monday to Friday

Frequency: Every 2 hours (approx.)

Route Description: City Centre - Old Portsmouth Point -
Central Southsea - Fratton Way - Baffins - Portsmouth
College - Copnor Road -Stubbington Avenue -North End
junction.

Days of Operation: All days of the week

Frequency: Every 1 hour and 10 minutes

Route Description: Highbury - Cosham - Drayton -
Farlington

16

19/19A

22

Pade 191

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

4. Patronage and Cost information

4.1 The table below provides the patronage figures recorded through the on-bus
electronic ticket machines, for each route from April to August 2016. The table
also shows the number and percentage of concessionary fare users on the bus
services.

Route TOTAL APRIL 16 MAY 16 JUNE 16 JULY 16 AUGUST 16

Total | Conc |% Conc|| Total Conc % Conc| Total Conc % Conc| Total Conc % Conc| Total Conc % Conc| Total Conc % Conc

16| 2,332 | 1,357 | 58% || 335 | 201 | 60% | 545 | 208 | 55% | 397 | 250 | 63% | 552 | 334 | 61% | 503 | 274 | 54%
19| 9,053 | 4,936 | 55% || 2,025 | 970 | 48% | 2,042 | 919 | 45% | 1,897 | 993 | 52% | 1,426 | 948 | 66% | 1,663 | 1,106 | 67%
19A| 352 3 1% 85 1 1% | 102 1 1% | 104 0 0% 61 1 2% 0 0 0%
22| 27,023 | 19,234 | 71% || 5038 | 3,454 | 69% | 5,133 | 3,638 | 71% | 5320 | 3,775 | 71% | 5,787 | 4,203 | 73% | 5,745 | 4,164 | 72%
I 3:.750 | 25530 | 66% || 7,483 | 4,626 | 62% | 7,822 | 4,856 | 62% | 7,718 | 5,018 | 65% | 7,826 | 5486 | 70% | 7,911 | 5544 | 70%

4.2 The costs of the three tendered bus routes currently operating in Portsmouth are
as follows:
Service Comments Contract costs
per year
19/19A | Monday to Friday - £56,083.53
Sunday & Bank Holiday (Whole route) - Hard Interchange
16 — Old Portsmouth Point - Clarence Pier - SPP Pier - £8,600

Bransbury Park - Ferry Road

Monday to Sunday (Whole route) Sainsbury’s Farlington —
22 Lower Drayton — Cosham — Medina Road / Parr Road £42,650
(alternate journeys) - Highbury

Total | £107,333.53

5. Reasons for recommendations

5.1 The information provided in the above tables outlines the financial commitment
made by the city council through its supported bus services, and details the
number of passengers using the services.

6. Equality Impact Assessment

6.1 A preliminary EIA is not relevant due to the nature of this report and its
recommendations, which do not put forward specific proposals at this stage.

7. Legal implications

7.1 As the recommendations do not propose any further action as this stage there
are no legal implications.

Page 192

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

8. Director of Finance's comments

8.1 This report is for information only and, as a result, there are no financial
implications directly arising from the recommendations contained within this report.

Signed by:

Alan Cufley

Director of Transport, Environment and Business Support

Appendices:

Appendix A: Route Timetables and Maps

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a
material extent by the author in preparing this report:

Title of document Location

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
rejected by ......oooiiiiiiii ON e

Signed by:
Councillor Jim Fleming
Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation

Pade 193

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Appendix A

Service 16 Route Map (Outbound)
The Hard - Old Portsmouth - Southsea Seafr

Rl & (.

ont - Eastney
f' - S 2 F

university.
of Porimontn |

g
g
!

e

Service 16 Timetable (Outbound)
The Hard - Old Portsmouth - Southsea Seafront - Eastney

The Hard, The Hard (Stop E) 1045 1200 1315 1430 1545 1700 1815
Old Portsmouth, Broad Street (E-bound) 1052 1207 1322 1437 1552 1707 1822
Southsea, Clarence Pier (stop B) 1058 1213 1328 1443 1558 1713 1828
Southsea, Canoe Lake (E-bound) 1106 1221 1336 1451 1606 1721 1836
Eastney, Bransbury Park (E-bound) 1113 1228 1343 1458 1613 1728 1843
Eastney, Fort Cumberland (SW-bound) 1117 1232 1347 1502 1617 1732 1847
Bank Holidays
The Hard, The Hard (Stop E) 1045 1200 1315 1430 1545 1700 1815
Old Portsmouth, Broad Street (E-bound) 1052 1207 1322 1437 1552 1707 1822
Southsea, Clarence Pier (stop B) 1058 1213 1328 1443 1558 1713 1828
Southsea, Canoe Lake (E-bound) 1106 1221 1336 1451 1606 1721 1836
Eastney, Bransbury Park (E-bound) 1113 1228 1343 1458 1613 1728 1843
Eastney, Fort Cumberland (SW-bound) 1117 1232 1347 1502 1617 1732 1847
Page 194

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Service 16 Route Map (Inbound)
E9’§tne3y - Southsea Seafront - Q[d Ports/[nouvt’h Ihe Hard

)

e

Service 16 Timetable (Inbound)
Eastney - Southsea Seafront - Old Portsmouth - The Hard

Eastney, Fort Cumberland (SW-bound) 1004 1119 1234 1349 1504 1619 1734
Eastney, Bransbury Park (W-bound) 1008 1123 1238 1353 1508 1623 1738
Southsea, Canoe Lake (W-bound) 1015 1130 1245 1400 1515 1630 1745
Southsea, Clarence Pier (stop B) 1023 1138 1253 1408 1523 1638 1753
Old Portsmouth, Broad Street (E-bound) 1029 1144 1259 1414 1529 1644 1759
The Hard, The Hard (Stop E) 1036 1151 1306 1421 1536 1651 1806
Bank Holidays
Eastney, Fort Cumberland (SW-bound) 1004 1119 1234 1349 1504 1619 1734
Eastney, Bransbury Park (W-bound) 1008 1123 1238 1353 1508 1623 1738
Southsea, Canoe Lake (W-bound) 1015 1130 1245 1400 1515 1630 1745
Southsea, Clarence Pier (stop B) 1023 1138 1253 1408 1523 1638 1753
Old Portsmouth, Broad Street (E-bound) 1029 1144 1259 1414 1529 1644 1759
The Hard, The Hard (Stop E) 10361151 1306 1421 1536 1651 1806
Page 195

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Service 19 Route Map (Outbound)
Portsmouth City Centre - Fratton - North End - Southsea

= . v
/ 20X e
Tipoer, & % g & “ v
Tipner i f Ancherage-Park =g ]
Ranges 4 ~ E ) v
z = -~ ]
e Voyager =
7 F‘vav?( 030 )\ -
Portsmouth { | e
¥
Admiral . =
| Lord TH
= I Nelson % < SSSE
Whale island @ \ 4 bt s +ESchool v
3 -
| o
Portsmouth ;::\ =
Continental 3 ¥
Fe e Great =
Po Salterns
//’_“~\_4,—“ ‘: 'S
% ,
- £ ¥
23 Fiathouse Quay, 1§
- ¢
7 | ¥ _ v
/ L Basn <
/ No 3 ! N Y
/ Kingston. J 5.
! ; £ Cemetery *
HMNB ; ood Portsea island
l‘ Portsmouth 3 \)‘"’R
" Portsmouth V'
\ , g_a 7
\ - Unicorn Gate ¥
\ 5 HMS 0
\ Nelson
o %
y‘ /// : 3 &l 7 =
¥ 0 Portsmoutifand Southsea g 4
e Portsea P o ¥ sl
“"""5"""}':%2.“.’,[2;"" - = T «:.‘ ey E Fratton / ofllgggr(rsvoum.
e T A RGN b Stjames’  Chnes
-7\ , - Gunwharf == X Hospital -
P52 \ 5 \Quays HMS Portsmouth N
SR > Temeraire Southjg! Gl
A
N
X\ X
HThe Pl
\ o =
/ Wy Bransbuf A
W Park 'y “‘
W b '
A\ 3
VAN 4
AN X
AAA i Eastney
AN o &

Service 19 Timetable (Outbound)
Portsmouth City Centre - Fratton - North End - Southsea

Mondays to Fridays

Service 19A 19 19 19 19

Guildhall, City Centre South (stop C) 0808 1000 1205 1405 1610
Old Portsmouth, Broad Street (E-bound) ‘ 1007 1212 1412 1617
Southsea, D-day Museum (E-bound) 1015 1220 1420 1625
Southsea, EIm Grove (E-bound) 0813 | |

Southsea, Albert Road Lights (E-bound) 0820 1023 1228 1428 1633
Eastney, Winter Road Shops (N-bound) 0824 1027 1232 1432 1637
Fratton, Fratton Way (N-bound) 0828 1031 1236 1436 1641
Baffins, Milton Road (E-bound) | 1037 1242 1442 1647
Milton, Eastern Avenue (N-bound) 0831 | |

Baffins, Portsmouth College (W-bound) 0836 1042 1247 1447 1652
Copnor, Copythorn Road (N-bound) 0846 1052 1257 1457 1702
North End, North End Junction (stop J) 0849 1055 1300 1500 1705

Page 996

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Service 19 Route Map (Inbound)
North End - Fratton - Southsea - Portsmouth City Centre

Tipner, r/)/ ﬂg %
Tioner < Motnthatten f Ancherage Park
Ranges - . “Gentres, & i
1 ,IL,I\;—“
(M275) (A288_ Y
'3 3 ‘Oyager
1 7 a:*:r?(
)
§ Portsmouth p 3
Admiral ~
Lord s Y
® o Py /Nekon "3
Whale island - «}School
( ) &
Portsmouth 3
Continental 3
r W Great
Po F Salterns - ’%
T e Y g -3
- = .
- I
- ; g
- Fianouse Quay f‘ &
-
- | -
7
/ L Basin ¥
/ No 3 4
/ Kingston &
/ Cemetery
/ i
HMNB oad Portsea (sland, ¥
: Portsmouth y \,aY-ER -'J_’. G i
Tiettd R e
l' Portsmouth R Y ;”m 2
= /' Miton
\ % §.a { £ Common ="y % = -
\ - Unicom Gate & Ntk tmyim e
\ 5 HMS " o) 5T
\ Nelson 7
ug ¥ & v V]
\ -l s Portsmoutiffand Southsea ] %
& Portsea VS e TS . Universty
I‘| onsmoy;h/_y_ag;gm # e 20 i Fratton?y offgrtsn‘wum,
= gl - slangstone
- ;'l/ﬁ N0 ooy St James’ Car(%pus 2
-7\ } GL&wharf e = & . > e Hospital A
g Nays HMS Portsmolith :
\ ) 2 Temenre s, Tonm e ¢
\ i
\ Y72 R,
X\
\The ol
L0 0 :
Y W Bransbuf
/ "W Park 2
M a
\

astney

Hghland
Cemetery

Service 19 Timetable (Inbound)
North End - Fratton - Southsea - Portsmouth City Centre

Mondays to Fridays

Service

19 19 19 19 19
North End, North End Junction (stop H) 0900 1105 1305 1510 1710
Copnor, Copythorn Road (S-bound) 0903 1108 1308 1513 1713
Baffins, opp Portsmouth College 0913 1118 1318 1523 1723
Baffins, Milton Road (W-bound) 0919 1124 1324 1529 1729
Fratton, Fratton Way (S-bound) 0924 1129 1329 1534 1734
Eastney, Winter Road Shops (S-bound) 0927 1132 1332 1537 1737
Southsea, Albert Road Lights (W-bound) 0932 1137 1337 1542 1742
Southsea, D-day Museum (W-bound) 0939 1144 1344 1549 1749
Old Portsmouth, Broad Street (E-bound) 0947 1152 1352 1557 1757
Guildhall, City Centre South (stop C) 0955 1200 1400 1605 1805

Pade 197

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Service 19A Route Map (Outbound gy- no Inbound service

B

Page 498
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Service 22 Route Map (Outbound)
Highbury - Cosham - Drayton - Farlington

g 3 . . ;
= o % h j e B Portsmouth B
P P oYt Portamoue, ! Havarg 1 i) 0y
risda 4 5
S
T - POt PurBok c§ e 2 Feringion
ece o e s o g =oci=o-o- Radou
it Hirleston . i&mw Feampshire -+ Havant Portsrosth North Fortsmouth
¥ 2 - %o, =
Loneston g 3 S ) = Portsdown HilRoad
8 i
g Down End Ao, 3
E - = P orine Chal S H
% ¥ S Wghtingale! 8 o Ace alloidpe Rad 3 2
rantren g SR ey . 1 | £
o E : - 3 “n»m%g i ‘%}: E % § 5= e ot & il 15 s iy,
T — g ] %, ESR 3 e s R G P A e
Cacton figgy kil oqb 3 Cohile Ry E 3| % % 3 % } § B Lo o reckary P ‘% g
e g iy o D Ty i B et (T
H e g ] ! i s % avantioad e
o g = g " &) 3 - R
= M'mww : é m”% P L, £ _§ : § Farlington :
) i f 3 Sour oad i g 5 5 CRf— ¢
ot 5 £ N p 3 Hovant Roag o a §
AR L 5 A ; 7 i’
© i Cosham i i : ',
i $ " 2 8 ¥ &
¢ Oroke ) Mulbony patn i % i oaes® e
o Hilary Awerie 1 s A . :% e
Foring crsc & s .
et W R e § T raien
g S EE g Spgingfei = L .
i W £ I
P Vﬁggl\:ug m"”wi:l;as%‘“*be
Fiel
Mot ¢ Y §
Drayton g
b Park 3 %(Qjﬁgf
& Playing
. & Fields -
Hightnury, 0%t s st BAETE &
i E +
e > = g P -
7 )
R0 -
L) = e ey |
5 Sl Y-y o v
eanitan PP S RS S DS T T i S T e R ke~ e 40 S S
ey, B 4 b AT N
\ R e KR NE MR AR,
=B 8,03 T . §
- ‘;\ 5 “"’f;’j\"’ inalisial o o ¥ - "% " " ¥ *. §
O = ey Hilsea 53 g ¥ R e R B R
Mondays to Fridays Saturdays
Highbury, Hawthorn Crescent (SW-bound) 0710 0820 0930 1040 1150 1300 1410 1520 1630 1740 0710 0820 0930 1040 1150 1300 1410
Cosham, High Street (W-bound) 0720 0830 0940 1050 1200 1310 1420 1530 1640 1750 0720 0830 0940 1050 1200 1310 1420
Cosham, Court Lane (E-bound) 0724 0834 0944 1054 1204 1314 1424 1534 1644 1754 0724 0834 0944 1054 1204 1314 1424
Drayton, Lower Drayton Lane (N-bound) 0731 0841 09851 1101 1211 1321 1431 1541 1651 1801 0731 0841 0951 1101 1211 1321 1431
Farlington, Sainsburys (in grounds) 0739 0849 0959 1109 1219 1329 1439 1549 1659 1809 0739 0849 0959 1109 1219 1329 1439
Saturdays Sundays
Highbury, Hawthorn Crescent (SW-bound) 1520 1630 1740 0930 1040 1150 1300 1410 1520 1630 1740
Cosham, High Street (W-bound) 1530 1640 1750 0940 1050 1200 1310 1420 1530 1640 1750
Cosham, Court Lane (E-bound) 1534 1644 1754 0944 1054 1204 1314 1424 1534 1644 —
Drayton, Lower Drayton Lane (N-bound) 1541 1651 1801 0951 1101 1211 1321 1431 1541 1651 —
Farlington, Sainsburys (in grounds) 1549 1659 1809 0959 1109 1219 1329 1439 1549 1659 —
Bank Holidays
Highbury, Hawthorn Crescent (SW-bound) 0930 1040 1150 1300 1410 1520 1630 1740
Cosham, High Street (W-bound) 0940 1050 1200 1310 1420 1530 1640 1750
Cosham, Court Lane (E-bound) 0944 1054 1204 1314 1424 1534 1644 —
Drayton, Lower Drayton Lane (N-bound) 0951 1101 1211 1321 1431 1541 1651 —
Farlinaton, Sainsburys (in arounds) 0959 1109 1219 1329 1439 1549 1659 —

Pade 199

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Service 22 Route Map (Inbound)
Farllngton Drayton - Cosham nghbury

e

ool o o P N PNL;@EM f
Portsdo P - ¥ - [ j; d j
TSR EWilley— P ;oA £33 Dea
S gl P & Man's
i [ Ml »Dﬂ'g[i"}‘!ﬂ_\WRnadP ————— = — Portsdow Fi Asag POt purok é im
Vo, i 5 bormingts, oo = """““‘“ﬂwy T —— = Sogg, - Loddor P e - Fampshine, - Havant. Rodsmouth Non
Ty 3 g T e ST ks, Road, )  |MES i~ Pt PO il -
oy oy £ Ledbury s Nt g I ! =
R & % '%o sh % o
o, Calingtin Crescent e i a0t o Bon®
‘- P eon e Doan End Rood %
s f\“ ‘i;{ éé, % g EM‘,W = wminwe;\sf\ g Ovkriey Agad " - Chalkridge Rag Moatopn S £
Wy ivengs FaU 3?5 Aotoyiret 7% Bririal i iy Hm&;%g ;@ % e : i | f°
SRas Allaway A LT ) g i %, & oe I PR —— g crant o
gﬂau:gli[ Ea— ay Avenue e g P 1!5 ‘g & E ‘i g i g é. 5 E < Grant
el primar y I iy 2 Stion . : O - a5y i sgent
e e o bl s i el : R
[P Datinham oy } i i 7 I Sl o p— P
s ool V 2 oy i EI | chor) 3
= MWH.gw i - %"%@ P L ; : : : o g Fa
A, ] 3 SpurRoad g & ® ~
5 F G p Hovart Agad o b s et
e BB 2 : b iR i
3 Cost le 1 £ A 'é 5 5 3 5 E o B
The Groke @ Mulberr, pathy 5% 5 3 E & éﬁ »
0205 et il v e pu— £ Feomeren SR
g Csce i L] £ el ]
F " oooconstei fuenue— GoRonenie 2 3 E o
= B b & + =3
> -——-—.._,.\ g g seprield = » s
e et 5 7 I
i S T — - :‘-u.‘ — & s
) 8= e Crscant p s E
T G oy i 5 P
O d s —
¢ i
& P\ey\ng
—@wc”’ﬁwy Uine West Coastw 57 .5
-
= " o P
§ e e
|2 e
N LT u b v
- e bl iR
Ay, e =
8% “ = - =y
¥ . \ & Td 'NS M Nw' =
5 Ve o : '
of Poiishouh e Sy ; 9 e Ty - W ™
<, opite =1 el i i = ET =T L L
iy = = -
F»w%" g 3 Y L _ g Ty - e
Mg 2 ¥ 3 ¥ ¥
b Jh ‘U’Voa,Hnsnn i””a ] =
P = L v - M 4T 4T ¥~ i
g = ¥ o, Pl Ea B E
Mondays to Fridays Saturdays
Farlington, Sainsburys (in grounds) 0742 0852 1002 1112 1222 1332 1442 1552 1702 1812 0742 0852 1002 1112 1222
Drayton, Shops (W-bound) — 0747 0857 1007 1117 1227 1337 1447 1557 1707 1817 — 0747 0857 1007 1117 1227
Cosham, Court Lane (W-bound) — 0754 0904 1014 1124 1234 1344 1454 1604 1714 1824 — 0754 0904 1014 1124 1234
Cosham, Wayte Street (W-bound) — 0801 0911 1021 1131 1241 1351 1501 1611 1721 — 0801 0911 1021 1131 1241
Cosham, Parr Road (SE-bound) — 0805 0915 1025 1135 1245 1355 1505 1615 1725 — 0805 0915 1025 1135 1245
Cosham, Wayte Street (E-bound) — 0808 0918 1028 1138 1248 1358 1508 1618 1728 1831 — 0808 0918 1028 1138 1248
Cosham, High Street (S-bound) 0659 0809 0919 1029 1139 1249 1359 1509 1619 1729 — 0659 0809 0919 1029 1139 1249
Highbury. Hawthorn Crescent (SW-bound) 0707 0817 0927 1037 1147 1257 1407 1517 1627 1737 — 0707 0817 0927 1037 1147 1257
Saturdays Su ndays
Farlington, Sainsburys (in grounds) 1332 1442 1552 1702 1812 1002 1112 1222 1332 1442 1552 1702
Drayton, Shops (W-bound) 1337 1447 1557 1707 1817 — 1007 1117 1227 1337 1447 1557 1707
Cosham, Court Lane (W-bound) 1344 1454 1604 1714 1824 — 1014 1124 1234 1344 1454 1604 1714
Cosham, Wayte Street (W-bound) 1351 1501 1611 1721 — 1021 1131 1241 1351 1501 1611 1721
Cosham, Parr Road (SE-bound) 1355 1505 1615 1725 — 1025 1135 1245 1355 1505 1615 1725
Cosham, Wayte Street (E-bound) 1358 1508 1618 1728 1831 — 1028 1138 1248 1358 1508 1618 1728
Cosham, High Street (S-bound) 1359 1509 1619 1729 — 0919 1029 1139 1249 1359 1509 1619 1729
Highbury. Hawthorn Crescent (SW-bound) 1407 1517 1627 1737 — 0927 1037 1147 1257 1407 1517 1627 1737
Bank Holidays
Farlington, Sainsburys (in grounds) 1002 1112 1222 1332 1442 1552 1702
Drayton, Shops (W-bound) — 1007 1117 1227 1337 1447 1557 1707
Cosham, Court Lane (W-bound) — 1014 1124 1234 1344 1454 1604 1714
Cosham, Wayte Street (W-bound) — 1021 1131 1241 1351 1501 1611 1721
Cosham, Parr Road (SE-bound) — 1025 1135 1245 1355 1505 1615 1725
Cosham, Wayte Street (E-bound) — 1028 1138 1248 1358 1508 1618 1728
Cosham, High Street (S-bound) 0919 1029 1139 1249 1359 1509 1619 1729
Highbury, Hawthorn Crescent (SW-bound) 0927 1037 1147 1257 1407 1517 1627 1737 . _ .

Page00
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Agenda ltem 11

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Title of meeting: Traffic and Transportation Decision Meeting

Date of meeting: 29" September 2016

Subject: Isambard Brunel Road Temporary TRO

Report by: Alan Cufley, Director of Transport, Environment and Business Support
Wards affected: Charles Dickens

Key decision: No

Full Council decision: No

1. Purpose of report

1.1. The purpose of this report is to seek approval to implement a temporary traffic
regulation order (TTRO) facilitate the redevelopment of the Chaucer House site in
Isambard Brunel Road.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That approval is given to implement a temporary traffic regulation order to restrict the
use of Isambard Brunel Road (between Greetham Street and Station Street) to buses,
hackney carriages, cycles, service vehicles and for access only, and further to enable
the temporary closure of the existing bus lane and footway forward to Chaucer House.
It should be recognised that, due to the construction period of the works, the TTRO is
likely to remain in place for up to 2 years.

3. Background

3.1. Planning permission has been granted for the redevelopment of Chaucer House to
provide purpose-built student accommodation. Construction is planned to take place
over the next 2 years; the development will be completed and available to students in
time for the start of the 2018 academic year. Due to the confined nature of the site the
developer seeks to occupy that part of the highway currently used as a footway and
bus lane on the south side of Isambard Brunel Road to establish a site compound and
facilitate implementation of the development.

3.2. A plan is appended to this report indicating the proposed signing, controls and
temporary relocation of the bus stops to give effect to the temporary traffic regulation
order on the ground. The 4 pay and display parking bays in Dugald Drummond Street
will also be suspended as part of this order.

Pade 201

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

4. Reasons for recommendations

4.1. Whilst a licence to occupy the highway for such purposes can be granted under
section 14(1) of the Highways Act, bus priority on this route is essential to the efficient
operation of the public transport network within the city and it is not felt that this can be
secured by integrating the bus services with the general traffic use of Isambard Brunel
Road.

4.2.  As a consequence it is proposed to limit the use of Isambard Brunel Road (between
Greetham Street and Station Street) to buses, cycles, hackney carriages, service
vehicles and for access for the duration of the construction period via a temporary
traffic regulation order.

4.3. Upon completion of the build, reinstatement of the bus lane and a comprehensive
improvement to the public realm within the area occupied by the developer is
envisaged. All of the costs associated with implementing the temporary traffic
regulation order and the subsequent public realm improvement will be met by the
developer, secured through the Section 106 planning agreement associated with the
permission.

4.4, In addition to facilitating the development, this revised operation of Isambard Brunel
Road will provide an opportunity to observe the effectiveness of the approach and
inform a future decision on the benefits of potentially establishing such an arrangement
on a permanent basis, which could enable a wider public realm improvement.

5. Options considered and rejected

5.1. Buses currently operate within a dedicated lane, separate from the traffic flow on
Isambard Brunel Road. The option of integrating the bus services into the general
traffic lanes of Isambard Brunel Road was considered but rejected, as this would
compromise the efficient operation of the bus network in the city.

6. Equality Impact Assessment

6.1 A preliminary EIA has been completed and found that the recommendations do not
have a negative impact on any of the protected characteristics as described in the
Equality Act 2010. No parking is being taking away from disabled people and the
affected bus stops will remain accessible for all users.

7. Legal implications

7.1 ltis the duty of a local authority to manage their road network with a view to achieving,
so far as may be reasonably practicable having regard to their other obligations,
policies and objectives, the following objectives:

(a) securing the expeditious movement of traffic on the authority’s road network;
and

(b) facilitating the expeditious movement of traffic on road networks for which
another authority is the traffic authority.”

7.2  Local authorities have a duty to take account of the needs of all road users, take action
to minimise, prevent or deal with congestion problems, and consider the implications of
decisions for both their network and those of others.

Page 202

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Under section 14 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (RTRA) a traffic authority has
the power to make a temporary traffic regulation order (TTRO) regulating or prohibiting
traffic (including pedestrians) on a road or any part of a road for a number of reasons
including, where works are proposed to be carried out on or near the road and/or where
there is a likelihood of danger to the public, or of serious damage to the road that is not
attributable to those works.

When considering making a TTRO a traffic authority must consider any alternative
routes suitable for traffic affected by the order (section 14(3) RTRA).

A TTRO can last up to 18 months, unless the following apply:

a) the Secretary of State authorises an extension to this time period for a further six
months under section 15(3) RTRA; or

b) where the order is made for the reason that works are being or are proposed on or
near the road and the authority is satisfied, and it is stated in the order that it is
satisfied, that the execution of the works in question will take longer than 18 months
(section 15(2) RTRA . In such a case a traffic authority must revoke the order as soon
as the works are completed.

The procedure for making a TTRO is set out in regulation 3 of the Road Traffic (Temporary
Restrictions) Procedure Regulations 1992. This provides that a traffic authority must at
least seven days before making a TTRO publish a notice of its intention to make the order
in a local newspaper with details of the order.

Where a TTRO is in relation to roads and cycle tracks a traffic authority must before the day
the order is made give notice of the order to the chief officer of police.

8. Director of Finance's comments

8.1

The cost of implementing the recommendations within this report is anticipated to be
funded by the developer in their entirety and therefore does not require any additional
cost to, or contribution by, the Council.

Signed by:
Alan Cufley
Director of Transport, Environment and Business Support

Pade 203

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a
material extent by the author in preparing this report:

Title of document Location

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
rejected by ... o o

Signed by:
Councillor Jim Fleming
Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation

Page 204

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



G0c¢ abed

Appendix A Drawings: HWI997/4001: Construction Plan

-
iy

§

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Shelter reposHored 5o
southern side of mad,
Ghve weay markings amended,

End saction of Elocs.
oyramld 1o be remosed
and carrlagesay arss

e e, B02 slgn ['ghee wary')
/ I be moried on exlsting
llghilg ccfuree

rl Jllll.ﬁ'l

and mrcred o IR

Iilmlag skan fe b daremted

e |
! o7 77,
/ L‘Exhlhg ‘e af bus a5’ § 'gve way / *

Notes:

1, Al dalalk ara ie be chaced

by the contracior prlor o
commencemen of th wors
on she.

Al dimenslons are I metres
urless othemndse stalsd,
PCLC e ba hald
raspaniElbla for B ascurscy
ef mpograpslcal survey,
TraMe managemanl 1o ke In
meondanos wih chapier B of
a afc slgrs mars] and
related cockes of pracike,
Crawing Io be privied o
colour.

N
i Offes

o

(L

N

\n

T

T

dro, parklsg bays
i Esft 5058 e

T ? . EQN\-“:—_——F_:_

b band biwes A0 b wsedd ot
Bea winza]

JGALD CRUMMOND §TREET e
_{:-"“:-1__‘::1— —

Roprd formd bun sheler

A cormpound tanchg

Edsd=g sropaed possig

e I Drlagessay
b el rebratisd I3

to slte compound Tendng,
Bus company 1o be consuled
&Nz whiber mosad Turer

st |1 ragqulrad for dalallly

ncxordance with SET0801

b repil il ored
Edeirg I3ting coleres

T
T—

Blook pyTarkd oes 1 bo

" Eddsileg Burinaied dgn i [

o T

EHr

ST
Chaucar House
Temporary Warks

T

Eorslruslen Flan
Opfen E

Shaber reposltlaned
b south slde

= Cod | we HIG

E Porbasvisth

Vi i, s B g s |

Ll Ll

.......

\ 1\'@_?.,.#_

i |II 1
\
= 1
\ \
\ Mt
\ A b
. N
7 -7-) AR G (o ) i
e
e H G700
__,-o—"li'l‘-r.j e e e N =
=T | el
= m




90¢ 8bed

@ Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Drawing number HWI997/4003: Signing

i

‘spend humg' [nset 1o be
blogked out from clrecion | =

slgn and replrced whh 618
skan

HW¥|=aTianca

|
e




Portsmouth

CITY COUNCIL

Preliminary a ment form vd f 2013

ytsmouth.gov . uk

The preliminary impact assessment is a quick and easy screening process. It should:

0 dentify those policies, projects, services, functions or strategies which require a full EIA by
looking at:

B negatwve, positive or no impact on any of the equality groups

I opportunity to promote eguality for the equality groups
g data [feedback

o pricrtise if and when a full EIA should be completed

I justify reasons for why a full ElA is not going to be completed

Directorate: Director of Transport, environment & business support

Function e.g. HR, Traffic & Metwork management
1S, carers:

Title of policy, service, function, project or strategy (new or old) :

lsambard Brunel Road Temprary Traffic Regulation Order

Type of policy, service, function, project or strategy:
Existing

* New/ proposed
' Changed

Pade 207
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Q1 - What is the aim of your policy, service, function, project or strategy?

To limit the use of |Isambard Brunel Road (hetween Grestham Street and Station Road) except for
access, and for buses, hackney carriages, and cycles, to allow the temporary closure of the current bus
lane and footway to facilitate development of Chaucer House

Q2 - Who Is this policy, service, function, project or strategy going to benefit or have a
detrimental effect on and how?

This strategy will allow the temporary closure of the current bus lane and footway facilitating the
development of Chaucer House,

This will require relocation of the bus stops further to the west and closer to the city centre which should
make them more accessible for all users. The reduction in traffic flow on Isambard Brunel Road wil|
actually make it easier for people with mobilty impairments to cross the road

The temporarily revised operation of Isambard Brunel Road will provide an ocpportunity to observe the
effectiveness of the approach and inform a decision about the benefit of establishing such an
arrangement on a permanent basis which would facilitate a wider public realm improvement.

It will have detrimental effect on both:

a) car drivers who use this route as a 'rat run' largely to avoid congestion on Alfred Road / Anglesea
Rnoad (AZ) and Winston Churchill Avenue; and

b) students resident in Margrat Rule Hall who will be provided with a new access directly to Charles
Dickens Street

Meither of these groups reflect the specifically protected groups protected by equality legislation

Q3 - Thinking about each group below, does, or could the policy, service, function, project or
strategy have a negative impact on members of the equality groups below?

Age
Disability
Race
Gender
Transgender

Sexual orientation

*
*
*
*
*
*

Page 208

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Religion or belief [ ] o
Pregnancy and maternity *
COther excluded groups _ * |

If the answer is "negative" or "unclear" consider doing a full EIA

Q4 - Does, or could the policy, service, function, project or strategy help to promote equality for
members of the equality groups?

Age

Cisability

Race

E Ik S S

Gender
Transgender
Sexual orientation
Religion or belief

Pregnancy or maternity

A SN S S

*

Other excluded groups

If the answer is "'no" or "unclear" consider doing a full EIA

Q5 - Do you have any feedback data from the equality groups that influences, affects or shapes
this policy, service, function, project or strategy?

Age *

Disability h *

Race [ ] %*
Pade 209

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth

CITY COUNCIL

Gender
Transgender
Sexual orientation
Religion or belief

Pregnancy and maternity

% A 4 A A

Other excluded groups

If the answer is "'ne" or "unclear” consider doing a full EIA

Q6 - Using the assessments in gquestions 3, 4 and 5 should a full assessment be carried out on
this policy, service, function or strategy?

yes * Mo

Q7 - How have you come to this decision?

The proposal does not have any specific impact for any of the protected equality groups as the effected
bus stops are to be relocated closer to the city centre and will remain accessible to all users. The
reduction in traffic flow on |sambard Brunel Road will actually make it easier for people with mobility
impairments to cross the road.

If you have to complete a full EIA please contact the Equalities and diversity team if you require help
Tel: 023 9283 4789 or email equalities@ portsmouthce. gov.uk

Q8 - Who was involved in the EIA?
Peter Hayward

This EIA has been approved by: Pam Turton

Contact number; ext 4614

Page®10

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Date: 160872016

Please email a copy of your completed ElA to the Equality and diversity team. We will contact you with
any comments or quenes about your preliminary EIA

Telephone: 023 8283 4789

Email: equalities@ portsmouthee. gov_uk

Palfe 211

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Preliminary assessment form v5 / 2013

The preliminary impact assessment is a quick and easy screening process. It should:

[ identify those policies, projects, services, functions or strategies which require a full EIA by
looking at:

I negative, positive or no impact on any of the equality groups

[ opportunity to promote equality for the equality groups
p data/feedback

i prioritise if and when a full EIA should be completed

0 justify reasons for why a full EIA is not going to be completed

I ™

Director of Transport, environment & business support

Directorate:

h.

Function e.g. HR, ‘{I'raf'fic & Network management
IS, carers:

Title of policy, service, function, project or strategy (new or old) :

Isambard Brunel Road Temprary Traffic Regulation Order

Type of policy, service, function, project or strategy:

|' _jl Existing

.

|/£:| New / proposed

| Changed Page 213

M



Q1 - What is the aim of your policy, service, function, project or strategy?

To limit the use of Isambard Brunel Road (between Greetham Street and Station Road) except for
access, and for buses, hackney carriages, and cycles, to allow the temporary closure of the current bus
lane and footway to facilitate development of Chaucer House.

Q2 - Who is this policy, service, function, project or strategy going to benefit or have a
detrimental effect on and how?

This strategy will allow the temporary closure of the current bus lane and footway facilitating the
development of Chaucer House.

This will require relocation of the bus stops further to the west and closer to the city centre which should
make them more accessible for all users. The reduction in traffic flow on |sambard Brunel Road will
actually make it easier for people with mobility impairments to cross the road.

The temporarily revised operation of Isambard Brunel Road will provide an opportunity to observe the
effectiveness of the approach and inform a decision about the benefit of establishing such an
arrangement on a permanent basis which would facilitate a wider public realm improvement.

It will have detrimental effect on both:

a) car drivers who use this route as a 'rat run' largely to avoid congestion on Alfred Road / Anglesea
Road (A3) and Winston Churchill Avenue; and

b) students resident in Margret Rule Hall who will be provided with a new access directly to Charles
Dickens Street

Neither of these groups reflect the specifically protected groups protected by equality legislation.

Q3 - Thinking about each group below, does, or could the policy, service, function, project or
strategy have a negative impact on members of the equality groups below?

Group Negative Poisr:I[;laec{c ne Unclear

Age *
Disability *
Race Y
Gender *
Transgender Y

4y

Sexual orientation Page 21



Religion or belief *
Pregnancy and maternity Y

Other excluded groups *

If the answer is "negative" or "unclear" consider doing a full EIA

Q4 - Does, or could the policy, service, function, project or strategy help to promote equality for
members of the equality groups?

=
o]

Group Yes Unclear

Age

Disability

Race

Gender

Transgender

Sexual orientation

Religion or belief

* % b % A A A #

Pregnancy or maternity

*

Other excluded groups

If the answer is "no" or "unclear" consider doing a full EIA

Q5 - Do you have any feedback data from the equality groups that influences, affects or shapes
this policy, service, function, project or strategy?

Group Yes No Unclear
Age *
Disability Y

Race Page gg 5



Gender

Transgender

Sexual orientation

Religion or belief

* % D % %

Pregnancy and maternity

Other excluded groups *

If the answer is "no" or "unclear" consider doing a full EIA

Q6 - Using the assessments in questions 3, 4 and 5 should a full assessment be carried out on
this policy, service, function or strategy?

yes % No

Q7 - How have you come to this decision?

The proposal does not have any specific impact for any of the protected equality groups as the effected
bus stops are to be relocated closer to the city centre and will remain accessible to all users. The
reduction in traffic flow on Isambard Brunel Road will actually make it easier for people with mobility
impairments to cross the road.

If you have to complete a full EIA please contact the Equalities and diversity team if you require help
Tel: 023 9283 4789 or email.equalities@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

Q8 - Who was involved in the EIA?

Peter Hayward

This EIA has been approved by: Pam Turton

Contact number: ext 4614

Page 216



Date: 16/09/2016

Please emalil a copy of your completed EIA to the Equality and diversity team. We will contact you with
any comments or queries about your preliminary EIA.

Telephone: 023 9283 4789

Email: equalities@ portsmouthcc.gov.uk

Page 217



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Winter Maintenance Operational Plan 2016/17
	Winter Maintenance Operation Plan  2016-17 Appendix Part 1
	Winter Maintenance 2016-17 Appendix Part 2

	4 Residents' Parking Update
	5 Residents Parking Zone: Cosham Area (TRO 47/2016)
	TRO 47 2016 Cosham RPZ-EIA (appendix)

	6 Charges for Third Permits in Residents Parking Zones
	Third Permit Charges - EIA (appendix)

	7 A2047 Corridor Junction Treatments - Raised Tables (Fratton Road, Kingston Road and London Road)
	EIA A2047 Junction Improvements final (Appendix 3)

	8 Goldsmith Avenue Cycle Lane (TRO 11/2016)
	9 Montague Road Traffic Calming - Results of Public Consultation
	Montague Rd EIA (appendix 3)

	10 Tendered Bus Routes Update on Patronage
	11 Isambard Brunel Road Temporary TRO
	EIA Prelim-Isambard Brunel Rd (Appendix)


